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 Welcome to the Home Retail 
Group annual report. As well as 
highlighting the year’s results and 
successes, this report shows how 
 well equipped we are to continue 
to succeed in the future.

Our two leading retail brands, Argos and Homebase, 
are supported by a robust and scaleable shared 
infrastructure. This gives us real competitive advantage 
and opens up multiple growth and development 
opportunities in our markets.
 Economic factors mean that sales and profi t growth 
may be harder to achieve in the short term. But our 
strong brands, product ranges and scale will provide 
opportunities for resilience in these conditions. 
 We believe Home Retail Group is in excellent shape 
for long-term success.

Terry Duddy
Chief Executive
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Argos and Homebase are two of the UK’s leading retail brands, with 
large customer bases across the UK and Ireland. 
 Between them, our retail brands have more than 60 years of market 
heritage and consumer awareness. Argos was founded in 1973 and 
Homebase in 1981. They have been shaping modern retailing ever since.
 

Argos, the UK’s largest general merchandise retailer, has an unrivalled 
blend of choice, value and convenience to meet customer needs. 
 Homebase is the UK’s second largest home improvement retailer, 
and offers a growing range of home enhancement products and services 
in a differentiated store environment.

Who we are and what we do.
We are the UK’s leading home 
and general merchandise retailer. 

The product range 
available at Homebase.

30,000+ 

The product range 
available at Argos.

18,000+ 

4%
The average price reduction 
on reincluded lines in the 
Spring/Summer 2008 Argos 
catalogue.

200m+ 

The number of store 
transactions last year.

53,000 

The foundation of our 
business success is 
our 53,000 colleagues.

THE GROUP
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ARGOS SALES MIX

Home enhancement (30%)

Electrical goods (50%)

Toys, jewellery, sports 
and leisure equipment (20%)

GROUP SALES MIX

Electrical goods (37%)

Home enhancement, 
DIY/decorating
and gardening (49%)

Toys, jewellery, sports
and leisure equipment (14%)

HOMEBASE SALES MIX

DIY/decorating (41%)

Gardening (23%)

Home 
enhancement (33%)

Electrical goods (3%)

OUR SALES MIX

MARKET STRENGTH
As the leader in UK home and general merchandise 
retailing, but with only a 10% share of the market, we 
still have signifi cant room for growth.

GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN 2007/08

1,038stores 

WIDE COVERAGE
We have more than 1,000 Argos and Homebase stores 
in the UK and Ireland in a variety of retail formats.

PURCHASING SCALE
The size and sophistication of our procurement means we 
can source the products our customers want at great prices.

SHARED INFRASTRUCTURE
Our retail brands are supported by an increasingly shared 
infrastructure and logistics operation that enables us to meet 
customer needs cost-efficiently.

BECOMING INDEPENDENT
Home Retail Group has been a standalone business and 
FTSE 100 company in its own right since the demerger from 
GUS plc in October 2006. But our success as an independent 
company is just the latest chapter in a bigger story.

Argos 707
(+27)

Homebase 331
(+21)

England 806

Scotland 95

Wales 53

Northern Ireland 36

Republic of Ireland 48

£60bn
UK home and general merchandise market

10%
 Our share of this market

1998
Acquisition of Argos by 
GUS plc 

Launch of Argos 
website

2000
Launch of Financial 
Services business

2002
Acquisition of 
Homebase by GUS plc

2004
Acquisition of
33 Index stores

2006
Demerger of Home 
Retail Group from 
GUS plc

2007 
Launch of trials of 
Argos in India and 
HomeStore&More in 
the UK

Acquisition of 27 Focus 
DIY stores

OUR HISTORY

STORE NUMBERS 2007/08 (YEAR-ON-YEAR CHANGES)
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Group performance.
Record profi ts have been achieved 
at Argos, and Homebase has 
traded relatively well in more 
diffi  cult market conditions.

Financial highlights
  Sales2 up 2.3% in total to £5,985m (2007 pro forma: £5,851m), with 

like-for-like sales up 0.7% at Argos and down 4.1% at Homebase
  Gross margin ahead by approximately 50 basis points at Argos and 

approximately 250 basis points at Homebase
 Operating expenses up 4%, of which underlying infl ation is approximately 3%
  Benchmark operating profi t3 up 11% to £398m (2007 pro forma: £359m), with 

growth of 16% to a record level at Argos and a decline of 16% at Homebase;  
reported operating profi t of £387m

 Benchmark profi t before tax4 up 15% to £433m (2007 pro forma: £377m);   
 reported profi t before tax of £426m
  Basic benchmark earnings per share5 up 16% to 33.9p (2007 pro forma: 29.3p);  

reported basic earnings per share of 34.0p
 Net cash increase of £114m; closing net cash of £174m
 Benchmark pre-tax return on invested capital6 up 70 basis points to 12.7%
 Final dividend of 10.0p recommended; full-year dividend up 13% to 14.7p 

 (2007: 13.0p).

Operating highlights
 Leading position in multi-channel retailing further strengthened
 Substantial benefi t from Group-wide sourcing scale and supply chain initiatives
 Further improvements to product ranges and choice as well as the customer  

 shopping experience at both Argos and Homebase
 Store networks expanded and further long-term growth opportunity remains
  Strong operating cost control achieved.

Notes : refer to page 47 for defi nitions.

THE GROUP
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Defi nition:
Income received for goods and services.

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements.

SALES – CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
(£M)

Group sales increased 2.3% to 
£5,985m. Argos now accounts for 
over 70% of Group sales; its £157m 
or 3.8% sales increase more than 
offset the £26m or 1.6% sales 
decline at Homebase. With an 
additional £1.1bn of sales added 
over the past four years, the Group 
is able to leverage central overhead 
costs and achieve supply chain 
effi ciencies.

Defi nition:
Operating profi t and margin before 
amortisation of acquisition intangibles, store 
impairment charges, exceptional items and 
costs related to demerger incentive schemes. 

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements.

BENCHMARK OPERATING PROFIT (£M) 
AND MARGIN (%) – CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS

Group benchmark operating profi t 
increased 11% to £398m. Argos profi ts 
increased by over £50m which more 
than offset the £8m reduction in 
Homebase profi t and the £5m increase 
in the cost of Central Activities. The 
increase in operating profi t in the year 
refl ects both a strong operational 
and fi nancial performance. Group 
benchmark operating margin 
increased 60 basis points to 6.7%.

Defi nition:
Annual benchmark operating profi t plus 
share of post-tax results of joint ventures and 
associates, divided by year-end net assets 
excluding retirement benefi t balances, tax 
balances and net cash/debt.

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements.

BENCHMARK PRE-TAX RETURN ON 
INVESTED CAPITAL 

Benchmark pre-tax return on invested 
capital was 12.7%, representing 
a 70 basis point improvement on 
the previous balance sheet date. 
The improvement represents the 
combination of the £40m or 11% 
improvement in profi t, and an increase 
of £128m or 4% in invested capital.

HOME RETAIL GROUP SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE

4,927
5,313

5,510
5,851 5,985 +2.3%

+2.4%

(1.6%)

+3.8%

04 05 06 07 08

Homebase

Argos

Financial Services

386

422

332
359

398

04 05 06 07 08

Argos

Homebase

Central Activities

Financial Services

Operating margin

+11%

+10%

(16%)

+16%

(20%)

7.8% 7.9%
6.0% 6.1% 6.7%

10.5%

12.0%
12.7%

13.4%

04 05 06 07 08

13.6%

500p

400p

300p

200p

11 OCT 06 11 DEC 06 11 FEB 07 11 APR 07 11 JUN 07 11 AUG 07 11 OCT 07 11 DEC 07 29 FEB 08

FTSE 100Home Retail Group FTSE 350 General Retail

 06 and 07 are on a 52-week pro forma basis
 05 onwards IFRS

Growth in basic benchmark 
earnings per share 
(2008: 33.9p – 2007: 29.3p).

+16%

Growth in dividend per share 
(2008: 14.7p – 2007: 13.0p).

+13%
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Out in front.
 With a 10% share of a £60bn 
market and the number one 
position in many product 
categories, we are the UK 
market leader in home and 
general merchandise. 
Our stores, catalogues and websites provide many ways for our customers 
to choose and buy from the ever-widening selection of products we offer. 
Our size gives us tremendous sourcing and supply chain advantages, 
allowing us to deliver value for money to our customers across a broad 
range of products.

 Pg 18. Competitive position.
We are the market leader in 
six of our 10 product categories.   

 Pg 19. Strategy for growth.
We will continue to drive 
market share growth in 
key categories.   

 Pg 16. Key strengths.
Argos and Homebase are two 
of the UK’s most recognised 
retail brands.

 Pg 16. Key strengths.
We offer our customers great 
choice and value. 

Where can I fi nd more information?

THE GROUP
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Toasters are just one of the wide range 

of small domestic appliances available 

at Argos and Homebase. Customers 

can browse and buy online in less time 

than it takes to make breakfast.
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Our multi-channel off er gives consumers 

choice and fl exibility. Argos and 

Homebase customers can shop in-store, 

from home or a combination of both. 

THE GROUP
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 Thinking ahead.
Our future is exciting. We’re looking 
forward to it. We continue to innovate 
to give our customers the best choice 
of products and a variety of ways to 
shop to suit their needs. 
We are focused on developing our brands to meet changes in consumer 
behaviour and tastes. Argos customers have multiple ways to fi nd and buy 
the products they want. Homebase is increasingly meeting the needs of 
consumers looking for inspirational home enhancement.
 We’re developing new product ranges and additional services that meet 
new customer requirements. We’re also bringing innovation to the in-store 
and online customer experience to be ready for what’s coming next.

 Pg 24/32. Developing new 
products. New ranges in Argos 
and Homebase drive growth.  
 

 Pg 32. Developing services.
Kitchen installation services 
are popular with Homebase 
customers.

 Pg 17. Key strengths.
Argos sets the standard for 
multi-channel retail innovation. 

 Pg 20. Strategy for growth.
Our store formats continue 
to evolve.  
 

Where can I fi nd more information?
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Th e scale and effi  ciency of our product 

sourcing and distribution operations 

enable us to control our costs and ensure 

high levels of stock availability. It also helps 

to deliver the best performance.
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Well equipped for the future.
Our strategy for growth is 
unchanged. Put simply, it’s to 
‘own the home’. As the UK’s leading 
multi-channel retailer, with a 
superior supply chain, we are 
well placed for long-term success.  
Whatever happens in the short term, our focus is on continuing to 
increase our product portfolio and extending our leadership in our 
existing markets. Our purchasing scale, supply chain and shared 
infrastructure will help to support margins and manage cost pressures 
through the cycle. And we’ll keep investing for growth to emerge 
from any economic slowdown in an even stronger position.

 Pg 17. Key strengths. 
Argos Direct is the UK’s largest 
‘two-man’ delivery operation.

 Pg 60. Board of Directors.
The Group is led by an 
experienced management team.

 Pg 17. Key strengths. 
We have one of the largest UK 
sourcing offi ces in the Far East.

 Pg 17. Key strengths. 
Our shared infrastructure 
provides benefits to both brands.

Where can I fi nd more information?
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Growth in dividend per share 
(2008: 14.7p – 2007: 13.0p).

Increase in closing net cash 
(2008: £174m – 2007: £60m).

+13% 

+£114m 
New developments
The Group continues to identify and develop new 
businesses with the potential to enhance our long-
term growth. This year saw the launch of trials of 
Argos in India and HomeStore&More in the UK. 
We also purchased a number of sites from Focus DIY 
to expand the reach of the Homebase brand.

Prudent fi nancial position
Given economic conditions, our fi nancial position 
and net cash balance mean that the Group is well 
placed to continue the developments to drive long-
term growth in all of our businesses.

Dividend growth
The recommended fi nal dividend is 10.0p, which 
is to be paid to shareholders on 23 July 2008. This 
creates a total dividend for the year of 14.7p, which 
represents an increase of 13% and is covered 2.31 
times by basic benchmark earnings per share.

Outlook
While the outlook undoubtedly looks more chal-
lenging from here, the outstanding performance 
delivered this year is testament to the underlying 
strength of the Group. I believe that we are in excel-
lent operational and fi nancial shape going into the 
next fi nancial year. 

Thank you for your continued support.

Oliver Stocken
Chairman

In our second year as an independent company, 
we have again achieved double-digit earnings 
growth, with benchmark profi t before tax up 15% 
to £433m.

Continued progress
We have made good progress in a number of 
key areas.
 At Argos, we have brought greater value to our 
customers through our ability to provide highly 
competitive prices across our product ranges. Argos 
has also maintained its long track record of retail 
innovation with a number of initiatives that have 
helped to improve both the customer shopping 
experience and operational effi ciency.
 The Argos catalogue is a true icon in UK retail-
ing. This year has seen the 69th and biggest-ever 
edition, containing over 18,000 product lines. The 
catalogue is the heart of Argos and the business 
model is truly unique in its integration of customer 
order and delivery channels. 
 The home enhancement positioning of Home-
base gives the brand competitive advantage and 
differentiation compared to more traditional DIY 
outlets at the ‘heavier’ end of the market.
 We are extending within Homebase the same 
retail principles that sustain the success of Argos. 
The introduction of a home furniture and furnishings 
catalogue and the expansion of the product range 
available online are helping to attract more consum-
ers to the full choice of home enhancement products 
and services that Homebase offers. 
 Improved product ranges are displayed to 
great effect in the newer store formats. Over half 
of Homebase stores have a mezzanine fl oor for 
displaying kitchen, bathroom and furniture ranges, 
with the strong homewares offer displayed beneath 
the mezzanine.

A valued contribution
The Group’s success is very much a team effort. 
I am always impressed by the professionalism of 
our colleagues when I visit our stores and other 
operations. I would like to take this opportunity 
to thank them for their commitment and will-
ingness to generate and take on new ideas and 
deliver innovations in what will continue to be 
very challenging conditions.

I am delighted to report that it has 
been an excellent year for the Group.

Chairman’s statement

Oliver Stocken

Chairman
Terry Duddy

Chief Executive
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Although the home enhancement market dete-
riorated through the financial year, Homebase 
performed well operationally. The gross margin 
increased by approximately 250 basis points, driven 
by ongoing sourcing and supply chain benefits. 
The repositioning of Homebase from DIY to 
broader home enhancement leader continues to 
progress well. 
 However, improving the level of profi t and re-
turn from the Homebase business will be a key area 
of focus and effort over the next few years.
 Financial Services makes an important contri-
bution to our business, working on behalf of Argos 
and Homebase to offer our customers more and 
better ways to afford our products. The expertise and 
experience of our team ensures that we manage our 
credit offering to the benefi t of the whole Group. 

A strong team 
The Group’s financial performance reflects well 
on our team. It’s very powerful to have 53,000 
colleagues who give the Group their full commit-
ment and who are passionate about our success. 
I would like to thank everyone for their effort and 
hard work through the past year.

Focused on the future
Our long-term outlook remains positive and we are 
excited about our many opportunities for growth. 
 Any near-term consumer slowdown should see 
Home Retail continue as a clear market leader and 
emerge in an even stronger competitive position.
 I believe we have the right business model and 
strategy to deliver superior long-term performance. 
We are delivering well now and have the capability 
to be even more successful in the future. 

Terry Duddy
Chief Executive

Although the short term may be challenging, we 
are confi dent that we have everything in place to 
be a winner in the long run. 

Strong fi nancial foundations
Our sales grew to £5,985m, an increase of 2% on 
the previous year. Benchmark operating profi t rose 
by 11% to £398m and benchmark profi t before tax 
by 15% to £433m. Basic benchmark earnings per 
share of 33.9p represented an increase of 16%. 
Benchmark pre-tax return on invested capital 
improved by 70 basis points to 12.7%. A net cash 
position of £174m refl ects the strength of our profi t 
performance and overall fi nancial position.

Combined strength 
The Group’s performance shows the advantage of 
having two complementary retail brands. Where 
Argos and Homebase operate in the same product 
categories, we can reach a broader range of cus-
tomers while leveraging a greater combined scale. 
We can also transfer new retail innovations and 
practices to strengthen our customer propositions.
 We maintained or increased our market share in 
a number of key categories, including the respective 
growth areas for Argos of consumer electronics 
and for Homebase of fi tted kitchens. Installation 
services are proving an important sales driver for 
Homebase among a broader customer base. 
 Argos delivered record profi ts. Sales were 
driven by a wide selection of merchandise, including 
the new Argos Value Range and premium branded 
ranges, as well as by continuing to offer highly 
competitive prices. Over 15 million customers used 
Check & Reserve to order goods for in-store collection, 
with internet Check & Reserve increasing by over 
40%. The gross margin increased by approximately 
50 basis points during the year. Argos operating 
cost effi ciency was perhaps the key success in 
the year.

Chief Executive’s statement
We have in place a clear strategy to 
deliver long-term profi table growth. 

Total number of colleagues 
across the business.

53,000 

Growth in benchmark 
profi t before tax (2008: 
£433m – 2007: £377m).

+15%
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How we measure up.
Our aim is to deliver a strong 
performance relative to our 
retail markets. We have done 
so in the past. We expect to 
continue to do so in the future.
We are confi dent in the long-term strength of our business. 
Consumer and retail trends are being met or driven by our 
fl exible retail formats. Argos and Homebase have distinctive 
brand appeal and clear customer propositions. They both gain 
signifi cant leverage from a shared infrastructure, delivering 
cost effi ciency and multiple routes to market. 
 Our Financial Services business also helps to generate sales 
by making products easier to afford. We’ve had a very good 
year.  And we’re well positioned for this to continue.

 Pg 37. Homebase fi nancial 
review. Supply chain initiatives 
helped grow gross margin by 
approximately 250 basis points.

 Pg 40. Financial Services. 
The Group’s store cards funded 
£566m of total retail sales.

 Pg 17. Sourcing and supply 
chain strength. Products we buy 
from overseas account for over 
£1.8bn of Group sales.

 Pg 25. Argos performance.    
Benchmark operating profi t 
grew to a record £376m.

Where can I fi nd more information?
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We have long-term plans to continue 

to grow. We measure success in the 

context of wider developments in UK 

retailing. We are improving our leadership 

position in the home and general 

merchandise markets.
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Great choice and value
Customers of Argos and Homebase have access to a 
massive range of goods at competitive prices.
 The breadth and diversity of our product range, 
across multiple categories and with significant 
overlap between Argos and Homebase, should help 
to support sales in the event of a consumer slow-
down. While some markets may contract, certain 
product categories should grow due to technological 
advances and replacement cycles.
 The choice and value of our product range 
continues to expand for both retail brands. As a 
multi-channel retailer, Argos is able to offer its 
customers a level of choice within each product 
category that is hard to beat. Homebase also offers a 
wide choice within the product ranges that it sells. 
 The introduction of mezzanine floors at 
Homebase stores was part of a wider initiative to 
maximise store space and allow more lifestyle-led 
products such as kitchens, bathrooms and furniture 
to be displayed more effectively. Argos is also trialling 
the use of product displays for certain key ranges.
 The Group’s scale benefi ts allow highly advan-
tageous price positioning for both retail brands. 
Argos competes on price, offering customers low-
cost products. Homebase has a more promotion-
ally-led stance supported by its Spend & Save 
programme and promotional events.
 Additional services help to maximise brand 
appeal and drive sales for both businesses. Argos 
has a market-leading home delivery offer, both in 
terms of service and value for money. Homebase is 
increasingly offering end-to-end support for home 
enhancement projects, with kitchen design and 
installation services available in all stores.

The market leader
With sales of nearly £6bn in the past fi nancial year, 
Home Retail Group is the leading home and general 
merchandise retailer in the UK.
 Although we are already the number one in many 
of our product categories, there is still potential to 
increase our market share. Our combined position 
accounts for just 10% of a market valued at £60bn. 
As many of these markets are fragmented and our 
market share has built quickly, there are further 
opportunities for growth. 
 We are using our retail knowledge and experi-
ence to maximise our operational efficiency and 
strengthen our competitive position. Initiatives in 
this area include trials of different store formats and 
ongoing programmes of store improvements.
 As we offer multiple product categories via store 
and non-store channels, we are well placed to serve 
the changing needs of consumers.

Two strong retail brands with large customer bases
As the UK’s leading general merchandise retailer 
and an icon among consumers, Argos is known for 
offering choice, value and convenience across a 
broad range of product categories. Homebase is the 
UK’s second largest home improvement retailer, 
increasingly known for providing an extensive, more 
style-led range of merchandise across the broader 
home enhancement market. 
 Both retail brands are well placed to meet 
changes in customer preferences because of their 
emphasis on customer service and product choice. 
They are also extending their reach into under-
penetrated customer areas and developing tailored 
formats to serve specifi c local catchments.
 Our Financial Services business drives sales and 
customer loyalty for both Argos and Homebase. 
A range of credit and insurance products are 
available to customers in-store, by telephone 
and online, making our retail products more affordable 
and providing customers with additional peace of 
mind. With more than 1.1 million active store card 
customers, we are one of the largest store card 
providers in the UK.

Our key strengths
Th e following strengths show how Home 
Retail Group is well positioned as one 
of the leaders in the UK retail market.

The size of the UK home 
and general merchandise 
retailing market.

£60bn 

Home Retail Group’s 
market share.

10% 
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Integrated multi-channel capability 
As the leader in multi-channel retailing, we are 
well placed to respond to future consumer and retail 
trends. Consumers are changing how they order 
and buy goods. We offer many ways to meet their 
needs through our two retail brands, from in-store to 
shopping at home using catalogues and the internet. 
We are continually looking at new opportunities 
for innovation to enhance the retail experience.
 The fully-integrated nature of the Argos offer-
ing, supported by highly developed supply chain 
systems, provides further differentiation and is a 
model for future retail business. Whether buying 
in-store, online or over the phone, for collection in-
store or home delivery, the experience is noticeably 
fast and effi cient.
 At Argos, over 14,000 product lines can be 
reserved from home for collection from the cus-
tomer’s store of choice through Check & Reserve. 
By combining the effi ciency of pre-ordering with 
the guarantee of immediate availability, this facility 
appeals to all time-pressed consumers. The conven-
ience of Quick Pay Kiosks is helping to speed up the 
shopping process in-store, allowing customers to 
bypass the till. Quick Pay Kiosks transactions now 
account for around 17% of Argos store sales.
 This same multi-channel capability is being used 
to provide competitive advantage to Homebase. 
Homebase’s transactional website is modelled on 
the successful Argos service. Customers can browse 
more than 10,000 Homebase products online, many 
of which are available for home delivery using our 
shared home delivery infrastructure. 
 The skills and experience behind the Argos 
catalogue are being applied to create catalogues 
for Homebase customers featuring furniture, 
furnishings, fl ooring, tiling, lighting and decorating 
products. The Homebase Spend & Save loyalty card 
provides a tool for direct marketing to four million 
customers active in home enhancement.

Purchasing, sourcing and supply chain strength
Group operations provide our retail brands with 
signifi cant competitive advantages.
 Due to the size of our procurement operation, 
the scale effi ciencies we can generate and our long-
term relationships with suppliers, we can deliver 
value for money to consumers across a broad range 
of products while improving profi tability in a very 
competitive market place.
 We have one of the largest UK sourcing offi ces 
in the Far East. Products we buy from overseas 
account for over £1.8bn of Group sales, more than 
half of which is now sourced directly from factories, 
generating signifi cant savings by eliminating agents 
and other intermediaries.
 Our supplier and stock management structure 
in the UK and overseas allow us to source low-cost 
products in suffi cient quantities while containing 
our stock exposure risk. Argos customers, in par-
ticular, value our ability to locate exclusive products 
and advantageous quantities of in-demand items, 
especially at peak shopping periods.

Shared infrastructure and logistics expertise 
The Group’s investment in a shared infrastructure 
and logistics expertise for both retail brands makes 
our business effi cient and resilient in challenging 
market conditions.
 Argos and Homebase derive signifi cant com-
petitive advantage from their ability to leverage 
a shared infrastructure that supports their brand 
propositions, improves cost effi ciency and accel-
erates profi table routes to growth. This strength 
allows both brands to enter new product categories 
quickly and cost effectively and build market share 
more rapidly than their peers. 
 Over a number of years we have made signifi cant 
investment in home delivery and believe that this 
gives us a unique advantage over competitors who 
do not have our scale or expertise. Argos Direct 
is the UK’s largest ‘two-man’ delivery operation, 
making four million deliveries a year. All Argos 
products are available for home delivery, as is a 
growing proportion of the Homebase range. The 
scale of our operation means that our costs are 
low and we are therefore able to charge a highly 
competitive fl at fee for delivery, regardless of size, 
quantity or destination.
 By being flexible and efficient, our delivery 
operation gives our customers exactly what they 
want. We offer a choice of three daily delivery slots 
for bulky products, make weekend and evening 
deliveries and will also dispose of old appliances and 
beds. Our delivery success rate is 98% and we are 
targeting improvements to capture the balance.

Sales Argos makes via 
the internet.

£900m

Growth in internet 
Check & Reserve sales.

+50%
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Our competitors 
The Group faces competition from many sources. 
Our competitors include:

  Established national specialists, such as B&Q, 
Wickes and Focus in home improvement, 
Currys and Comet in consumer electronics and 
domestic appliances, MFI and IKEA in furniture, 
Woolworths and Toys R Us in toys, H. Samuel 
in jewellery and Woolworths and Wilkinsons 
across broader general merchandise

  Supermarkets, such as Tesco, J Sainsbury and 
ASDA, which have been growing share in 
certain parts of the non-food, non-clothing 
market, building on their regular footfall and 
the increased space given to these ranges

  Online retailers such as Amazon.co.uk, who 
represent a small but growing share of the 
non-food, non-clothing market

  Specialist independents, such as regional and 
local chains selling single product ranges such 
as toys and jewellery.

We expect our markets to remain highly competi-
tive in the future. Yet the barriers to entry for new 
market entrants are high, particularly in relation to 
establishing sourcing and distribution operations on 
the scale required to be competitive in the long term. 
As we have demonstrated at Argos and Homebase, 
economies of scale are key to generating attractive 
customer propositions, as well as operational cost 
benefi ts for the Group.

A winning team
The heart of our business is our 53,000 colleagues, 
all of whom are focused on meeting the needs of 
our customers. At every level of our business, they 
share a common commitment to getting things 
right first time, being friendly and efficient and 
providing good customer service in our stores, over 
the telephone, online and in customers’ homes.
 The Group is led by a strong management team 
that combines long-term experience of the organisa-
tion with service in the wider retail sector. The high 
levels of retail expertise within our retail brands 
and Group operations contribute to the Group’s 
consistently high levels of performance relative to the 
rest of the UK retail sector. We encourage professional 
skills and the career progress of our colleagues through 
targeted learning and development to ensure that the 
Group is always well equipped to deal with change.

Note: All market positions are for calendar year 2007 and by retail sales except for jewellery, which is measured by volume.

Home enhancement

Housewares   1 £9.1bn

Furniture   1 £8.6bn

Home improvement (DIY/fi tted kitchens/bathrooms)   2 £11.5bn

Horticulture, garden furniture and outdoor living   2 £3.2bn

    Group Market
Product markets Argos Homebase position size

General merchandise

Small domestic appliances   1 £1.4bn

Consumer electronics   2 £15.5bn

Large domestic appliances   3 £4.0bn

Toys   1 £1.9bn

Jewellery   1 £3.4bn

Sports and leisure equipment   1 £1.2bn
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Growth through increasing market share in 
targeted large product markets

  Capitalising upon the strength of our retail 
brands to identify opportunities in product 
markets, particularly large, fragmented markets

  Utilising the inherent fl exibility of the Argos 
and Homebase retail formats

  Using shared infrastructure effi ciently to 
make products available to customers quickly 
and easily.

The Group has become the number two in the growth 
market of consumer electronics, with Argos clearly 
demonstrating the strength of its customer offer 
with excellent sales in areas such as video games 
systems, LCD TVs and ‘satnav’. ‘Big ticket’ categories 
such as furniture and white goods are likely to exhibit 
more diffi cult conditions due to the weakening in the 
housing market and general consumer confi dence; 
however, the Group will capitalise on the combined 
buying scale, a market-leading home delivery 
infrastructure, new product presentations and its 
in-house fi nancial services operation to continue to 
drive market share growth. Homebase also expects 
to continue its market share progress in kitchens, and 
Argos in the sports and leisure market.
 At the same time as targeting share growth in
‘big ticket’ categories, emphasis will still be placed 
on maintaining strong positions in ‘smaller ticket’ 
categories. Such categories remain key to the over-
all performance of the Group, given that in both 
businesses average basket values are approximately 
£20 to £30.

Growth through leveraging purchasing scale

  Building upon market-leading positions by 
enhancing and developing the product range 
and offering in core areas

  Using shared scale and expertise in sourcing 
and logistics and joint product ranges to 
provide value for money and wider choice.

Purchasing scale continues to be leveraged with 
particular benefi t from the Group-wide overseas 
buying operations. Buying directly from overseas has 
grown to 31% of Group sales, of which 18%, or over 
£1bn, is directly sourced from manufacturers, with 
the balance being purchased via overseas agents. 
Over 7,500 product lines are sourced directly via our 
overseas buying offi ces, and these are spread across 
the majority of the Group’s product categories. 
While cost pressures may build, such as from raw 
material prices or from foreign exchange rates, this 
will impact the market generally and Home Retail 
Group will utilise its substantial scale, skills and 
direct control over its supply chain to continue to 
extend advantage over its competitors and provide 
further benefi t to its customers.
 A continuing programme is driving wider cost 
synergies across the combined Group. Areas of 
focus include corporate procurement, media buying, 
IT services and property management. There has also 
been increased focus on the distribution infrastructure 
across the Group. Examples of benefi ts include 
combined fl eet purchasing, shared backhaul (vehicles 
returning from store deliveries with collections 
from nearby suppliers) and relocating certain Argos 
Direct outbases to other Group facilities.

Group growth strategy
Th e Group has a clear agenda to deliver 
long-term growth. We will leverage 
our purchasing scale, retail brands and 
multi-channel approach to grow market 
share in key growth categories within 
the general merchandise market.

Market position in furniture, 
housewares, small domestic 
appliances, toys, jewellery, and 
sports and leisure equipment.

No.1

Overseas buying as a 
percentage of Group sales.

31%
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Growth through expanding the store networks

  Opening approximately 30 Argos stores 
per year

  Opening approximately 10 Homebase stores 
per year. 

Both Argos and Homebase regularly review their 
‘extent of chain’ across the UK and Irish markets and 
will continue their new store opening programmes 
of around 30 Argos stores and 10 Homebase stores 
a year. Confi dence in the Argos opening programme 
comes, in particular, because of its increased product 
choice that captures a wider share of customer 
spend in a catchment and its success in both high 
street and out-of-town locations. Confi dence in 
the Homebase opening programme comes from 
its now broader home enhancement offer and its 
successful smaller store format which allows it to 
enter smaller catchments and frequently be the 
leading customer offer in categories including core 
DIY, garden and showroom. Growth is also expected 
to be achieved from continuing to develop formats 
and store presentations to meet the changing 
needs of customers.

Growth through extending and exploiting multi-
channel leadership

  Driving incremental sales growth over 
and above that achieved through new 
store openings

  Applying a customer-focused, fully-integrated 
approach to ensure that whether customers 
shop with Argos in-store, online or over the 
phone, they are able to fi nd, order and receive 
goods seamlessly across the different channels

  Leveraging Group skills, scale and infrastructure 
to support the Homebase proposition.

The leadership of Argos in fully integrated multi-
channel convenience continues to build, demon-
strated by 37% of its sales now being transacted 
across more than one channel. In particular, Argos 
Check & Reserve is unique in its functionality, scale 
and effi ciency. With its online presence being well 
established, well invested and generating £900m of 
sales in the last year, Argos sees the internet as a further 
key growth opportunity and one that is signifi cantly 
enhanced by its physical store presence for additional 
customer convenience.
 Homebase has embarked on further multi-
channel opportunities and continues to benefi t 
from the scale and expertise of Argos. Homebase 
utilises the in-house cost advantage of Argos Direct, 
the UK’s largest home deliverer of bulky products. Its 
recently relaunched website will also provide custom-
ers with expanded choice and improved information 
and functionality, while the ‘Furniture and Home’ 
catalogue, which brings together many of the key 
elements of the Homebase customer proposition, 
was rolled out to all stores in January 2008.

‘Both Argos and Homebase will 
continue to extend their multi-channel 
routes to market by increasing sales 
via the internet and catalogues.’
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Group’s key strengths:

1.  The market leader

2.  Two strong retail brands

3.  Great choice and value

4.  Integrated multi-channel capability

5.  Purchasing, sourcing and supply chain strength

6.  Shared infrastructure and logistics expertise

7.  A winning team

Home Retail Group’s position
The Group’s key strengths mean we are well equipped 
for the future.
 Our strong retail brands, multi-channel and 
multi-format offering, extensive product choice and 
competitive pricing, mean we are well positioned 
to trade through any downturn and benefi t from 
renewed consumer confi dence through the cycle.
 We have leading positions in multiple product 
markets yet with substantial headroom for growth 
in many categories. Fragmented markets provide 
growth opportunities and we expect to take market 
share from weaker competitors and to benefi t from 
any market consolidation that ensues. 
 Our retail brands are well established but continue 
to evolve to meet changing customer preferences. 
Our product range is constantly expanding. Our supply 
chain is highly effi cient and cost effective. 
 With all the key determinants for success in place, 
we expect to emerge in the long run as a stronger 
competitor in a more consolidated market.

Consumer spending
The biggest factor affecting the Group’s short-term 
performance is likely to be UK consumer spending.
 Retail market conditions are likely to be challeng-
ing in the short term. The rising costs of essential 
household bills, driven by inflationary pressures, 
mean that discretionary spending will be squeezed. 
The current instability in the credit markets is also 
likely to constrain consumer spending and confi-
dence, which may affect bigger ticket, home-related 
purchases in particular.
 However, while volume and value growth rates 
are likely to be impacted in most product markets, 
consumers will still want new products as tastes 
and technology change, or they need to replace 
many existing household items. 

Market growth
Although retail conditions are likely to be challenging 
in the short term, the longer-term outlook for market 
growth is positive. We expect continued growth in 
the general merchandise and home enhancement 
market due to the following factors:

  Population growth and an increasing number 
of households

  Rising overall household disposable income

  Technology change and new product 
development.

Market consolidation
The UK retail market is undergoing significant 
change. This is in part driven by the slowdown in 
consumer spending but is underpinned by an overall 
structural shift in favour of more general and large 
scale retailers like Home Retail Group.
 The market remains competitive. In the current 
trading conditions, factors such as scale, value and 
cost management are likely to be some of the key 
determinants of long-term success.
 Where product markets are fragmented, an 
element of consolidation is inevitable. The most 
successful retailers will be those who can offer 
the consumer a differentiated service or shopping 
experience at a competitive price.

Factors affecting performance
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Argos has one of the largest 

product ranges of any home and general 

merchandise retailer in the UK 

and Ireland.
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A brand icon.
Argos is one of the UK’s best 
known retail brands. By off ering 
customers a unique blend of 
choice, value and convenience, 
Argos has become the UK’s leading 
general merchandise retailer.
Argos offers customers a catalogue of over 18,000 product 
lines that are available across all order and delivery channels. 
By reinvesting buying and supply chain effi ciencies in lower 
catalogue prices, Argos continues to deliver outstanding 
value for customers. The integration of over 700 stores with 
our website and telephone channels means that the Argos 
shopping experience has never been more convenient.

 Pg 25. Performance. 
Sales made across more than 
one channel grew to 37%. 

 Pg 29. Financial review.
Benchmark operating profi t 
increased by 16% to a record 
£376m.

 Pg 24. Operational review.
Reincluded lines are 4% 
cheaper on average in the 
Spring/Summer 2008 catalogue.  

 Pg 24. Operational review. 
Over 14,000 products can 
be reserved from home for 
immediate store collection.

Where can I fi nd more information?
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Argos operational review
The UK’s leading general merchandise retailer
Argos has further strengthened its position of market 
leadership with sales growth of nearly 4% to £4.3bn 
in the year. Sales benefi ted in particular from an 
excellent performance in one of the market’s fastest 
growing product categories, video games systems, 
and Argos extended market share in other fast-
growing technology areas of LCD TVs and ‘satnav’. 
Share was also gained in other more subdued or 
declining markets, notably pre-pay mobile phones, 
digital cameras, white goods and toys. Markets were 
diffi cult in older technology areas such as audio 
and VCR/DVD, while the jewellery market also 
remained diffi cult for Argos albeit on an improving 
trend to recent years.

Choice further expanded
The current Spring/Summer catalogue has been 
expanded to a record 18,500 lines. This is around 
1,800 more lines than the equivalent edition last 
year, following a similar 1,500 line step-change 
in the preceding Autumn/Winter 2007 catalogue. 
Today’s customer offer includes 10,400 catalogue 
lines available for immediate collection in virtually 
all 707 stores, an additional 3,700 lines available 
in the Argos Extra stores and 4,400 lines of large 
products that are for home delivery only.
 Growth in customer choice has been driven 
by range extensions in over 50 categories and 
around 20 new product areas. Significant areas 
of range expansion include children’s bedroom 
furniture, eco-friendly products, fi tness and outdoor 
pursuits clothing and accessories, and many areas 
of technology. The latest catalogue has also seen 
further expansion of the Argos Quick Guide pages, 
particularly within technology and furniture. Choice 
from leading premium third-party brands is further 
supported by ‘brand shops’ within the catalogue for 
manufacturers including Apple, Dyson and Sony.

As the UK’s leading general 
merchandise retailer, Argos provides 
a unique off er of choice, value and 
convenience that continues to grow 
in popularity with consumers.

Value further extended
Argos has continued to demonstrate its ability to 
lower prices for its customers. In the Autumn/Winter 
catalogue, prices on reincluded lines were down by 
approximately 5%, one of the highest ever levels of 
reduction and partly driven by the favourable dollar 
exchange rate environment. In the current catalogue, 
the average price reduction across some 8,000 
reincluded lines is approximately 4%. The ongoing 
move to more direct buying of overseas product 
has been a key driver of lower prices; around 32% 
of sales are on this basis, of which more than half is 
now directly sourced from the manufacturer.
 As the market leader in many categories and 
often with as wide a choice as a specialist, Argos 
presents ranges that offer entry price point products 
through to premium products and brands. To 
strengthen further its position in markets such as 
small domestic appliances, consumer electronics 
and housewares, Argos has introduced its own 
Argos Value Range of products, with prices starting 
as low as £2. 

Argos business review
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Argos performance

Defi nition:
Income received for goods and services.

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements.

ARGOS SALES (£M) – CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS

Argos’ sales grew 3.8% to £4.3bn in 
the year. Sales benefi ted in particular 
from an excellent performance in 
one of the market’s fastest growing 
product categories, video games 
systems, and it extended market share 
in other fast-growing technology areas 
of LCD TVs and ‘satnav’. 

Defi nition:
Total number of stores at year-end. Argos Extra 
fully-stocked in stores are those that carry the 
full range of Argos Extra product lines.

Source:
Measured internally. 

ARGOS STORES

Argos has opened a net 151 stores 
over the past four years with an 
increasing proportion opened as 
Argos Extra fully stocked-in stores. 
A net 27 stores were opened during 
the year, comprising 31 gross 
openings, four closures and three 
relocations. 

Defi nition:
Annual percentage change in sales.
Like-for-like sales are calculated on stores that 
have been open for more than a year; net new 
space contribution to sales change is calculated 
on stores that have opened and closed during 
the year. 

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements/measured internally.

ARGOS SALES TRENDS (% CHANGE) 

Like-for-like sales growth of 0.7% was 
a successful result in a toughening UK 
consumer environment. The net 27 
new stores added an additional 3.1% 
to sales, resulting in total growth of 
3.8% for the year. Whilst like-for-like 
sales are impacted by factors external 
to the Group, our store opening 
programme will continue to contribute 
to a positive net new space growth in 
the current year. 

Defi nition:
Total number of lines in the main Spring/
Summer Argos catalogue.

Source:
Measured internally.

NUMBER OF LINES IN THE MAIN 
CATALOGUE (SPRING/SUMMER) 

The current Spring/Summer 
catalogue has been expanded to a 
record 18,500 lines. This is around 
1,800 more lines than the equivalent 
catalogue last year. The catalogue, 
now in its 69th edition, remains 
central to the Argos proposition. 

Defi nition:
Operating profi t and margin before amortisation 
of acquisition intangibles, store impairment 
charges, exceptional items and costs related to 
demerger incentive schemes.

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements.

BENCHMARK OPERATING PROFIT (£M) 
AND MARGIN (%) – CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS

Benchmark operating profi t for the 
52 weeks to 1 March 2008 grew 16% 
to a record level of £376.2m as a 
combined result of sales growth, gross 
margin expansion and exceptional cost 
management.

Defi nition:
Percentage of sales across more than one 
channel. There are three ordering channels: 
the internet, phone or store and two fulfi lment 
channels, store or home delivery.

Source:
Measured internally.

% SALES ACROSS MORE 
THAN ONE CHANNEL 

Multi-channel sales increased to 
represent 37% of total Argos sales. 
Within this Check & Reserve remains 
the fastest growing channel, and now 
accounts for 15% of sales. Check & 
Reserve offers customers the ability 
to reserve products for immediate 
collection in-store at no additional 
cost. In the last four years, total Argos 
multi-channel sales have grown from 
27% to 37%, offering customers the 
fl exibility to seamlessly mix and match 
channels to suit their needs. 
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Convenience further enhanced
Superior customer convenience continues to be 
driven by Argos’ fully-integrated multi-channel 
leadership position. A combined 37% of all Argos’ 
sales are now ordered or fulfi lled across more than 
one channel. Within this, total internet orders 
grew nearly one-third to around £900m and now 
represent 21% of all sales. Sales of over £500m 
were from internet orders for pick-up in-store, an 
increase of 50% in the year. The popularity of this 
market-leading Check & Reserve service – either 
online, by phone or by text – is such that, on 
average, over 40,000 reservations are collected 
daily. Check & Reserve accounted for 15% of Argos’ 
sales overall, and reached as high as 25% during the 
Christmas weeks.
 Argos also continues to enhance its website 
functionality. As part of a three-year e-commerce 
programme to consolidate on its market-leading 
position, www.argos.co.uk was relaunched in Sep-
tember 2007 with a complete upgrade to both 
design and operation. The major changes included 
greatly enhanced site navigation, search function-
ality and better product and service information. 
The upgrade also saw increased transaction security 
and the implementation of promotional voucher 
capability ahead of Christmas.
 The success of Argos’ multi-channel model has 
also led to developments in the marketing mix. 
Email campaigns have become more sophisticated, 
and now include customer segmentation, dynamic 
product content to further meet specifi c customer 
needs, as well as special offers targeting active but 
low frequency customers. Argos has built an email 
database of over fi ve million customers, one of the 
largest in the UK.

“Th e convenience of our unique 
Check & Reserve system has 
proved popular with a large 
number of our customers.”
Sara Weller, Managing Director, Argos

Joe Horvath and James Palliser, 

Argos Home Delivery Crew, 
Marsh Leys distribution centre

James and Joe are brilliant 

at getting customer deliveries 

right fi rst time.

Kiosk technology brings together store format and 
multi-channel developments. Over the year, the 
number of stores with kiosks doubled; there are 
now 1,800 in place across all UK stores. The physical 
positioning of kiosks, in-store staff on-hand at 
peak times to assist customer awareness, together 
with the growth in Check & Reserve, have led kiosk 
participation of in-store sales to rise from an average 
of 12% to 17%.

Store portfolio expansion and development
The total number of stores increased by a net 27 
to reach 707 at the end of the year. Of the 31 gross 
openings, 13 were stores in new catchments while 
18 were openings in an existing catchment. Four 
stores closed in the year; in each case these were 
Call & Collect stores where there are now stocked-
in stores open in the catchment; only six Call & 
Collect stores remain. Three store relocations were 
also completed in the year.
 The proportion of Argos Extra stores also 
continues to increase. There are now 278 fully 
stocked-in Extra stores representing 39% of the 
portfolio; virtually all new stores were opened 
as Extras and an additional 10 conversions were 
completed in the year. There are also a further 71 
stores that now carry an edited selection of the 
Argos Extra range; these ‘partial extra’ stores provide 
customers with a choice of even more products to 
take home immediately and generate sales from 
better-utilised space. The sales penetration of Extra 
ranges is low single-digit in ordered-in stores, while 
fully stocked-in stores achieve a low double-digit 
level on average, demonstrating the benefi t of 
Argos immediate fulfi lment model.

Alice Boaten, 

Store Manager, Argos Balham
Since arriving at Balham, Alice 

has driven performance in a 

number of areas and improved 

colleague engagement.

 

Tina England, Help Desk Team, 
Magna Park distribution centre

Tina’s dedication to getting 

things done earned her two 

‘Simply Th ank You’ awards 

during the year.
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Cost effi ciency
A key feature of the successful profi t outcome for 
the year has been exceptional cost management 
throughout the business. Initiatives have included 
carrying increased numbers of product lines in-
store for immediate collection, booking delivery 
slots at the point of order, new processes for 
handling deliveries of multiple products, achieving 
production effi ciencies in fl yer publications and 
improving the transport methods for deliveries 
to stores. Each of these contributed towards cost 
productivity, while dealing effectively with the late 
Christmas sales pattern also provided an additional 
productivity benefi t.
 There have also been distribution network 
efficiency improvements. The opening of the new 
purpose-built direct importing facility at Kettering 
allowed the Argos Direct imported lines previously 
managed at the Corby facility to be transferred for 
greater scale benefi t. In turn, this facilitated further 
consolidation of product ranges into Corby, allowing 
a rented facility at Wolverhampton to be closed.
 In the new fi nancial year, continued optimisa-
tion will see the least effi cient regional distribution 
centre (RDC) at Castleford relocate the majority 
of its operations to the fi ve remaining RDCs. The 
centralised jewellery warehousing operation that 
also runs from Castleford will be transferred to a 
new, smaller, dedicated facility.

There are additional store format trials in place. 
In densely urbanised areas, the lack of suitable 
locations for standard-sized Argos stores has 
led to under-representation in these areas. Over 
the last year, Argos has trialled a smaller format 
store and is now refining the model to reduce the 
customer area further and edit the stocked-in 
range while still meeting customer requirements 
for wide choice and immediate fulfilment. Other 
format trials include displaying furniture room sets 
in some larger stores in order to drive the quality 
perception and an improved awareness of the 
breadth of the furniture offer, and a series of store 
presentation and service trials to test opportunities 
to increase the jewellery and watch participation 
in relevant store locations by achieving a customer 
re-appraisal of the overall offer.
 Analysis of the ‘extent of chain’ supports multiple 
years of new store growth. Argos has opened nearly 
250 stores, or an average of approximately 30 stores a 
year, since 2000. In assessing future potential, analysis 
takes into account the substantially expanded range, 
the fact that Argos trades successfully from both 
traditional high street and out-of-town retail park 
formats and the potential opportunities in specifi c 
areas such as London and the Republic of Ireland. 
Taking all this into account, Argos currently sees an 
extent of chain that supports continuing to open 
around 30 stores a year.

We print around 40 million 
Argos catalogues each year, 
reaching 70% of all UK 
households.

“Argos currently sees the opportunity to 
continue opening around 30 stores a year.”
Sara Weller, Managing Director, Argos
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Sales in the 52 weeks to 1 March 2008 increased by 3.8% in total; like-for-like sales grew by 
0.7%. There was exceptional growth in video games systems throughout the year, while further 
strong growth in fl at panel TV sales had moderated by the end of the year. Good growth was 
achieved in ‘satnav’, mobile phones, digital cameras and accessories. Older technology areas of 
audio, VCR/DVD and landline phones were weaker. Furniture and homewares categories showed 
signs of more diffi cult market conditions towards the end of the year.
 The contribution to sales from net new space was 3.1%. Next year’s store opening 
programme is expected to produce a contribution of between 3% and 4%.
 Gross margin was ahead by approximately 50 basis points for the year. In the fi rst half some 
foreign exchange benefi ts were retained within the business; in the second half these benefi ts, 
together with ongoing supply chain gains, were fully passed on to customers with a greater level 
of investment in lower prices over the peak trading period.
 Operating costs grew in total by approximately 2%, of which underlying inflation was 
approximately 3%. Non-infl ationary costs therefore declined by approximately 1%, representing 
an exceptional fi ve percentage points of productivity when compared to the level of total 
sales growth. This was achieved by continued cost control programmes and leverage from the 
ongoing new space programme. While further cost control and effi ciency measures are planned, 
a signifi cantly lower level of productivity gains is anticipated in the new fi nancial year.
 Benchmark operating profi t for the 52 weeks to 1 March 2008 grew 16% to a record 
£376.2m as a combined result of sales growth, gross margin expansion led by short-term 
external factors, and exceptional cost management.

Argos fi nancial review

+16%

Growth in Argos benchmark 
operating profi t (2008: 
£376m – 2007: £325m).

Sales (£m) 4,320.9 4,164.0

Benchmark operating profi t (£m) 376.2 325.0

Benchmark operating margin  8.7%  7.8%

Like-for-like change in sales 0.7% 2.4%
Net new space contribution to sales change 3.1% 5.5%
Total sales change 3.8% 7.9%

Gross margin movement Up c.50bps  c.0bps

Benchmark operating profi t change 16% 9%

Number of stores at year-end  707 680
Of which Argos Extra stocked-in 278 238

3 March 200752 weeks to 1 March 2008
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Our products cover every 

room in the house and 

the garden: including DIY, decorating, 

kitchens, bathrooms, furniture, 

housewares and gardening.
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Changing perceptions. 
Homebase is the UK’s second 
largest home improvement retailer, 
but with a customer off er that’s 
diff erentiated from the competition.
Homebase sells a broad range of home enhancement products 
and services alongside traditional DIY products and materials. It is 
targeting a wide range of consumers with an inspirational selection 
of home merchandise. 
 Inside an easy-to-shop store environment, mezzanine fl oor 
displays are giving customers fresh ideas about what’s possible for 
their homes. The www.homebase.co.uk website and the ‘Furniture 
and Home’ catalogue offer further ways to access the product range. 
Home delivery is available across a growing number of products.

 Pg 33. Performance. 
Sales progress was constrained 
by weakening product markets. 

 Pg 37. Financial review.
Gross margin progress 
contributed to a better relative 
profi t performance.

 Pg 32. Operational review.
The ‘Furniture and Home’ 
Catalogue has been extended 
to all stores.

 Pg 32. Operational review. 
The rollout of installation 
services boosted sales of 
fi tted kitchens.

Where can I fi nd more information?
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Homebase is positioning itself as the 
UK’s leading home enhancement retailer.

Homebase business review

Homebase operational review
Trading strategy
The DIY ‘sheds’ market has seen fl at sales over the 
year, with a further decline in sales excluding net 
new space. Homebase’s like-for-like performance 
this year has lagged the wider market, driven by its 
greater exposure to the seasonals market which 
suffered because of adverse weather conditions 
during the first half of the year. Over the latter 
stages of the year, Homebase’s markets in general 
began to show evidence of the onset of the con-
sumer slowdown. In these volatile and increasingly 
challenging trading conditions, Homebase has per-
formed well operationally; most importantly, its 
trading strategy through the year has been to con-
tinue gross margin progress.
 Sourcing and supply chain gains have driven 
the gross margin progress. By leveraging the scale 
and expertise of the Group, Homebase has made 
further excellent progress with more product 
being directly bought from overseas. Some 28% of 
sales are now on this basis and over half of this is 
being sourced directly from the manufacturer. A 
continuation of this strategy is expected to deliver 
further gross margin benefi ts with the aim of 
increasing the gross margin by approximately 100 
basis points in each of the next two years, although 
this is clearly dependent on the trading and foreign 
exchange environments. 

Customer offer development
Homebase has produced a resilient performance in 
the ‘big ticket’ category with excellent growth in a 
broadly fl at kitchen market, as well as share being 
held in a weakening furniture market. The national 
roll-out of the installation service has been the key 
driver of the performance in kitchens. The service 
has driven both incremental product sales and 
supported sales of higher value ranges. Customer 
satisfaction and recommendation levels continue 
to be very high. Some 600 kitchen displays in 
around 100 stores will be refreshed in the new 
fi nancial year.
 Ongoing range reviews also continue to drive 
category performances. Key range developments 
that supported a good performance in homewares 
included textiles, cookshop and home accessory 
areas, while wider ranges of tiling, flooring and 
lighting have also recently been developed. Around 
40% of the garden power range is new for 2008, 
and the Homebase ‘Powerbase’ tools range has 
been relaunched with new-look products and 
packaging. The rolling programme of range reviews 
will continue through the new fi nancial year.
 Supporting the broader home enhancement 
offer, a single ‘Furniture and Home’ catalogue 
has been made available in all stores, replacing 
the smaller ‘Furniture Extra’ brochure that was in 
around two-thirds of the portfolio. Its increased 
232 pages present over 1,500 furniture lines and 
a further 800 home-related accessories. The 
coordinated ranges and ‘create the look’ features in 
the catalogue are also presented through in-store 
displays in two-thirds of the store portfolio.
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Defi nitions:
Income received for goods and services.

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements.

HOMEBASE SALES (£M) 

Sales in the 52 weeks to 1 March 2008 
declined by 1.6% in total; like-for-like 
sales declined by 4 .1%. A more diffi cult 
overall environment through the second 
half saw like-for-likes worsen, with 
the impact broadly similar across the 
business. One exception was kitchens, 
which has been a consistently strong 
category throughout the year; there 
were also good performances within 
areas of homewares and decorating.

Defi nitions:
Total number of stores at year-end. Mezzanine stores 
contain a mezzanine selling fl oor which is typically 
used to display kitchens, bathrooms and furniture.

Source:
Measured internally.

NUMBER OF STORES 

At year-end, Homebase traded from 331 
stores including 12 of the acquired Focus 
DIY stores. The mezzanine conversion 
programme is now largely complete with 
the majority of stores that can support 
a mezzanine already having one. New 
stores will continue to be built with a 
mezzanine fl oor where possible. 

Defi nitions:
Annual percentage change in sales. Like-for-like sales 
are calculated on stores that have been open for 
more than a year, net new space contribution to sales 
change is calculated on stores that have opened and 
closed during the year.  

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements/measured internally.

HOMEBASE SALES TRENDS (% CHANGE) 

Like-for-like sales declined 4.1%. First 
half like-for-like sales declined 2.5%, 
while there was a 6.0% reduction 
in the second half. The second half 
performance is refl ective of an overall 
diffi cult trading environment which is 
expected to continue into the current 
year. There was a 2.5% contribution 
from net new stores, with the opening 
programme being back-end weighted.

Defi nitions:
Annual sales divided by year-end total selling space. 

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements/measured internally.

HOMEBASE SALES PER SQUARE FOOT (£)

Sales per square foot based on total 
year-end selling space declined to £102. 
The reduction over the past four years 
is driven by a deteriorating DIY market 
and is impacted by store mezzanine and 
garden centre space which is dilutive to 
sales densities. 

Defi nitions:
Operating profi t and margin before amortisation of 
acquisition intangibles, store impairment charges, 
exceptional items and costs related to demerger 
incentive schemes.

Source:
Audited fi nancial statements.

BENCHMARK OPERATING PROFIT (£M) AND 
MARGIN (%) – CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Benchmark operating profi t for the 52 
weeks to 1 March 2008 declined 16% 
to £45.1m as a result of the decline in 
underlying sales, which was partially 
offset by further gross margin progress.

Homebase performance
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Homebase and the Eden Project
Homebase has begun a partnership with Cornwall’s 
‘Eden Project’ in a year-long study into sustainable 
living. This will analyse in detail consumers’ energy, 
recycling, waste and water usage, in order to direct 
practical lifestyle changes. Homebase’s Spend & 
Save database was used to canvass families and 
ask for volunteers for the project. Data from the 
study will be used to develop future ranges as part 
of Homebase’s ongoing ‘Ecohome’ environmental 
campaign to help customers make informed pur-
chasing decisions.

Store portfolio expansion and development
Excluding stores acquired from Focus DIY, 14 
new stores were opened, fi ve were closed and a 
further four were relocated. Of the newly opened 
stores, the majority were in the successful smaller 
format consisting of less than 25,000 square feet 
internal ground fl oor area (compared to a portfolio 
average of 36,000), and typically feature an 8,000 
to 10,000 square foot mezzanine floor and a 

 

“Our newly opened stores 
are designed to provide an 
unrivalled customer off er 
in smaller catchments.”
Paul Loft, Managing Director, Homebase

Paul Hill, Store Manager, 
Homebase Weston-super-Mare
Paul was named Retail Week’s 

‘Store Manager of the Year’ 

for 2008 for his all-round 

management skills.

Kerry Brayshaw, 

Category Manager, Garden 
Maintenance, Homebase

Kerry is one of our leaders 

of the future, having been 

promoted within both Argos 

and Homebase.

Dave West, 
Kitchen Installer, Homebase

Dave is part of the expert 

installation team that’s helping 

Homebase customers to 

enhance their homes.

similar sized garden centre. These smaller stores 
are signifi cantly differentiated, remain authoritative 
across the broader home enhancement market, and 
are designed to provide an unrivalled customer offer 
in smaller catchments. ‘Extent of chain’ analysis 
supports multiple years of new store growth, with 
a programme in place of continuing to open around 
10 new stores a year.
 The acquired Focus DIY stores will add further 
new space leverage. By the year-end, Homebase 
had already relaunched 12 of the acquired stores; 
the remaining nine of the net 21 stores to be 
integrated have either opened since the year-end or 
will do so in the coming weeks.
 Further store portfolio investment opportunities 
exist. In approximately 70 stores that have received 
minimal or no investment for a number of years, 
trials to test a low-cost refurbishment continue 
to produce the required sales uplifts. As previously 
indicated, plans will be further developed once the 
Focus DIY conversion programme and the 2008 
peak trading season are completed.
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‘There are now over 10,000 
Homebase products to 
research online with around 
a third of these available for 
home delivery.’

Operational improvements
There is a continued emphasis on operational 
improvements throughout the Homebase business 
and, as part of Home Retail Group, there has been 
a series of step-changes in improving the retail 
basics. The ongoing ‘300 to 1’ programme is 
driving consistency of store operations, leading to 
reduced costs while benefi ting customer service. 
This and other programmes have continued to 
improve fundamental operational measures around 
customer experience, employee engagement and 
on-shelf availability.
 Homebase has also made distribution network 
improvements. It completed the relocation of its 
national distribution centre for small items and 
high-value products to a new 350,000 square foot 
site at Wellingborough. The four-month migration 
programme required the relocation of around 10,000 
product lines from approximately 300 suppliers.

Multi-channel development
A relaunch of www.homebase.co.uk was completed 
in March 2008. Signifi cant improvements include 
enhanced navigation and search, better promotional 
capabilities, improved ‘how to’ and buyer guides, 
and the launch of an online 3D kitchen planner to 
further support the success of kitchen sales and 
installations. There are now over 10,000 Homebase 
products to research from home, with around a 
third of these available for home delivery. The site 
also continues to embed relevant products from 
the Argos product pool. The new site supports the 
Homebase store card and Spend & Save loyalty 
card offerings. Additional transactional ranges and 
further developments are planned in the new 
fi nancial year.

Homebase has become the 
fi rst national DIY retailer to 
achieve the Government 
TrustMark Award for its 
kitchen installation service.
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Homebase fi nancial review
Sales in the 52 weeks to 1 March 2008 declined by 1.6% in total; like-for-like sales declined by 4.1%. 
Weakness in the fi rst half of the year was driven by adverse weather conditions over the May to 
August period, with non-seasonal categories generally stable. A more diffi cult overall environment 
through the second half saw like-for-likes worsen, with the impact broadly similar across the 
business. One exception was kitchens, which has been a consistently strong category throughout 
the year; there were also good performances within areas of homewares and decorating.
 The contribution to sales from net new space was 2.5%. Next year’s store opening 
programme is expected to produce a contribution of between 3% and 4%, with an approximate 
5% contribution to come from the acquired Focus DIY stores.
 Gross margin was ahead by approximately 250 basis points for the year. Ongoing supply 
chain initiatives together with foreign exchange benefi ts were the principal drivers of this 
improvement over the year, with an additional benefi t in the fi rst half from the improvements 
in stock management procedures.
 Operating costs grew in total by approximately 5%, of which underlying inflation was 
approximately 3%. Non-infl ationary cost growth was therefore approximately 2%, principally 
refl ecting the additional investment in new space that was back-end weighted in the year. 
One-off increases in distribution costs as a result of the warehouse relocation, together with 
onerous lease costs on its underperforming stores, were broadly offset by one-off benefi ts 
principally from store-related property transactions in the year. There will be continued cost 
control and containment programmes throughout the business in the new fi nancial year.
 Benchmark operating profi t for the 52 weeks to 1 March 2008 declined 16% to £45.1m as a 
result of the decline in underlying sales, which was partially offset by further gross margin progress.

c.250bps

Gross margin improvement 
(2008: up c.250bps – 2007: 
up c.300bps).

Sales (£m) 1,568.5 1,594.2

Benchmark operating profi t (£m) 45.1 53.4

Benchmark operating margin   2.9% 3.4%

Like-for-like change in sales (4.1%) (1.4%)
Net new space contribution to sales change 2.5% 3.6%
Total sales change (1.6%) 2.2%

Gross margin movement Up c.250bps Up c.300bps

Benchmark operating profi t change (16%) 4%

Number of stores at year-end  331 310
Of which contain a mezzanine fl oor 181 165

Store selling space at year-end (‘000 sq ft)  15,398 14,560
Of which  - garden centre area 3,505 3,304
   - mezzanine fl oor area 1,909 1,776

3 March 200752 weeks to 1 March 2008
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Th e Argos and Homebase store 

cards were used for over four million 

customer transactions last year. 
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Supporting success.
Financial Services makes 
an important contribution 
to the success of the Group 
and its retail brands.
By making everyday products easier for Argos and Homebase 
customers to afford, its credit and insurance offers help to drive 
product sales and maximise profi ts for the Group. Customers 
can apply for credit whether they shop in-store, online or over 
the phone. 

 Pg 41. Performance. 
Store cards funded 10% 
of Argos sales and 5% of 
Homebase sales. 

 Pg 41. Financial review.
Gross store card receivables 
reached £482m.

 Pg 40. Operational review. 
Development of the product 
portfolio continues.

 Pg 40. Operational review.
Credit offers have supported 
growth in the retail brands.

Where can I fi nd more information?
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Financial Services works in conjunction with 
Argos and Homebase to provide their customers 
with the most appropriate credit off ers to drive 
product sales, and to maximise profi t from the 
transaction for Home Retail Group.

Financial Services business review

Financial Services operational review
The store card operations continue to drive retail 
sales. £566m of Group retail sales were funded by 
the store cards, with the penetration rate increasing 
to 8.5%.
 Promotional credit is a key enabler of driving 
gains in ‘big ticket’ categories. Approximately 75% 
of all credit sales were on promotional credit 
terms; the cards offer a range of three, six, nine 
and 12 month ‘buy now, pay later’ plans. The offer 
is also fully multi-channel, with the availability of 
credit being a feature on both www.argos.co.uk and 
www.homebase.co.uk.
 There has been successful expansion of ancillary 
businesses. The joint venture with Barclays Bank 
PLC has seen good take-up of the Argos credit 
card launched in May 2007. Direct insurance 
arrangements have also seen good progress, with 
signifi cant growth in pet insurance in particular.

Financial Services fi nancial review
Financial Services’ fi nancial objective is to achieve 
a return in line with financial services industry 
norms on the revolving (i.e. interest-bearing) 
element of receivables; the provision of promo-
tional credit products is recharged at cost to the 
Argos and Homebase businesses. The benchmark 
operating result of £5.5m for the year therefore 
refl ects this arrangement, with the cost advantage 
versus third-party promotional credit provision 
being recognised in Argos and Homebase bench-
mark operating profi ts.
 Total gross receivables grew by £19m, with a 
£34m increase in store card operations partially 
funded by the £15m reduction in the planned run-off 
of the on-balance sheet personal loans operation.
 There was a small increase in provision levels 
over last year, driven by the run-off of personal 
loans; delinquency rates for the store card operations 
were marginally lower than the prior year. The 
increase in fi nancing costs refl ects the growth in 
receivables as well as a higher internal rate being 
charged to refl ect the movement in funding costs. A 
corresponding benefi t is recognised in Group net 
interest income.

52 weeks to 1 March 2008 3 March 2007

Sales (£m) 95.4 93.2

Benchmark operating profi t before fi nancing costs 25.1 22.8
Financing costs (19.6) (17.8)

Benchmark operating profi t (£m) 5.5 5.0

As at 1 March 2008 3 March 2007

Store card gross receivables 482 448
Personal loans gross receivables 9 24

Total gross receivables 491 472
Provision (59) (55)

Total net receivables 432 417

Provision % of gross receivables 12.0% 11.7%
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Defi nitions:
Total balances outstanding on customer 
store card accounts.

Source:
Measured internally.

GROSS STORE CARD RECEIVABLES (£M)

There was a £34m increase in gross 
store card receivables in the year driven 
by the continued success in the range 
of promotional credit products offered. 
50% of total store card balances are 
revolving.

Defi nitions:
Total number of store card accounts that have had 
monetary activity, either making a sale transaction, 
a payment or having an outstanding balance in the 
last six months. 

Source:
Measured internally.

NUMBER OF ACTIVE STORE CARD 
HOLDERS (’000s)

The total number of active account 
holders grew to 1.1 million. The cards 
offer a range of 3, 6, 9 and 12 month 
‘buy now, pay later’ plans. The offer 
is also fully multi-channel, with the 
availability of credit online being 
a feature on both www.argos.co.uk 
and www.homebase.co.uk.

Financial Services performance

378

448

482

349

04 05 06 07 08

252

8.6

9.4
9.7

8.8

04 05 06 07 08

8.5

4.1

4.7
5.2

3.4

04 05 06 07 08

3.0

765

887

1,044 1,068
1,125

04 05 06 07 08

Argos

Homebase

Defi nitions:
Calculated by dividing store card credit sales 
(including VAT), over total UK retail sales 
(including VAT).

Source:
Measured internally.

% SALES FUNDED BY STORE CARDS

Retail credit penetration has reached 
9.7% at Argos and 5.2% at Homebase, 
supported by a competitive range 
of promotional credit offers. Credit 
offerings are available through each 
of the different channels; application 
can be made and approved in-store, 
online and over the phone. The level 
of sales funded by store cards is higher 
for ‘big ticket’ purchases as the cards 
enhance affordability.

 06 and 07 are on a 52-week pro forma basis
 05 onwards IFRS
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A second opportunity being developed is the 
HomeStore&More out-of-town homewares for-
mat. The Group paid £6.8m to acquire a 33% stake 
in the Irish operator of this format, with the in-
vestment being used to expand the business 
throughout Ireland; three stores were opened in 
the year taking the chain to five, with further 
openings expected in the next 12 months. In terms 
of mainland UK, Home Retail Group is developing 
its own wholly-owned version of the format. The 
fi rst store opened in October 2007 in Aylesbury, 
Buckinghamshire, and a second store opened in 
March 2008 in Cambridge. Further UK stores are 
expected to be added over the next 12 months and 
there are ongoing reviews of potential adaptations 
to the product mix and format.
 The success of both these ventures will continue 
to be monitored over their initial trial phases.

Home Retail Group is developing the Argos retail 
format in India in a strategic partnership arrange-
ment with leading Indian department store retailer 
Shoppers’ Stop and hypermarket format HyperCITY. 
Argos is providing its brand, catalogue and multi-
channel expertise and IT support. The development is 
approximately half-way through an initial trial phase 
and, if successful, would see any future development 
continue under a franchise arrangement.
 The business, trading under the ‘HyperCITY-
Argos’ brand name, is based largely on the existing 
Argos multi-channel proposition. To date, six stores 
have opened in the Mumbai region to support the 
October 2007 launch of the fi rst edition of the 
catalogue which contained 4,700 lines. A number 
of store formats are being tested, including cata-
logue stores similar to those of Argos in the UK, a 
display store showcasing a greater amount of the 
product range, and small stores where stock can be 
ordered for later customer collection. The stores are 
currently supported by a non-transactional website, 
www.hypercityargos.com, a call centre operation 
and a home delivery operation. The second edition 
of the catalogue has recently launched, and the next 
stages of the trial include further stores being added 
and the website becoming fully transactional.

New development opportunities

Central Activities represents the cost of central cor-
porate functions and the investment costs of new
development opportunities. Corporate functions 
costs were held broadly fl at; the overall cost growth 
of £4.8m in the year refl ected the fi rst year of the 
India and HomeStore&More trials. As previously 
announced, during the second year of the trials a 
similar cost of approximately £5m is expected.

Central Activities

3 March 200752 weeks to

Central Activities (£m) (28.8) (24.0)

1 March 2008
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Costs related to demerger incentive schemes
These amounted to £11.7m (2007: £5.8m). As 
previously announced, these costs are expected 
to  amount  to  a  max imum of  £40m,  to  be 
charged to the income statement over the three-
year period commencing from the date of the 
demerger in October 2006, and are excluded from 
benchmark PBT.

Financing fair value remeasurements
Changes in the fair value of certain fi nancial instru-
ments are recognised in the income statement 
within net financing costs. These amounted to 
charges of £9.0m (2007: £0.1m). The increase is 
principally the result of currency translation dif-
ferences on overseas subsidiary balances, with an 
equal and opposite adjustment being recognised as 
a movement in reserves.
 
Financing impact on retirement benefi t balances
The credit through net fi nancing costs in respect of 
the excess of expected return on retirement benefi t 
assets over the interest expense on retirement 
benefi t liabilities amounted to £13.0m (2007 pro 
forma: £12.3m). The current service cost, which 
Home Retail Group believes to be a fairer refl ection 
of the cost of providing retirement benefi ts, is 
already refl ected in benchmark operating profi t.

Profi t before tax
Benchmark profi t before tax grew 15% to £432.9m 
(2007 pro forma: £376.7m). Reported profi t before 
tax was £426.0m (2007: £296.9m).

Taxation
Taxation attributable to benchmark PBT was £138.5m 
(2007 pro forma: £122.1m), representing an effective 
tax rate (excluding joint ventures and associates) of 
32.1% (2007 pro forma: 32.5%). The improvement in 
the effective rate largely refl ects a growth in profi ts 
while the absolute level of disallowable expenditure 
for tax purposes has remained broadly level.
 Taxation attributable to exceptional items 
amounted to a charge of £1.0m (2007: £5.3m). In 
the year being reported there was also an excep-
tional corporation tax credit of £12.6m arising from 
the settlement of a number of historic tax compu-
tations, together with an exceptional deferred tax 
charge of £5.9m relating to the re-estimation of 
qualifying assets. Total exceptional tax in the year 
therefore amounted to a credit of £5.7m.
 The reported effective tax rate was 30.8% 
(2007: 36.9%), representing a total tax expense for 
the period of £131.4m (2007: £109.5m).

Sales and operating profi t
Sales for the Group grew 2.3% to £5,984.8m (2007 
pro forma: £5,851.4m) and benchmark operating 
profit grew 11% to £398.0m (2007 pro forma: 
£359.4m). Group benchmark operating margin was 
6.7% (2007 pro forma: 6.1%). The drivers of this 
performance have been analysed as part of the 
preceding business reviews.

Net interest income
Net interest income was £33.3m (2007 pro forma: 
£16.6m). Third-party net interest income of £13.7m 
(2007 pro forma: expense of £1.2m) was earned on 
the Group’s improved average net cash position. 
A particularly favourable environment for deposit 
rates was also a driver. A further credit of £19.6m 
(2007 pro forma: £17.8m) refl ects the fi nancing 
costs charged within Financial Services’ benchmark 
operating profi t.
 In the prior year, interest costs attributable to 
the GUS capital structure prior to the demerger 
were £46.1m and have been excluded from 2007 
pro forma benchmark PBT.

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures 
and associates
These amounted to an income of £1.6m (2007: 
£0.7m). Within this, there was a £2.8m gain on 
disposal of the Group’s 33% holding in AAGUS, a 
consumer finance company in The Netherlands. 
The residual loss reflects the Group’s share of 
the initial start-up costs incurred by the fi nancial 
services joint venture with Barclays Bank PLC.

Exceptional items
An exceptional pre-tax income of £0.8m was 
recorded for the year. This represents the release of 
a £20.2m accrual in respect of previous GUS-related 
long-term incentive schemes that were settled in 
June 2007, offset by Homebase store impairment 
charges of £10.3m (2007: £4.1m) and costs relating 
to the post-acquisition integration of certain Focus 
DIY stores of £9.1m.
 In the prior year, exceptional pre-tax items also 
included demerger-related costs of £11.3m and a 
charge in relation to the waiver of a loan note due 
from Experian of £7.3m. Within the prior year’s 
net fi nancing costs, £6.9m of exceptional income 
related to the gain made on transfer of an interest 
swap associated with a fi nancing facility novated 
from GUS plc on demerger.

Group fi nancial review

Increase in closing net cash 
(2008: £174m – 2007: £60m).

+£114m 

Increase in benchmark 
pre-tax return on invested 
capital (2008: 12.7% – 2007: 
12.0%).

+70bps 

Growth in basic benchmark 
earnings per share 
(2008: 33.9p – 2007: 29.3p).

+16% 
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Dividends
Home Retail Group’s dividend policy remains to tar-
get dividend cover over the medium term of around 
two times, based on full-year basic benchmark EPS.
 A fi nal dividend of 10.0p (2007: 9.0p) is being 
recommended by the Board, making 14.7p for the 
year (2007: 13.0p). Based on basic benchmark EPS 
of 33.9p (2007 pro forma: 29.3p), this represents 
cover of 2.31 times (2007 pro forma: 2.25 times). 
Based on reported basic EPS of 34.0p (2007: 21.6p), 
it represents cover of 2.31 times (2007: 1.66 times).
 The fi nal dividend, subject to approval by share-
holders at the AGM, is to be paid on 23 July 2008 to 
shareholders on the register at the close of business 
on 23 May 2008.

Number of shares and earnings per share
The number of shares for the purpose of calculating 
basic earnings per share (EPS) is 867.7m (2007: 
869.6m), representing the weighted average 
number of issued ordinary shares of 877.4m (2007: 
877.4m), less the weighted average ordinary shares 
held in Home Retail Group’s Employee Share 
Ownership Trust (ESOT) of 9.7m (2007: 7.8m).
 The calculation of diluted EPS reflects the 
potential dilutive effect of employee share incentive 
schemes in place post demerger. This increases the 
number of shares for diluted EPS purposes by 9.6m 
(2007: 7.6m) to 877.3m (2007: 877.2m).
 Basic benchmark EPS is 33.9p (2007 pro forma: 
29.3p), with diluted benchmark EPS of 33.6p (2007 
pro forma: 29.0p). Reported basic EPS is 34.0p 
(2007: 21.6p), with reported diluted EPS of 33.6p 
(2007: 21.4p).

  1 March 2008 3 March 2007
  (52 weeks) (Short period) 
Period to  £m £m

Benchmark operating profi t  398.0 359.4
Change of year-end pro forma adjustments  – (25.7)
Exceptional items within operating profi t  0.8 (22.7)
Demerger incentive scheme costs  (11.7) (5.8)

Statutory operating profi t after exceptional items  387.1 305.2

Depreciation and amortisation  151.6 146.4

Statutory EBITDA  538.7 451.6

Movement in working capital  (48.1) 127.2
Finance expense charged to FS cost of sales  19.6 16.4
Adjustments for other non-cash operating items  54.0 25.7

Cash fl ows from operating activities  564.2 620.9

Net interest  15.1 (37.8)
Taxation  (95.1) (101.6)
Net capital expenditure  (207.9) (158.6)
Acquisitions and disposals  (46.2) (3.8)
Loan to joint venture  – (8.1)

Cash infl ow before fi nancing activities  230.1 311.0

Dividends paid  (118.9) (34.6)
Share of GUS plc fi nal dividend  – (62.0)
Repayment of amounts to GUS plc  – (50.3)
Repayment of borrowings  (225.1) (1.2)
Other fi nancing activities  2.3 (6.1)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (111.6) 156.8

Opening cash and cash equivalents  283.8 130.0
Net cash (outfl ow)/infl ow  (111.6) 156.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  1.8 (3.0)

Closing cash and cash equivalents  174.0 283.8

Closing borrowings  – (223.6)

Closing net cash  174.0 60.2

Cash fl ow and closing net cash position
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Cash fl ow and closing net cash position
Cash fl ows from operating activities were £564.2m 
(2007: £620.9m). As the prior year was a short 
period of approximately 11 months due to the 
change in year-end, there was a benefit in the 
prior year from the exclusion of March, which 
is typically a significant cash outflow month in 
terms of working capital. Excluding this, underlying 
growth in operating cash fl ow was therefore driven 
principally by the growth in profi ts.
 A net interest infl ow of £15.1m (2007: outfl ow 
of £37.8m) refl ects improved cash generation and 
higher rates of interest earned, together with the 
removal of the impact from the previous GUS 
capital structure up to the point of demerger.
 Net capital expenditure was £207.9m (2007: 
£158.6m), with the increase principally driven by 
a full 52-week period together with an additional 
£19m in relation to the expected £30m programme 

Balance sheet and return on capital
Invested capital amounted to £3,139.5m, an increase 
of £127.7m on the year-end balance sheet at 3 
March 2007. Higher goodwill refl ects the Focus DIY 
stores acquisition, while growth in property, plant 
and equipment is driven by the increase in stores. 
Inventory levels were higher principally due to the 
growth in operations, increased overseas sourcing 
and the earlier timing of Easter; this higher inventory 
was largely offset by the increase in payables.
 Reported net assets amounted to £3,345.2m, 
an increase of £266.5m. The further two key drivers 
of this movement were the £113.8m increase in net 

cash and the £74.4m improvement in the retire-
ment benefi t assets valuation. Total reported net 
assets are equivalent to 386p per share, excluding 
shares held in the ESOT (2007: 354p).
 Benchmark pre-tax return on invested capital is a 
key performance measure for the Group. Benchmark 
operating profi t plus share of post-tax results of 
joint ventures and associates was £399.6m, up 
£39.5m or 11%, while year-end invested capital 
grew by 4%. This led to pre-tax ROIC increasing to 
12.7%, representing a 70 basis point improvement 
on the previous balance sheet date.

to refi t the acquired Focus DIY stores. Overall, a 
broadly similar level of Group capital expenditure is 
expected in the next fi nancial year.
 Cash outflows in relation to acquisitions and 
disposals reflects £39.6m to purchase 27 store 
properties from Focus DIY, £6.8m to acquire a 
33% holding in the Irish homewares business 
‘home store + more’, proceeds of £3.9m from the 
disposal of the Group’s 33% holding in AAGUS, and 
associated costs related to these transactions.
 Cash fl ows in relation to fi nancing activities in 
the year principally refl ect dividend payments to 
shareholders, together with the use of cash balances 
to repay in full a £225m borrowing arrangement 
inherited from GUS plc on demerger.
 The Group’s net cash position at 1 March 2008 
was therefore £174.0m, an increase of £113.8m 
on the opening net cash position at 3 March 2007 
of £60.2m. 

Balance sheet and return on capital

  1 March 2008 3 March 2007
As at £m £m

Goodwill 1,922.7 1,878.9
Other intangible assets 83.7 73.4
Property, plant and equipment 731.8 691.6
Inventories 1,004.8 906.4
Instalment receivables 432.0 416.8
Other trading assets 196.8 188.3

  4,371.8 4,155.4

Trade and other payables (1,130.8) (1,059.1)
Other trading liabilities (101.5) (84.5)

  (1,232.3) (1,143.6)

Invested capital 3,139.5 3,011.8

Retirement benefi t assets 83.7 9.3
Net tax liabilities (52.0) (2.6)
Net cash 174.0 60.2

Reported net assets 3,345.2 3,078.7

Return on invested capital 12.7% 12.0%
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Capital structure
The Group fi nances its operations through a com-
bination of retained profi ts, property leases and 
bank borrowings where necessary. The Group’s 
net cash has varied throughout the year due to 
trading seasonality.
 The Group has signifi cant liabilities through its 
obligations to pay rents under operating leases. 
The capitalised value of these liabilities is £2,758m 
based upon a simple eight-times multiple of last 
year’s operating lease charge, or £3,057m based 
upon discounted cash fl ows of the expected future 
operating lease charges. In common with the credit 
rating agencies, the Group treats its lease liabilities 
as debt when evaluating fi nancial risk.
 As an independent company, Home Retail 
Group has demonstrated two years of strong 
profi t growth and cash generation. However, since 
the outlook for consumer spending looks weaker, 
the Board is mindful of maintaining flexibility 
through a prudent balance sheet approach. This 
will offer further resilience during any shorter-term 
macro-driven slowdown, while not constraining 
continued investment in value-enhancing longer-
term growth opportunities. The Board will con-
tinue to review its capital structure to ensure that 
it remains appropriate.

Retirement benefi t assets
The Group provides a number of post-employment 
benefi t arrangements covering both funded defi ned 
benefi t and defi ned contribution schemes. Pension 
arrangements are operated principally through the 
Home Retail Group Pension Scheme, a defined 
benefit scheme, together with the Home Retail 
Group Stakeholder Pension Scheme, a defined 
contribution scheme. The IAS 19 surplus as at 
1 March 2008 for the UK defi ned benefi t scheme 
was £83.7m (2007: £9.3m).

Liquidity and funding
The Group maintains liquidity by arranging funding 
ahead of requirements and maintaining suffi cient 
un-drawn committed facilities to meet short-term 
needs. At 1 March 2008, the Group had un-drawn 
committed borrowing facilities available of £700m, 
which expire in 2012. These facilities are in place 
to enable the Group to fi nance its working capital 
requirements and for general corporate purposes.

Treasury policy and risk management
The Group’s treasury function seeks to reduce ex-
posures to foreign exchange, interest rate and other 
fi nancial risks, and to ensure suffi cient liquidity is 
available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest 
cash assets safely and profi tably. Its policies and 
procedures are subject to review and approval by 
the Board.

Counterparty credit risk management
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is managed by 
dealing only with banks and fi nancial institutions 
with strong credit ratings and within limits set 
for each organisation. Dealing activity is closely
controlled and counterparty positions are moni-
tored daily.

Interest rate risk management
The Group’s principal objective is to manage the 
trade-off between the effective rate of interest 
and the impact of interest rate volatility. Exposure 
would be managed by the use of fi xed and fl oating 
rate facilities and by the use of interest rate swaps 
to adjust the balance of fi xed and fl oating rates.

Currency risk management
The Group’s key objective is to reduce the effect 
of exchange rate volatility on profi ts. Transactional 
currency exposures that could signifi cantly impact 
the income statement are hedged using forward 
purchases of foreign currencies.

Share price and total shareholder return
The Group’s share price ranged from a low of 259.0p 
to a high of 497.5p during the fi nancial year. On 29 
February 2008, the closing mid market price was 
259.0p, giving a market capitalisation of £2.3bn at 
the year-end.
 Total shareholder return (the change in the value 
of a share including reinvested dividends) has been 
a decline of 36.4% over the year. This compares to a 
decline of 36.0% in the total shareholder return for 
the FTSE 350 General Retail sector. The wider FTSE 
100 saw a more limited decline of 0.4% over the 
same period.

Accounting standards and use of non-GAAP measures
The Group has prepared its consolidated fi nancial 
statements under International Financial Reporting 
Standards for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008. 
The basis of preparation is outlined in note 2 to the 
consolidated fi nancial statements on page 85.
 The Group has identifi ed certain measures that 
it believes provide additional useful information 
on the underlying performance of the Group. These 
measures are applied consistently but as they 
are not defi ned under GAAP they may not be 
directly comparable with other companies’ adjusted 
measures. The non-GAAP measures are outlined in 
note 3 to the consolidated fi nancial statements on 
page 92.
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4. Benchmark profi t before tax (benchmark 
PBT) is defi ned as profi t before amortisation of 
acquisition intangibles, store impairment charges, 
exceptional items, costs related to demerger incen-
tive schemes, fi nancing fair value remeasurements, 
fi nancing impact on retirement benefi t balances 
and taxation. Net interest income within pro for-
ma benchmark PBT is calculated to illustrate the 
Group’s fi nancial performance as if the demerger 
capital structure had existed at 31 March 2006 
and had been achieved based on underlying cash 
fl ows prior to 31 March 2006. Benchmark PBT 
also includes Home Retail Group’s share of post-
tax results of joint ventures and associates. It is 
calculated on a pro forma 52-week basis for the 
comparable period.

5. Basic benchmark earnings per share (bench-
mark EPS) is defined as benchmark PBT less 
taxation attributable to benchmark PBT, divided 
by the weighted average number of shares in 
issue (excluding Home Retail Group shares held 
in its Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT)). 
It is calculated on a pro forma 52-week basis for 
the comparable period and uses the weighted 
average number of shares in issue from the date of 
demerger to the period end.

6. Benchmark pre-tax return on invested 
capital (benchmark pre-tax ROIC) is defi ned as 
benchmark operating profi t plus share of post-tax 
results of joint ventures and associates, divided by 
year-end net assets excluding retirement benefi t 
balances, tax balances and net cash/debt. It is 
calculated on a pro forma 52-week basis for the 
comparable period.

1. The change in both the year-end and the 
Group’s capital structure on demerger resulted 
in prior year statutory reported results that are 
non-comparable. The statutory reported results 
for the fi nancial year being reported represent the 
52 weeks to 1 March 2008. The statutory reported 
results for the prior fi nancial year represented the 
results for Homebase for an approximate 12 calendar 
months of March to February inclusive, and the 
results for the rest of the Group for an approximate 
11 calendar months of April to February inclusive. 
The results for the prior fi nancial year also refl ected 
certain fi nancial impacts that were a result of the 
fact that Home Retail Group was wholly owned 
by its former parent company, GUS plc, until the 
demerger became effective on 10 October 2006. The 
prior period results are not therefore representative 
of a fi nancial period length comparable to this year, 
nor do they refl ect the capital structure that Home 
Retail Group operated under from the date the 
demerger occurred.

2. Sales are calculated on a 52-week basis. This 
represents the statutory reported 52 weeks to 
1 March 2008 and the comparable pro forma 
52 weeks to 3 March 2007.

3. Benchmark operating profi t is defi ned as 
operating profi t before amortisation of acquisition 
intangibles, store impairment charges, exceptional 
items and costs related to demerger incentive 
schemes. It is calculated on a pro forma 52-week 
basis for the comparable period.

Financial summary – notes and defi nitions
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Central Activities
Central Activities represents the cost of central 
corporate functions. As part of GUS, Home Retail 
Group was not recharged for these types of costs. 
However, for the purposes of preparing demerger 
fi nancial information, an approximation was made 
of the amount of GUS corporate head office 
costs to apportion to Home Retail Group. These 
apportioned costs were not representative of either 
the historical costs Home Retail Group would have 
incurred or the costs it will incur going forward.
 As part of the pro forma restatements, Home 
Retail Group has therefore approximated the addi-
tional costs of central corporate functions it would 
have incurred over and above that apportioned 
to it by GUS. This has been done on the basis that 
it had operated as a standalone plc through the 
periods being restated.

Capital structure and net interest
As part of the demerger, Home Retail Group was 
allocated pro forma net debt as at 31 March 2006 
of £200m. For the purposes of preparing pro forma 
results, net interest income has been calculated 
to illustrate the impact on the Group’s fi nancial 
performance as if this capital structure had existed 
at 31 March 2006 and had been achieved based on 
the underlying cash fl ows prior to 31 March 2006. 
The additional net interest costs attributable to the 
actual GUS capital structure that was in place over 
the periods are shown separately.

Other income statement items
Other non-trading income statement items have 
not been restated as they are not impacted by the 
change of year-end. These are principally exceptional 
items, costs related to demerger incentive schemes 
and fi nancing fair value remeasurements.

Reporting periods
Home Retail Group previously reported as part of 
GUS plc on a calendar year-end to 31 March, with 
half-year results reported as the six months to 
30 September. Within this, to avoid distortion in 
the fi nancial results relating to the timing of Easter, 
Homebase was consolidated on a non-coterminous 
12 months to 28 February basis. For half-year 
results, Homebase was therefore consolidated on 
a seven months to 30 September basis, with the 
second half of its fi nancial year comprising only a 
fi ve-month period.
 As a result of the change in year-end during 
the previous fi nancial year, Home Retail Group 
reported on a statutory basis the fi nancial period 
ended 3 March 2007. This included the results 
for Homebase from 1 March 2006 (approximately 
12 months) and the results for the rest of the Group 
from 1 April 2006 (approximately 11 months). The 
latest fi nancial year, as reported today, is a 52-week 
period commencing 4 March 2007 and ending on 
1 March 2008.
 For comparative purposes, the financial year 
2006/07 restated on a pro forma basis is the 
52-week period commencing 5 March 2006 and 
ending on 3 March 2007. 

Financial summary – pro forma reporting

‘Th e Group has demonstrated 
a strong performance in the 
fi nancial year just completed.’
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The above table has been prepared in accordance with note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements on page 85. 

     Statutory
  Statutory Pro forma  period to
  52 weeks to 52 weeks to 3 March 2007
  1 March 2008 3 March 2007 (short period)
   £m £m £m

Argos 4,320.9 4,164.0 3,912.8
Homebase 1,568.5 1,594.2 1,606.3
Financial Services  95.4 93.2 87.6

Sales 5,984.8 5,851.4 5,606.7

Cost of sales (3,881.0) (3,852.2) (3,680.5)

Gross profi t 2,103.8 1,999.2 1,926.2

Net operating expenses before exceptional items and costs related to demerger incentive schemes (1,705.8) (1,639.8) (1,592.5)

Argos 376.2 325.0 300.9
Homebase 45.1 53.4 51.2
Financial Services 5.5 5.0 4.5
Central Activities (28.8) (24.0) (22.9)

Benchmark operating profi t 398.0 359.4 333.7

Net interest income (see below) 33.3 16.6                      n/a
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates 1.6 0.7 0.7

Benchmark PBT 432.9 376.7                    n/a

Net interest costs attributable to GUS capital structure (see below)  – (39.2) (21.0)
Exceptional items included in operating profi t 0.8 (22.7) (22.7)
Costs related to demerger incentive schemes (11.7) (5.8) (5.8) 
Financing fair value remeasurements (9.0) (0.1) (0.1) 
Financing impact on retirement benefi t balances 13.0 12.3 12.1

Profi t before tax 426.0 321.2 296.9

Taxation (131.4) (117.5) (109.5)
  of which: taxation attributable to benchmark PBT (138.5) (122.1)                            n/a

Profi t for the period 294.6 203.7 187.4

Basic benchmark EPS 33.9p 29.3p                    n/a

Basic EPS 34.0p n/a 21.6p

Number of shares for basic EPS 867.7m 869.6m 869.6m

Net interest reconciliation:

Third-party net interest income/(expense) 13.7 (1.2)                  n/a
Financing costs charged to Financial Services 19.6  17.8               n/a

Net interest income 33.3 16.6                 n/a

Interest costs attributable to GUS capital structure – (46.1) (44.3)
Exceptional fi nance income – 6.9 6.9
Financing costs charged to Financial Services – – 16.4

Net interest costs attributable to GUS capital structure – (39.2)  (21.0)

Financing fair value remeasurements (9.0) (0.1) (0.1)
Financing impact on retirement benefi t balances 13.0 12.3 12.1

Income statement net fi nancing income/(costs) 37.3 (10.4) (9.0)

Financial summary
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Operations

Failure to ensure appropriate 

processes are in place to manage 

the complexity of retail operations, 

including sourcing of products and 

customer service

Economic and market risks

Delivery of sales growth 

and profi t impacted by:

 Economic conditions

  Cost of raw material/services/ 

utilities

 Consumer preferences

 Competitor activity

 Seasonality/weather

 UK-centric store network

 Expansion/development 

 of store network

 Changing demographics

Description and examples of mitigating activity

The economic environment, including the activities of other retailers, impacts on the Group’s success in terms 

of sales, gross margin and cost management. Increasing costs within the utilities sector and general infl ation have 

led to a reduction in household disposable incomes which, together with concerns regarding the ‘credit crunch’, 

may impact the retail sector disproportionately. 

The Group is committed to maintaining competitive pricing positions in its markets. We have established 

initiatives to support our ability to manage margin levels effectively through sourcing developments as well 

as rigorous cost control.

The Argos brand is synonymous with choice, value and convenience and internal processes ensure that Argos

is well positioned to continue to deliver value to its customers. In addition to its core home enhancement proposition 

available in-store and online, Homebase offers a selection of eco-products that will be further enhanced through 

its involvement in the 21st Century Living research programme with the Eden Project.

The Group continues to consider new development opportunities outside the UK, such as the current 

trial of Argos in India.

Other mitigating activities include:

 Clear communication of choice and value-led product offering to customers

 Driving market share in high headroom product categories

 Continued evolution of a broader home enhancement position at Homebase

Like other retailers, the Group sources products from overseas, which increases the time between ordering 

and receiving products from suppliers. Effi cient management processes are therefore needed to ensure stock 

is in the right place at the right time. We have recently evaluated our distribution infrastructure to drive 

further effi ciency. 

The success of the Argos multi-channel model has heightened expectations among our customers. 

We strive to continually improve the service to manage this, whilst also extending the capability into Homebase.

Communication with our customers is very important to us and we continually seek to balance shareholder 

value with customer value through promotional campaigns, particularly at key events such as Christmas, Easter, 

Valentine’s and bank holidays.

Other mitigating activities include:

 Improving the accuracy of stock level forecasts

 Realigning our distribution infrastructure

 Enhancing website capabilities

 Improving clarity of promotional campaigns 

 Continuously improving catalogue production processes

 New store formats and technologies such as Check & Reserve and Quick Pay Kiosks

 Focused and relevant customer service training in Argos and Homebase

Area of principal risk/uncertainty

We discuss below the principal risks and uncertainties that 
could impact the Group’s performance and our mitigating 
activities. For further information on how we manage risk, 
see the business review and also pages 67 and 68 of the 
corporate governance statement.

50 Home Retail Group Annual Report 2008

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS



Business interruption

 Acts of terrorism

 Failure or unavailability of 

 operational and/or IT infrastructure

 Delay or interruption in services  

 provided by third-party suppliers

Infrastructure 

development/projects

Delay or failure to manage 

and implement major business and 

infrastructure projects effectively

Product safety

Failure to manage supplier relationships 

and/or ensure appropriate product 

quality checks are in place

People 

Reliance on key personnel

Regulatory environment

 Changes in UK and overseas   

 legislation and regulation, 

 eg consumer protection, 

 environmental regulation

 Changes in UK fi scal/employment  

 policy, eg minimum wage

Currency

Purchase of products in currencies 

other than sterling, principally the US 

dollar and the euro

Area of principal risk/uncertainty Description and examples of mitigating activity

A major incident could impact the ability of the Group to continue trading. We maintain and routinely test our 

business continuity plans in order to reduce the potential impact of such events. Security measures are in place 

at all sites to protect colleagues, customers and assets.

Other mitigating activities include:

 Business continuity and recovery planning

 IT recovery plans

 Third-party supplier management

The Group is committed to investing in the long-term capability of systems and infrastructure. A major IT

systems replacement is reaching completion and other developments are planned. Projects of this nature carry 

a degree of risk; however, we have dedicated project teams in place with strong governance frameworks to 

manage them.

Other mitigating activities include:

 Detailed approval and planning process prior to project commencement

 Project management 

 Board review of status/progress of major change programmes

 Post-project implementation reviews

 Management experience of signifi cant infrastructure/change programmes

The safety and quality of our products is of high importance to the Group. Various specifi c concerns have 

been raised in the industry during 2007 with regards to imported products and we have taken measures to 

further increase our controls in this area. Wherever possible Argos and Homebase teams work in conjunction with 

suppliers to ensure consistent understanding of quality expectations.

Other mitigating activities include:

 Quality assurance programme

 Supplier relationship protocols

 Terms and conditions for all suppliers

The Group values its colleagues and their contribution to the success of the organisation. Internal training 

schemes and the graduate recruitment programme maintain the succession pool. We actively encourage 

promotion from within and monitor employee satisfaction.

Other mitigating activities include:

 Competitive remuneration packages

 Succession planning

 Management development and training programmes

 Staff surveys

The Group is committed to good governance practices. In addition to ensuring compliance with our existing 

requirements, we are active in monitoring developments and lobbying together with other retailers to support 

and develop the industry and the interests of consumers. 

Other mitigating activities include:

 Membership of industry representative groups

 Direct engagement with government and regulators

 Dedicated working parties to manage operational change

The Group is exposed to fl uctuations in currency rates in its overseas product purchasing. We mitigate these 

risks through effective forecasting of requirements and appropriate hedging policies.

Other mitigating activities include:

 Forecast currency requirements

 Hedging policies
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In September 2007, Homebase launched 

a new variety of daff odil in aid of Marie 

Curie Cancer Care. Named ‘Bulb of Choice’, 

the bulbs, which were sold exclusively 

in all Homebase UK stores for £1, generated 

£51,000 to help Marie Curie Cancer Care 

provide care for terminally ill patients.
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Growing responsibly.
Th ere has been a stronger awareness 
of corporate responsibility in the 
retail sector this year. We have been 
engaged on this topic for many years.
Our agenda is wide. It touches almost every aspect of our 
business, from our suppliers’ factories to our customers’ homes. 
 Doing things right takes time, energy and resources and 
the choices are not always easy. But by tackling the issues 
methodically and with resolve, we are making good progress.

 Pg 50-51. 
Principal risks and uncertainties. 

 www.homeretailgroupcr.com 
The online Corporate Responsibility Report.

Where can I fi nd more information?

 Pg 64-68. 
Corporate governance.
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We aim to understand what society expects 
from us – through research and discussion 
with our stakeholders – and refl ect this in 
the way we manage our business. 

How we think

Responsible retailing
In general, we prefer to integrate our handling 
of social and environmental issues into our day-to-
day operations. In support of this approach, we have 
a corporate responsibility framework setting out 
how we will act:

  Actively seek ways to minimise our impact 
on the environment in the way we do business

  Help our customers be responsible consumers 
by giving them information and choices

  Be a good employer by providing a safe 
and healthy environment and enabling our 
colleagues to act responsibly in their jobs and 
develop rewarding careers

  Behave ethically and with integrity when 
sourcing products and dealing with our 
suppliers 

  Support the local and national communities 
in which we operate.

We focus on topics where we think we can realise 
social/environmental and commercial benefits. 
For example, we are working on ideas to use our 
multi-channel platform, including catalogues and 
websites, to help our customers make their own 
responsible choices. We are also keen to extend our 
success in tackling waste throughout the business 
to other eco-effi ciency measures. 
 Our work is directed towards meeting a number 
of objectives and targets and reported in detail online.

Effective governance
The Group company secretary has overall respon-
sibility for corporate responsibility management, 
leading discussions and decision-making at Oper-
ating Board and plc Board level and chairing our 
corporate responsibility steering group. He is 
assisted by a small central team of corporate re-
sponsibility professionals.
 The corporate responsibility steering group pro-
vides the Group with strategic direction on corpo-
rate responsibility matters, with input from two 
management groups. These address issues relating 
to waste, energy, products and the supply chain, 
and community affairs, the workplace and fi nancial 
services; they are chaired by the Group commercial 
director and Group HR director respectively. 
 In addition, our management of corporate 
responsibility is effectively integrated with our 
management of business risks. 

Consulting our stakeholders
Understanding the needs of our customers is vital, 
but we have other important stakeholders too. 
We try to work closely with all our stakeholders to 
understand their perspectives and take them into 
account in how we plan and run our business.
 We place great emphasis on understanding 
and responding to the views of our colleagues, as 
they drive our business performance through their 
dedication, commitment and skills. We also talk 
and listen to a wide range of other stakeholders, 
including suppliers, shareholders, Government, the 
media and special interest groups representing 
particular social causes. 

Reduction in carbon 
footprint achieved.

19%
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The following section provides a summary of 
our corporate responsibility activities during the 
past fi nancial year. For a full report, please go to 
www.homeretailgroupcr.com.

Environment
We have an active programme to reduce our environ-
mental impact. This focuses on our carbon footprint, 
waste management and use of bulk materials.
 Our carbon footprint has reduced by 19% this 
year, through reductions in emissions from our 
buildings and transport fl eet and greater use of 
renewable energy:

  Energy use has remained constant despite 
opening more new stores this year (+48), 
as we have improved the effi ciency of our 
stores and increased energy awareness 
amongst colleagues

  Electricity from renewable sources now 
accounts for 47% of the electricity we use

  Our fl eet effi ciency has improved, using 4% 
less fuel whilst travelling the same distance. 

We have had notable success this year in reducing 
the amount of waste we send to landfi ll by 29%. We 
now recycle over half of all waste produced. Store 
waste is returned to distribution centres in the back 
of empty vehicles to be compacted and recycled. 

This ‘backhauling’ technique has been used in 
Argos for several years and has now been introduced 
at Homebase. 
 This year, two more distribution centres achieved 
accreditation to the recognised environmental 
standard ISO14001, making five in total; more 
centres are ready to achieve accreditation in the 
coming year.
 We have embarked on a major exercise to re-
view and reduce the amount of packaging we use 
on around a fi fth of our range. We have also taken 
action to reduce our carrier bag consumption, 
leading to an 18% like-for-like reduction since 
2005, well above the sector average. 

Customers
Customer satisfaction is one of the strongest drivers 
of our performance. We have extensive processes 
dedicated to understanding and responding to our 
customers’ views, including: 

 Exit and till prompt surveys

 Customer listening groups

 Independent market research 

 Mystery shopping surveys.

We consult our customers regularly on issues 
including our product offer, pricing and shopping 
experience. As there is growing evidence that 
customers consider issues such as supplier ethics 
and impact on the environment in their shopping 
choices, we have extended our research to cover 
these areas as well. 
 The most recent results highlighted customers’ 
needs for:

  Information to help make them the right choice

  Convenient eco-friendly products that fi t into 
their lifestyles

  Energy-effi cient products that can help them 
reduce home energy bills

  Less product packaging to help them reduce 
home waste.

What we’ve been doing

264 274

306

270

217

04 05 06 07 08

CO2 TOTAL EMISSIONS 
(’000 METRIC TONNES)

Amount of all Group waste 
that is now recycled.

52%
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Our formal research in this area is being supple-
mented by the detailed insights from the innovative 
21st Century Living Project (see below). 

  21st Century Living Project
With our support, the Eden Project is conducting a 
year-long study of a cross-section of homeowners 
in England to understand 21st century living. We 
are challenging and supporting 100 homes to 
reduce their energy use, water consumption and 
waste. We will be tracking the households for a year 
to understand which technologies and incentives 
worked best. We hope to use the fi ndings to offer 
our customers practical solutions to improve their 
environmental footprints. 
 
We offer our customers a wide choice of energy-
effi cient and environmentally responsible products. 
During the last fi nancial year, we have run customer 
information campaigns promoting our water-saving, 
energy-effi cient and sustainably-sourced products. 
We plan to increase these ranges in the future. We 
are also exploring new low-carbon alternatives to gas 
patio heaters, which we plan to phase out of sale. 
 Product safety is a key priority for our business. 
We monitor safety through our own team of 
specialists, who produce factory audits and product 
safety reports. Factory audits are conducted by 
accredited organisations and we only accept 
product safety certifi cation from laboratories with 
recognised UK accreditation or equivalent.
 In our Financial Services business we are com-
mitted to acting responsibly, particularly ensuring 
customers can afford to repay their borrowing. 
Clear operating procedures, including strict lending 
criteria, and robust controls ensure high standards 
in this area. We endeavour to treat customers 
fairly and provide clear and straightforward mes-
sages about our fi nancial products. During the year 

we strengthened this approach by enhancing our 
complaints reporting procedures and introducing 
a new performance scheme that sets stringent 
quality and compliance benchmarks for advisers. 

Our people
A good working environment is essential to recruit 
and retain a strong and motivated workforce. We 
want our people to feel great about our company 
and the work they do and to see that we make 
a positive contribution to our society and the 
environment. This kind of engagement can make an 
important difference to business performance. 
 During the year the average number of Home 
Retail Group employees was 53,197. As approxi-
mately 74% work part-time, this equates to 29,846 
full-time equivalents. Just over half (52%) of 
colleagues are women.
 We focus on engaging everyone so that they 
understand our business strategy and the part they 
can play in its success. We also provide incentives 
and benefi ts to motivate and reward performance. 
We train and develop our people so that they can 
continuously improve and in so doing, increase the 
depth of talent in the business, helping to identify 
future leaders.
 Disabled persons have equal opportunities when 
applying for vacancies, with due regard to their 
aptitudes and abilities. We have further procedures 
to ensure that disabled colleagues are fairly treated 
and that their training and career development 
needs are carefully managed.
 We have a range of policies to ensure that our 
colleagues work in safe conditions and to contribute 
as far as possible to their health and well-being. We 
provide basic safety training to all new colleagues 
and further role-specifi c training where appropriate 
– for example, fork-lift truck drivers and managers/
supervisors in stores and distribution centres.

“We off er our customers 
a wide range of energy-
effi  cient and environmentally 
responsible products.”
Paul Loft, Managing Director, Homebase

 

Charles Drewe, Group 
Sustainability Manager

Charles was instrumental in 

getting FSC certifi cation for 

Argos and Homebase, helping 

customers get the sustainably 

sourced products they want.

 

Lili Papadimitriou, Graduate 

As a new graduate, Lili is 

getting the inside track on what 

it takes to build and maintain 

a market-leading retail business.

 

Rita Hyde, 

Customer Service Assistant, 
Homebase Stratford

Rita is one of our charity 

champions. She’s helped raise 

over £3,000 for Marie Curie 

Cancer Care.
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Employee engagement
We aim for clear and effective communication 
with all our people. We conduct listening surveys 
every year and hold regular team briefi ngs. Where 
appropriate, we involve colleagues on matters 
that concern them through local consultative 
procedures. Where we have recognition agreements 
with trade unions, the consultation process is 
established through national and local trade union 
representatives and joint consultation committees. 
 Events for colleagues at offi ces and distribution 
centres and conferences communicate important 
changes within the Group, such as the launch of 
new business initiatives and seasonal trading plans. 
In addition, all colleagues receive bi-monthly news-
letters containing information on business perform-
ance, employee achievements, new store openings 
and other relevant developments. 

Colleague benefi ts
Our benefi ts packages allow colleagues to share in 
the success of the Group. Our Save As You Earn plan 
gives colleagues the opportunity to purchase shares 
at a 20% price discount tax-free; the uptake rate 
in 2007 was 21%. Discount arrangements include 
travel and insurance offers, gym memberships and 
days out. We also offer a tax-efficient childcare 
vouchers scheme, free access to confi dential coun-
selling and a legal helpline for staff.

Learning and development
We are very keen to develop future leaders from 
within the Group, providing extensive and tailor-
ed training for our people. Each new starter has a 
formal induction to the Group and every colleague 
has access to appropriate development training 
programmes. We have three well-established in-
ternal programmes to develop management talent. 
These run between six months to one year and pro-
vide a real depth of learning for participants.

Supply chain
Before we place contracts to buy from a new 
factory, we perform an audit to assess factors such 
as product quality, manufacturing processes and 
capability, treatment of workers, health and safety 
and environmental practice. Where necessary, we 
agree any improvements required with factory 
managers before an order is placed or renewed. 
 Our ethical auditing now includes all direct 
source suppliers, regardless of size. As a result, our 
audit coverage during the year rose to 89% of 
directly sourced orders and more than 310 separate 
factories. We are extending the programme to 
products imported through agents.
 Our wood and wooden products are carefully 
sourced from legal, well managed forests, driven by 
our timber policy and Homebase’s active member-
ship of the World Wildlife Fund’s Global Forest and 
Trade Network. Approximately 60% of our wooden 
garden furniture lines have been certifi ed by the 
Forest Stewardship Council. 
 We work with our diamond suppliers to ensure 
we meet the protocols of the Kimberly Process 
Certifi cation Scheme, so that our suppliers do not 
buy any confl ict diamonds and an audit trail is in 
place. We are also aware of social and environ-
mental concerns around certain types of gold 
mining and have joined the Council for Responsible 
Jewellery Practices to work with other retailers on 
these problems. 
 All Group paper suppliers are now required to 
have ISO14001 or Eco-Management Audit Scheme 
(EMAS) registration and chain of custody certifi ca-
tion, ensuring complete traceability of all paper 
used in catalogues. Of the paper used to produce 
our catalogues and other marketing material, 
17% is from recycled sources. All 4.3 million Argos 
Christmas promotional leaflets were printed on 
100% recycled paper.

‘Our paper suppliers must have recognised 
environmental management processes and be 
able to ensure complete traceability of paper 
used in all catalogues and marketing materials.’
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Community
Our community programme supports local and 
national causes through a variety of channels. 
 The total value of the Group’s giving for 2007/08 
was £947,000 (2007: £465,000).
 During the year, we established the Home Retail 
Partnership Fund to oversee charitable donations. 
The GUS Charitable Trust, funded by GUS plc prior 
to the demerger that took place in October 2006, 
concluded its funding of certain projects. This fund-
ing has been included separately in our reporting.
 In July 2007, Argos formed a new one-year 
arrangement with Leukaemia Research and Irish 
charity Barretstown, which is on track to raise 
over £500,000. This followed the conclusion of a 
very successful two-year partnership with Help 
the Hospices, which raised over £1.2m. In 2006, 
Homebase launched a two-year partnership with 
Marie Curie Cancer Care and the Irish Cancer Society 
with the aim of raising £500,000 to pay for 25,000 
hours of home nursing. This partnership has raised 
over £1.2m to date.
 The ‘Tick to Give’ initiative enabled Argos 
customers to give 20p to our charitable partner by 
ticking a box on their selection slips when choosing 
items in Argos stores. To date, this scheme has 
raised over £210,000.
 In 2007, Homebase offered customers the ‘Bulb 
of Choice’, which is a new variety of daffodil. The 
bulb was sold exclusively to Homebase customers, 
generating proceeds of £51,000 for Marie Curie 
Cancer Care. 

Benchmarks
FTSE4Good
Home Retail Group is included in the FTSE4Good 
Index, meeting all the relevant social and environ-
mental criteria. 
 
Dow Jones Global Sustainability Index 
Home Retail Group is listed in the Dow Jones 
Global Sustainability Index, which selects the top 
10% from a universe of 3,000 global companies 
based on comprehensive sustainability data. Silver 
classifi cation places Home Retail Group in the top 
four general retailers.
 
Business in the Community Index (BiTC)
The BiTC Index assesses the extent to which cor-
porate strategy is integrated into business practice 
throughout an organisation and evaluates perform-
ance in a range of environmental and social impact 
areas. Home Retail Group has progressed into the 
gold band from silver last year.
 
For a full report on our performance during the 
year, see www.homeretailgroupcr.com.

Community programme support

Giving  Value (£000)

Cash donations 572
Volunteering 106
Gifts in kind 140
Management resources 129

Company donations 947

Donations from the GUS Charitable Trust 450

Monies raised by colleagues 
 Payroll giving 312
 In-store fundraising 1,252
‘Tick to Give’ 98

Donations generated by others 1,662

Total   3,059
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Board of Directors and Operating Board

COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee: 
Oliver Stocken (Chairman), John Coombe, Terry Duddy, Andy Hornby, Penny Hughes

Remuneration Committee: 
Andy Hornby (Chairman), John Coombe, Penny Hughes, Oliver Stocken

Audit Committee: 
John Coombe (Chairman), Andy Hornby, Penny Hughes

5. John Coombe
Non-Executive Director

6. Eugene Brazil
Managing Director, 
Customer Services

7. Sara Weller 
Managing Director, Argos

8. Sarah Carpenter
Director of Strategic Development

1. Andy Hornby
Non-Executive Director

2. Oliver Stocken
Chairman

3. Maria Th ompson
Commercial Director

4. Penny Hughes
Non-Executive Director

9. Paul Loft
Managing Director, Homebase

10. Richard Ashton
Finance Director

11. Greg Ball
Managing Director, 
Financial Services

12. Peter Connor
Information Systems Director

13. Terry Duddy
Chief Executive

14. Gordon Bentley
Company Secretary

15. David Guise
Human Resources Director
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Penny Hughes
Non-Executive Director
Penny spent ten years with Coca Cola, initially as 
marketing director and ultimately as president 
of Coca-Cola GB & Ireland. Over the last decade 
she has held a number of non-executive roles on 
the boards of international businesses such as 
Vodafone, Trinity Mirror and Body Shop. Currently 
she serves on the boards of Reuters, GAP and the 
Swedish bank Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken. She 
is President of the Advertising Association and 
Trustee, British Museum. Penny joined the Board 
of Home Retail Group in December 2006.

John Coombe
Non-Executive Director
John held a number of senior fi nancial roles 
within Charterhouse Group plc and Charter 
Consolidated plc before joining Glaxo Holdings 
in 1986. Appointed to the board in 1992, 
he was ultimately chief fi nancial offi cer of 
GlaxoSmithKline for fi ve years before retiring 
in 2005. He joined the GUS board in 2005. He 
is a non-executive director of HSBC Holdings, 
chairman of Hogg Robinson Group and a former 
member of the supervisory board of Siemens AG, 
the Code Committee of the Panel on Takeovers 
and Mergers and the UK Accounting Standards 
Board. He is the senior independent director 
and chairs the audit committee of Home Retail 
Group. John became a non-executive director of 
Home Retail Group in October 2006. 

Andy Hornby
Non-Executive Director
Andy began his career at Boston Consulting 
Group before joining Blue Circle as business 
development director, Blue Circle Home Products. 
Following a move to ASDA he held a number 
of senior general management roles including 
managing director of the George clothing 
business. In 1999, Andy joined the board of 
Halifax as chief executive, Halifax Retail. Since 
August 2006, he has been chief executive of 
HBOS plc. Andy joined the GUS board in 2004. 
He became a non-executive director of Home 
Retail Group in October 2006. Andy chairs the 
remuneration committee of Home Retail Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Oliver Stocken
Chairman
Oliver was a director of NM Rothschild and Sons 
and held several roles within Barclays Group 
culminating in his appointment as group 
fi nance director of Barclays PLC. In 2000, he 
was appointed to the GUS board where he 
chaired the audit committee and subsequently 
the remuneration committee. In October 2006, 
he became chairman of Home Retail Group. 
He is deputy chairman of 3i Group plc, a non-
executive director of Standard Chartered plc 
and chairman of Stanhope plc and Oval Limited. 
Oliver is also chairman of the Trustees of the 
Natural History Museum. 

Terry Duddy
Chief Executive
Terry began his career at Letraset, working in 
personnel management and then in product 
management. In 1984, he joined Dixons Stores 
Group where he held a variety of commercial 
positions, including sales director of Currys, 
product marketing director of Dixons Stores 
Group and, latterly, managing director of PC 
World. Terry joined GUS in August 1998 as chief 
executive of the newly acquired Argos, becoming 
a GUS director later that year. In 2000, he was 
appointed chief executive of Argos Retail Group. 
In October 2006, he became chief executive 
of Home Retail Group.

Richard Ashton
Finance Director
Richard started his career at 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP where he trained 
as a chartered accountant. In 1994, he joined GE 
where he spent eight years and held a variety of 
positions. These included chief fi nancial offi cer of 
GE Capital’s pan-European equipment fi nancing 
business, headquartered in The Netherlands, 
assistant to GE Capital’s chief fi nancial offi cer 
in the US and various fi nance roles in the UK. 
Richard joined Argos Retail Group as fi nance 
director in November 2001. In October 2006, he 
became fi nance director of Home Retail Group.
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited fi nancial statements 
for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008 (‘the period’). 

Principal activities and business review
The Group’s principal activities comprise home and general merchandise 
retailing. The chairman’s statement, review of the business and fi nancial 
statements report on performance of the business during the period, 
the position at the period end, likely future developments, the principal 
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and fi nancial key performance 
indicators, and are incorporated by reference into this directors’ report.
 There were no material disposals during the period. In October 2007 
a contract was signed for the purchase of 27 leasehold properties from 
Focus DIY, at a purchase price of £40m.
 The Group’s statement on corporate governance is set out on pages 
64 to 68 and is incorporated by reference into this directors’ report. 
Details of charitable donations, employee involvement and policy on 
the employment of disabled persons are set out in the review of the 
business on pages 52 to 59 and are incorporated by reference into this 
directors’ report.

Profi t and dividends
The Group’s consolidated income statement on page 80 shows a profi t 
for the period of £294.6m. The directors recommend the payment of a 
fi nal dividend of 10.0p per ordinary share to be paid on 23 July 2008 to 
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 23 May 2008. 
An interim dividend of 4.7p per ordinary share was paid on 23 January 
2008, giving a total dividend for the year of 14.7p per ordinary share.

Directors
The names and biographical details of the directors are shown on pages 
60 and 61. There has been no change in the directors during the period. 
Particulars of directors’ remuneration and service contracts are shown in 
the directors’ remuneration report on pages 69 to 77. 
 The directors retiring at the 2008 Annual General Meeting are Terry 
Duddy and John Coombe, who, each being eligible, offer themselves 
for re-election.
 During the period, the Group maintained liability insurance and 
third-party indemnifi cation provisions for its directors under which the 
Company has agreed to indemnify the directors to the extent permitted 
by law in respect of all liabilities to third parties arising out of, or in 
connection with, the execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities 
as directors of the Company and any of its associated companies. These 
indemnities are Qualifying Third Party Indemnity Provisions as defi ned in 
Section 309A-B of the Companies Act 1985 and copies are available for 
inspection at the registered offi ce of the Company during business hours 
on any weekday except public holidays.

Directors’ interests
The benefi cial interests of the directors, together with non-benefi cial 
interests in Home Retail Group shares, are shown below:

  Number of ordinary shares 
    at 1 March 2008

Terry Duddy    684,924

Richard Ashton    214,051

Oliver Stocken    78,604

John Coombe    34,844

Andy Hornby    13,686

Penny Hughes    2,500

There were no changes to the above interests as at 30 April 2008.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 30 April 2008, the Company had been notifi ed of the following 
interests in its total voting rights and share capital in issue:

  Total number of  Percentage of 
  voting rights  total voting Nature of
  (ordinary shares) rights (%) holding

AXA Investment  154,550,260 17.61 Direct and 
Managers UK Ltd     Indirect

Barclays plc  44,313,816 5.05 Indirect

Aviva plc  43,211,654 4.93 Direct and
    Indirect

Legal & General Group plc 38,743,818 4.42 Direct

Citibank N.A.  34,819,282 3.97 Direct and
    Indirect

Save for the above, no person has reported any notifi able interest of 3% 
or more, or a 1% fall or rise above that 3%, or any non-material interest 
equal to/or more than 10% of the nominal value of the voting and share 
capital in issue of the Company.

Share capital and control
As at 30 April 2008, the Company’s issued share capital comprised a single 
class of shares referred to as ordinary shares. Details of the ordinary share 
capital can be found in note 28 to the fi nancial statements on page 116.
 The rights and obligations attaching to the shares are more fully set out 
in the Articles of Association of the Company. There are no restrictions on 
the transfer of ordinary shares in the Company other than the following:

 certain restrictions may from time to time be imposed by laws and 
regulations (such as insider trading laws); and

 pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, 
the Company requires certain employees to seek the Company’s 
permission to deal in the Company’s ordinary shares. 
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The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders 
which may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities and/or voting 
rights. There are no shareholdings which carry special rights relating to 
control of the Company. A change of control of the Company following a 
takeover bid may cause a number of agreements to which the Company 
or its trading subsidiaries is party to take effect, alter or terminate. In the 
context of the Company as a whole, these agreements are not considered 
to be signifi cant.

Purchase of own shares
At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 3 July 2007, 
authority was given for the Company to purchase, in the market, up to 
87,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each. The Company did not use this 
authority to make any purchases of its own shares during the period. At 
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 2 July 2008, shareholders will 
be asked to give a similar authority, details of which are contained in the 
accompanying circular to shareholders.
 Details of the Company’s interests in its own shares are set out in note 
29 to the fi nancial statements on page 117.

Employee share plans
Some of the Company’s employee share plans include restrictions on the 
transfer of shares while the shares are subject to the plan. As described in 
the directors’ remuneration report, non-executive directors receive part 
of their fees in shares which may not normally be transferred during a 
director’s period of offi ce.
 Where, under an employee share plan operated by the Company, 
participants are the benefi cial owners of the shares but not the registered 
owners, the voting rights are normally exercised by the registered owner 
at the direction of the participant.
 All of the Company’s share plans contain provisions relating to a 
change of control. Outstanding awards and options would normally 
vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject to the 
satisfaction of any performance conditions at that time.

Political donations
The Group has made no political donations and incurred no items of 
political expenditure.

Creditor payment
For all trade creditors, it is, and will continue to be for the next fi nancial 
year, Group policy to:

 agree and confi rm the terms of payment at the commencement of 
business with that supplier;

pay suppliers in accordance with applicable terms; and

 continually review the payment procedures and liaise with suppliers 
as a means of eliminating diffi culties and maintaining a good working 
relationship.

Trade creditor days of the Group at 1 March 2008 were 52 (2007: 49) 
based on the ratio of Group trade creditors at the end of the year to the 
amounts invoiced during the year by trade creditors. The Company has 
no trade creditors.

Articles of Association
The Articles of Association set out the internal regulation of the Company 
and cover such matters as the rights of shareholders, the appointment or 
removal of directors and the conduct of the Board and general meetings. 
Copies are available upon request and are displayed on the Company’s 
website at www.homeretailgroup.com. In accordance with the Articles 
of Association, directors can be appointed or removed by the Board 
or shareholders in general meeting. Amendments to the Articles of 
Association must be approved by at least 75% of those voting in person 
or by proxy at a general meeting of the Company. Subject to company law 
and the Articles of Association, the directors may exercise all the powers 
of the Company and may delegate authorities to committees. Details of 
the main Board committees can be found in the corporate governance 
statement on pages 64 to 68.
 At the 2008 Annual General Meeting two special resolutions, as set 
out in the Notice of Meeting, will be put to shareholders proposing the 
adoption at the Annual General Meeting of new Articles of Association 
to refl ect the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the amendment 
of these adopted Articles of Association to refl ect further provisions, 
coming into effect on 1 October 2008 (or such other date as the relevant 
provisions come into effect). 

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Jurys 
Inn Hotel, Midsummer Boulevard, Milton Keynes MK9 2HP, commencing 
at 11.30 am on Wednesday, 2 July 2008. The Notice of Meeting is 
included in a separate circular to shareholders which accompanies 
this annual report. It is also available on the Company’s website at 
www.homeretailgroup.com.

Relevant audit information
As at 30 April 2008, so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the auditors are unaware and each director 
has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order 
to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to 
ensure that the auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their 
willingness to continue in office and a resolution that they be 
reappointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Gordon Bentley
Secretary

30 April 2008

Registered Offi ce:
Avebury
489-499 Avebury Boulevard
Milton Keynes
MK9 2NW
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Corporate governance report

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of corporate governance 
and is committed to maintaining high standards. For the period under 
review, Home Retail Group plc has complied fully with the main and 
supporting principles set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code on 
Corporate Governance published by the Financial Reporting Council in 
June 2006 (‘the Code’). 
 The Company has fully complied with the remainder of the Code 
during the period under review by applying its principles as follows.

The Board
The Board consists of the chairman – Oliver Stocken, chief executive – 
Terry Duddy, fi nance director – Richard Ashton, and three non-executive 
directors: John Coombe (the senior independent director), Andy Hornby 
and Penny Hughes. The biographical details of the directors are shown 
on page 61. 
 The three non-executive directors are all determined by the Board to 
be independent and there are no relationships or circumstances which 
could affect, or appear to affect, a non-executive director’s judgement. 
They are appointed for three-year renewable terms. The Board is satisfi ed 
that the chairman’s other Board appointments and commitments do not 
place constraints on his ability to fulfi l properly his role as chairman of 
Home Retail Group. The chairman maintains an offi ce at Home Retail 
Group’s registered offi ce in Milton Keynes and is available as needed to 
carry out his responsibilities.
 The Board has six scheduled meetings each year and meets more 
frequently, as required. During the year, in addition to the scheduled 
meetings, a meeting to review strategy and three telephone conferences 
were held. The chairman has also met with the non-executive directors 
without the executive directors present.
 The time commitment expected of non-executive directors is not 
restricted to meetings of the Board and Board committees. They are 
available for consultation on specifi c issues related to their particular 
fi elds of expertise and additional time is spent visiting the Group’s 
businesses, distribution centres and stores and meeting informally with 
the chairman, executive directors, and senior management. The chairman 
also attends management conferences.

There is a formal schedule of matters specifi cally reserved to the Board. 
The Board has responsibility for:

 the overall management of the Group, approval of the Group’s 
long-term objectives and commercial strategy, and the review of 
performance, ensuring that any necessary corrective action is taken;

 the approval of preliminary announcements of half-yearly and fi nal 
results, including dividends, and the annual report and accounts, 
including the corporate governance statement, remuneration report 
and statement on internal controls;

 the approval of documentation to be put forward to shareholders 
at general meetings and all circulars and prospectuses other than 
routine documents;

 the approval of all appointments to the Board and of the com-
pany secretary, following recommendations by the nomination 
committee, ensuring adequate succession planning for the Board 
and senior management, and approving the terms of reference of the 
Board committees; and 

 determining the responsibilities of the chairman and of the 
chief executive.

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board and ensuring 
its effectiveness, for effective communication with shareholders and for 
facilitating the effective contribution of the non-executive directors and 
their constructive relationship with the executive directors.
 The chief executive is responsible for the day-to-day business 
of the Group, and is supported by the Operating Board, which 
includes the fi nance director and the managing directors of the main 
businesses and shared services functions (members of the Operating 
Board are shown on pages 60 and 61). Members of the Operating 
Board meet informally with the chairman and non-executive directors 
and regularly attend and present at Board meetings when relevant 
agenda items are under consideration.
 There is in place a procedure under which the directors, in furtherance 
of their duties, are able to take independent professional advice, if 
necessary, at the Company’s expense. The company secretary, who has 
been appointed by the Board, is responsible for advising the Board on all 
corporate governance matters and for ensuring that Board procedures 
are followed and all directors have access to this professional advice. The 
company secretary ensures that the Board receives regular briefi ngs on 
corporate governance matters and company legislation. 
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A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board and its committees 
was conducted during the year. The functioning of the Board, Board 
processes and interaction with management were discussed and 
opportunities for improvement were considered. In addition the audit 
and remuneration committees conducted internal reviews of their 
effectiveness taking into account the views of senior management and 
external advisers working with these committees. Individual appraisals of 
directors have been undertaken by the chairman. Under the leadership of 
the senior independent director, the non-executive directors met without 
the chairman present to appraise the chairman’s performance taking 
account of any views expressed by the executive directors. 
 All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders at the fi rst 
opportunity after their appointment and, thereafter, in accordance with 
the Company’s Articles of Association. All directors will be required to 
submit themselves for re-election at least once every three years. Terry 
Duddy and John Coombe will retire at the Annual General Meeting to be 
held on 2 July 2008 and will be eligible for re-election. 
 The letters of appointment for non-executive directors, including the 
chairman, are available for inspection by any person at the Company’s 
registered offi ce during normal business hours and at the Annual General 
Meeting (for 15 minutes prior to the meeting and during the meeting).

Board committees
The Board has appointed the following principal committees: remunera-
tion committee, nomination committee and audit committee. The terms 
of reference of each of these committees are available on the Company’s 
website at www.homeretailgroup.com. In order to facilitate better 
communication with Board members and the provision of information 
to the Board, all independent non-executive directors serve on each of 
the Board committees.

The attendance of directors at scheduled meetings of the Board and the 
Board committees was as follows:

 Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board meetings committee committee committee
member  (6)3,4 (4)3 (5)3 (2)3

Terry Duddy1  6 4 5 2

Richard Ashton1  6 4 – –

Oliver Stocken2  6 4 5 2

John Coombe 6 4 5 2

Andy Hornby 6 4 5 2

Penny Hughes  6 4 5 2

Notes:

1.   Terry Duddy and Richard Ashton are not members of the audit committee or the 
remuneration committee.

2.  Oliver Stocken is not a member of the audit committee.

3.   Includes the fi nal meetings of the period under review which took place in early 
March 2008.

4.   In addition to the scheduled meetings of the Board, a strategy meeting attended by 
all Board members and three telephone conferences were held. Board members either 
participated in the telephone conferences or communicated their views on the topics 
under discussion in advance. 

Remuneration committee
The remuneration committee is chaired by Andy Hornby and its other 
members are John Coombe, Penny Hughes and Oliver Stocken. In 
accordance with the Code, the committee meets not less than three 
times a year. Details of its responsibilities and of compliance with Section 
B of the Code regarding remuneration are set out on pages 69 to 77. 

Nomination committee
The nomination committee is chaired by Oliver Stocken and its other 
members are John Coombe, Terry Duddy, Andy Hornby and Penny 
Hughes. The nomination committee meets not less than twice a year 
and has responsibility for making recommendations to the Board on 
the composition of the Board and its committees, on retirements, 
appointments of additional and replacement directors and on succession 
planning. During the year, the nomination committee has considered the 
composition of the Board and its committees and succession planning.
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Audit committee
The audit committee is chaired by John Coombe and its other members 
are Andy Hornby and Penny Hughes. John Coombe was formerly chief 
fi nancial offi cer of GlaxoSmithkline plc. The Board considers that he 
has the recent and relevant fi nancial experience required to chair the 
audit committee. Andy Hornby and Penny Hughes offer a wide range of 
experience from positions at the highest level of business. Further details 
of all the members of the audit committee are set out on page 61. 
 The audit committee normally meets no fewer than four times 
a year and its principal responsibilities cover internal control and 
risk management, internal audit, external audit (including auditor 
independence) and fi nancial reporting. The chairman, chief executive 
and fi nance director are normally expected to attend meetings of 
the committee.
 The committee has a structured programme linked to the Group’s 
fi nancial calendar. During the period under review, the committee 
undertook the following activities:

 reviewed the preliminary announcement, annual report and fi nancial 
statements and the half-yearly announcement and considered reports 
from the external auditors identifying any accounting or judgemental 
issues requiring its attention;

 reviewed the statement in the annual report on the system of 
internal control;

 reviewed and approved audit plans for the external and 
internal auditors;

 considered quarterly reports from the head of internal audit on the 
results of internal audit reviews, signifi cant fi ndings, management 
action plans and timeliness of resolution;

 reviewed reports on the Group’s risk management process and 
risk profi le;

 reviewed presentations on risk and its identifi cation, management and 
control with senior management;

 reviewed, at each scheduled meeting, a report on any material 
litigation involving Group companies;

 reviewed management of fraud risk and incidences of fraud; and

 reviewed arrangements by which Group employees may, in con-
fi dence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in fi nancial 
reporting, dishonesty, corruption, breaches of business principles and 
other matters.

 One of the primary responsibilities of the audit committee is to 
make recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment, 
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors. A number of factors 
were taken into account by the committee in assessing whether to 
recommend the external auditors for re-appointment. These include:

 the quality of reports provided to the audit committee and the Board 
and the quality of advice given;

 the level of understanding demonstrated of the Group’s businesses 
and the retail sector; and

 the objectivity of the external auditors’ views on the controls around 
the Group.

The committee recognises that auditor independence is an essential part 
of the audit framework and the assurance it provides. Audit fees paid to the 
Company’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in respect of the period 
under review, exceeded non-audit fees. The committee has established 
control procedures to safeguard the objectivity and independence of the 
external auditors and to ensure that the independence of the audit work 
undertaken by the external auditors is not compromised.
 The committee has established a policy covering the type of non-audit 
work that can be assigned to the external auditors. The auditors may 
only provide such services provided that these do not confl ict with their 
statutory responsibilities and ethical guidance. These services are:

 further assurance services – where the external auditors’ knowledge 
of the Group’s affairs means that they may be best placed to carry 
out such work. This may include, but is not restricted to, shareholder 
and other circulars, regulatory reports and work in connection with 
acquisitions and divestments;

 taxation services – where the external auditors’ knowledge of 
the Group’s affairs may provide signifi cant advantages to the Group’s 
tax position and, where this is not the case, the work is put out to 
tender; and

 general – in other circumstances, the external auditors may provide 
services, provided that proposed assignments which exceed fi nancial 
limits set out in the policy are put out to tender and decisions to 
award work are taken on the basis of demonstrable competence and 
cost effectiveness.

However, certain areas of work are specifi cally prohibited, including 
work related to accounting records and fi nancial statements that will 
ultimately be subject to external audit and management of, or signifi cant 
involvement in, internal audit services.
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The committee chairman’s pre-approval is required before the Company 
uses non-audit services that exceed fi nancial limits set out in the policy.
 The committee receives half-yearly reports providing details of 
assignments and related fees carried out by the external auditors in 
addition to their normal work. Fees in respect of such assignments carried 
out in the period under review were:

    £m

Further assurance services   0.1

Taxation services    0.2

Accountability and audit
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Group’s system 
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is 
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve 
business objectives and can provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board has reviewed 
the effectiveness of the key procedures which have been established to 
provide internal control.
 The Board confi rms that the Company has in place an ongoing process 
for identifying, evaluating and managing the signifi cant risks faced by the 
Group including risks relating to environmental, social and governance 
matters. This process was in place throughout the period under review 
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and meets the 
requirements of the guidance issued in October 2005 entitled ‘Internal 
Control: Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’ (the Turnbull 
Report). The audit committee has kept under review the effectiveness of 
this system of internal control and has reported regularly to the Board.
 As part of the process that the Company has in place to review 
the effectiveness of the internal control system there are procedures 
designed to capture and evaluate failings and weaknesses, and to ensure 
that necessary action is taken to remedy any failings that may be 
categorised by the Board as signifi cant.

The key procedures which were operational in the period under review 
were as follows:

Risk assessment
 risks were reviewed by management and updated as part of a bi-annual 
process. The risks identifi ed were then reviewed by a risk committee 
chaired by the fi nance director and comprised of all divisional fi nance 
directors and the company secretary. The head of internal audit also 
attended its meetings;

 those risks classifi ed as high level risks by the risk committee were then 
reported to the Operating Board and audit committee. The schedule of 
high level risks was used as the basis for a programme of internal audit 
and assurance;

 the audit committee has delegated responsibility from the Board 
for considering operational, fi nancial and compliance risks on a 
regular basis and received its annual report on the controls over 
these risks. This included risks arising from environmental, social and 
governance matters.

Control environment and control activities
 the Group has established procedures for delegating authority, 
which ensures that decisions that are signifi cant, either because of 
the value or the impact on other parts of the Group, are taken at an 
appropriate level;

 the Group has implemented appropriate strategies to deal with each 
signifi cant risk that has been identifi ed. These strategies include 
internal controls, insurance and specialised treasury instruments;

 the Group sets out principles, policies and standards to be adhered to. 
These include risk identifi cation, management and reporting standards, 
ethical principles and practice and accounting policies.

Information and communication
 the Group has a comprehensive system of budgetary control, including 
monthly performance reviews by the Operating Board. The Operating 
Board also reviews a range of fi nancial and non-fi nancial performance 
indicators. These indicators were regularly reviewed to ensure that 
they remain relevant and reliable;

 the Group had whistleblowing procedures in place for employees to 
report any suspected improprieties.
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Monitoring
 a range of procedures was used to monitor the effective application 
of internal control in the Group, including management assurance 
through confi rmation of compliance with standards, and independent 
assurance through internal audit reviews and review by specialist 
third parties; 

 the internal audit department’s responsibilities include reporting to 
the audit committee on the effectiveness of internal control systems, 
with a particular focus on those areas identifi ed as being the greatest 
risk to the Group;

 follow-up processes were used to ensure there was an appropriate 
response to changes and developments in risks and the control 
environment.

Relations with institutional shareholders
The Company recognises the importance of communicating with 
its shareholders and does so through a variety of channels, including 
the annual report, the Annual General Meeting and the processes 
described below.
 Although the majority of shareholder contact is with the chief execu-
tive and the fi nance director (supported by management specialising in 
investor relations), it is the responsibility of the Board as a whole, led by 
the chairman, to ensure that a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders 
takes place. 
 Meetings with investors have been held following the preliminary and 
half-yearly results announcements. A monthly summary of all important 
or relevant issues raised by shareholders during the course of meetings 
and discussions is circulated to the Board and reviewed as appropriate 
at scheduled Board meetings.

Additionally the Board (and, in particular, the non-executive directors) 
has obtained an independent insight into the views of major shareholders 
by commissioning research from a third-party adviser across a balanced 
sample of the Company’s investors. These investors controlled some 
20% to 30% of the Company’s issued share capital. The fi ndings of the 
research were presented to the Board and the Operating Board by the 
third-party adviser. 
 Through these processes the Board is kept abreast of key issues. 
Shareholders also have a direct line of communication to the chairman,
particularly if there are areas for concern, whether it be about perform-
ance, strategy or governance. The senior independent director is also 
available should shareholders have concerns which contact through the 
normal channels of the chairman, chief executive and the fi nance director 
has failed to resolve or for which such contact is inappropriate. 
 All directors, including the chairmen of the audit, nomination and 
remuneration committees, intend to be present at the Annual General 
Meeting and be available to answer shareholders questions. Voting at the 
Annual General Meeting will be by way of a poll by members present at 
the meeting and following each vote the level of proxies lodged on each 
resolution, the balance for and against the resolution and the number 
of votes withheld will be displayed. The results of voting at the Annual 
General Meeting will also be available on the Company’s website at 
www.homeretailgroup.com as soon as possible after the meeting.

Corporate governance report continued
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This report has been prepared by the remuneration committee on behalf 
of the Board. In writing it, the committee has adopted the governance 
principles relating to directors’ remuneration as set out in the Combined 
Code. This report complies with the Companies Act 1985, as amended 
by the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and the Listing 
Rules of the Financial Services Authority. 
 
Chairman’s statement 
I am pleased to present the report on directors’ remuneration. In our 
fi rst full year as an independent plc, we have considered a wide range 
of issues to maintain the most appropriate and competitive remunera-
tion arrangements for our executive directors and the members of the 
Operating Board.
 A company’s remuneration should enable it to recruit, retain and 
motivate its employees. We have therefore identifi ed a number of 
underlying principles to ensure that our remuneration policy promotes 
the continued success of Home Retail Group:

 The remuneration strategy should help to support corporate objectives

 Remuneration arrangements should support the alignment of interests 
of shareholders and employees 

 Remuneration packages should be competitive and contain 
performance-related elements which increase with seniority

 All employees should be encouraged to participate in Home Retail 
Group as shareholders via our share plans.

During the past year, we have taken the following steps to apply these 
principles in relation to each of the executive directors and members of 
the Operating Board:

 Ensured that we have a balance of stretching performance conditions 
in incentive plans that are appropriate, support corporate objectives 
and are aligned with shareholder interests

 Agreed the performance conditions which are aligned to our three-year 
business plan for the co-investment plan that will operate for the fi rst 
time in respect of bonuses earned in 2007/08 

 Reviewed base salaries in the context of our performance, the external 
market and the general economic environment 

 Granted awards under the performance share plan 

 Agreed the bonus range for 2008/09

 Commissioned a comprehensive benchmarking review of reward for 
these roles

 Conducted a review of the remuneration committee’s performance 
and terms of reference.

In addition, in relation to all employees, we launched our fi rst Save as You 
Earn (SAYE) plan in 2007 and approved the operation of a subsequent 
SAYE plan in 2008.
 We are confi dent that Home Retail Group has in place the right 
remuneration structure and balance of measures to incentivise and 
reward both long-term and short-term performance.
 In this report reference is made to share plans that are legacy rollover 
arrangements from the time prior to the demerger from GUS plc in 
October 2006. Whilst these plans do not form part of our ongoing 
remuneration policy or strategy, until all of the plans have reached vesting, 
we will continue, for completeness, to report on these arrangements in 
the relevant tables.

Our remuneration policy 
Home Retail Group’s corporate objective is to perform consistently in 
the upper quartile of the general retail sector and our incentive structure 
is designed to support this goal. The policy is summarised in this report 
and it will continue to apply during the current fi nancial year. We review 
our policy on an ongoing basis to ensure that it continues to be effective 
and appropriate.
 The current incentive structure for the executive directors and 
members of the Operating Board comprises:

Median level base salary

Annual bonus, subject to achievement of fi nancial targets

 Opportunity to participate in a co-investment plan through the 
deferral of annual bonus 

Annual participation in the performance share plan.

Notice periods for executive directors provide for six months’ notice from 
the director and 12 months from the Company. Service contracts do not 
provide for additional payments in the event of termination or change 
of control.

Directors’ remuneration report
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Executive remuneration
The elements of remuneration for executive directors are detailed below. 
More than 50% of total potential remuneration (excluding pensions and 
benefi ts) is performance-related. There is no payment of bonus or long-
term incentives if performance targets are not achieved.
 

Element Purpose Performance measure

Base pay Refl ect competitive market level, Performance against agreed
  the economic environment and  objectives for annual pay
  individual performance  award

Annual bonus Achievement of annual fi nancial  Benchmark profi t before tax
  targets over a one-year period

Co-investment  Encourage re-investment of 50% based on earnings per
plan  bonus in shares  share and 50% based on 

return on invested capital 
over a three-year period

Performance  Reward outperformance Relative total shareholder
share plan relative to peer group  return over a three-year 

period and satisfactory 
fi nancial performance

This set of measures achieves an appropriate balance between competitive 
fi xed elements, set in line with Home Retail Group’s peers, and short-term 
and long-term incentives that motivate and reward sustained levels of 
performance. Where appropriate, independent consultants confi rm and 
calculate the extent to which performance conditions have been met.
 The chart below shows the percentage split of total remuneration 
(excluding pensions and benefi ts) based on the achievement of 50% of 
all performance measures. 

PSP based
on TSR
16.7%

Co-investment
match based

on ROIC,
12.5%

Co-investment
match based

on EPS,
12.5%

Base salary,
33.3%

Bonus based on
benchmark PBT,
25.0%

To assess the competitiveness of Home Retail Group’s remuneration, 
the remuneration committee completed a comprehensive bench-
marking exercise, comparing the reward profi les of executive director 
and Operating Board roles to those of UK peers. 
 As outlined in the directors’ report on page 62, the executive directors 
have signifi cant interests in Home Retail Group with both having a 
shareholding, including those held in trust from share plans, in excess of 
one times their salary. 
 Share awards granted by Home Retail Group may be satisfi ed with 
newly issued shares, treasury shares or shares purchased in the market. 
Currently, share awards are satisfi ed with shares held in an employee 
benefits trust. We will keep our policy for funding share awards 
under review.

Base salary and benefi ts
We review salaries annually and make adjustments to refl ect move-
ments in the employment market, the general economic environment 
and individual performance. In line with competitive practice, executive 
directors receive additional benefi ts that include a car or cash alternative, 
private health cover, pension and life insurance. Only their base salary 
is pensionable.

Annual bonus
Executive directors are eligible for an annual bonus. The remuneration 
committee sets targets by reference to Board-approved budgets. Bonuses 
for 2008/09 will comprise a payment of 25% of bonus opportunity for 
achieving an agreed benchmark profi t before tax (PBT) fi gure for the 
relevant year, equating to 37.5% of base salary and a maximum of 100% 
of bonus opportunity, equating to 150% of base salary, for substantially 
exceeding targets. 
 In the period under review, 2007/08, the bonus achieved was 77% of 
opportunity for executive directors.

Directors’ remuneration report continued
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Co-investment plan 
Executive directors can choose to defer receipt of part or all of their 
annual bonus and invest it instead in shares (‘invested shares’) under the 
terms of the co-investment plan, which is designed to reward sustained 
business performance. Additional shares (‘matching shares’) are granted 
(on a maximum 2:1 basis) subject to the satisfaction of performance 
measures (detailed below). In addition, the matching shares are subject to 
the retention of the invested shares and continued employment.
 During the period under review, performance measures were set which 
were aligned to our three-year business plan. The two performance 
measures are earnings per share (EPS) as to 50% of the matching shares 
and return on invested capital (ROIC) as to the other 50%, both of which 
are calculated over a three-year period. If total EPS growth of 10% or 
above is achieved, matching shares vest as to one half of the 50% that 
is subject to EPS, which increases to full vesting of that 50% when EPS 
growth reaches 25% or more for the period. The ROIC measure is based 
on an increase over the performance period which, if achieved, matching 
shares vest as to one half of the 50% that is subject to ROIC, increasing 
to full vesting of that 50% at the maximum. 

Performance share plan 
The performance share plan gives executive directors the right to receive 
shares in the Company subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions 
and their continued employment. This plan underpins our longer-term 
incentive structure by providing a share-based reward which vests only 
when we outperform our peer group. 
 We use the measure of total shareholder return (TSR) to assess our 
performance against the following peer group of companies over a three-
year period. The peer group is weighted to attach greater importance to 
companies that are closer comparators to Home Retail Group.

Carphone Warehouse Kesa Electricals Signet Group
Debenhams Kingfi sher Tesco
DSG International Next Topps Tiles
Halfords Group Marks & Spencer Group WH Smith
J Sainsbury Morrisons Woolworths Group

No awards vest if TSR is below the median return for the peer group. Once 
median performance is achieved, 25% of the award will vest, with 100% 
of the award vesting for performance at the 80th percentile, subject to 
rounding to take account of the weighting.
 The maximum grant normally available to executive directors is 100% 
of base salary, converted to shares at the price prevailing at the time the 
awards are made. Grants were made at this level in 2007. In exceptional 
circumstances, the remuneration committee may choose to grant a 
higher amount. 
 The awards vest to the extent that the performance test is achieved 
over a three-year period. TSR calculations are made by external advisers 
using the average share price over the three months before the start and 
end of the performance period.

All-employee share plans
We encourage employees to become shareholders through the operation 
of all-employee share plans. In 2007 we invited all employees to 
participate in an SAYE plan approved by HM Revenue & Customs 
(HMRC). This gave our employees the opportunity to apply for options 
to acquire shares in the future. The option price was 80% of the market 
value of a Home Retail Group share, calculated as the average price over 
the three business days before the date of invitation, this being 379p. The 
number of shares over which the option was granted was determined by 
the amount committed by the employee under their savings contract. 
 Employees could elect for their savings contract to run over a period 
of three or fi ve years, with a maximum saving of £250 per month. 
Options will be exercisable during the six months following the end of the 
contract. We intend to run a second invitation for employees in 2008. 

Non-executive directors 
Our policy on non-executive director remuneration is as follows:

 Remuneration should be in line with recognised best practice and 
suffi cient to attract and retain high-calibre non-executives

 Remuneration should be set by reference to the responsibilities 
undertaken by the non-executive, taking into account that each 
non-executive director is expected to be a member of the audit, 
remuneration and nomination committees

 Remuneration should be a combination of cash fees paid monthly and 
shares, bought twice each year

 Non-executive directors are obliged to retain shares awarded until their 
retirement from the Board of Directors. Any tax liability connected to 
these arrangements is the responsibility of the individual director

 Non-executive directors should not participate in share plans operated 
by the Group

 Non-executive directors should not receive any benefi ts in kind.

We review our fees for non-executive directors every two years. The next 
review will take place in 2009. Fees are reviewed in the light of market 
practice of FTSE 100 companies, the anticipated number of days worked 
and individual responsibilities. Non-executive remuneration from 1 April 
2007 is as follows:

   Fees Shares
   £000s Number

Chairman   175 23,000

Non-executive base fee   40 6,000

Senior independent director  10 –

Chair of audit/remuneration committee  10 4,500

Directors’ remuneration report continued
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Committee details
Role and membership
The remuneration committee is a committee of the Board. The members 
of the committee are:
Andy Hornby (chairman)
John Coombe
Penny Hughes 
Oliver Stocken 

The remuneration committee is responsible for making recommendations 
to the Board on the Group’s policy on the remuneration of the Operating 
Board as well as the specifi c remuneration packages for each of the 
executive directors and other members of the Operating Board, including 
pension rights and any compensation payments. 
 The remuneration of the non-executive directors and the chairman is 
reserved for consideration by the Board of Directors as a whole. No director 
is involved in any discussions about his or her own remuneration.
 The committee met fi ve times during the period under review. 
Attendance at these meetings is set out in the corporate governance 
statement on page 65. All members of the committee attended each of 
the meetings.

Advisers
At the invitation of the chairman of the committee, the chief executive 
attended meetings to give background information on remunera-
tion matters.
 During the period under review, Towers Perrin advised the committee 
on matters relating to performance conditions for long-term incentive 
plans and executive remuneration issues and provided the committee 
with salary survey data. Towers Perrin did not provide Home Retail Group 
with any other services. Linklaters LLP provided legal advice on share 
scheme rules.
 The committee was also advised by David Guise, Group HR Director 
and Paula Hayes, Director of Employment Policy & Reward. The secretary 
to the committee was Gordon Bentley, Company Secretary. 
 The terms of reference of the committee can be found on the 
Company’s website at www.homeretailgroup.com.

Performance graph 
The graph below compares the TSR for Home Retail Group against the 
FTSE 350 index of general retailers for the period from demerger to the end 
of the period under review. The directors feel that the FTSE 350 index of 
general retailers is the most appropriate choice of index as it is a relevant 
comparator group for a retail business. The graph has been prepared in 
accordance with the assumptions contained in the relevant legislation.
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The following sections are audited
As Home Retail Group demerged from GUS plc in October 2006, some legacy rollover arrangements are still in place in relation to GUS plc share plans. 
Where this is the case, reference is made to the previous GUS plc plan in the sections below.

Directors’ emoluments
The value of the base salary, annual bonus and benefi ts (excluding awards of options and restricted shares) of each director is set out in the following 
table. For the non-executive directors, this includes fees and shares as part payment for fees. At the end of the period under review the base salary for 
Terry Duddy was £800,000 pa and for Richard Ashton was £410,000 pa. 
 

     Period ended 1 March 2008  Shortened
       period ended
   Base    3 March 
   salary/ Annual Taxable  20071

£000   fees bonus benefi ts2 Total Total

Terry Duddy   800 920 48 1,768 1,793

Richard Ashton   408 472 27 907 793

Oliver Stocken    256 – – 256 161

John Coombe    95 – – 95 85

Andy Hornby   85 – – 85 67

Penny Hughes   60 – – 60 13

In accordance with the review of fees that applied from 1 April 2007, the following table provides details of shares purchased for non-executive 
directors on 17 October 2007 and shares that will be purchased after the preliminary announcement of Home Retail Group’s results. The values 
reported below are included within the remuneration reported in the directors’ emoluments table.

      Number of shares 
      to be purchased 
      after the 
      preliminary 
    Number of shares  announcement  
    purchased on Value of Home Retail Value
    17 October 2007 £000 Group’s results £0003

Oliver Stocken    9,583  38 11,500  31

John Coombe    4,375 18 5,250 14

Andy Hornby    4,375 18 5,250 14

Penny Hughes    2,500 10 3,000 8

Notes:

1.  The period ended 3 March 2007 was an 11-month period (1 April 2006 to 3 March 2007) and included the period before Home Retail Group was listed on 11 October 2006. 

2.  Included in this fi gure is a payment made by Home Retail Group to HMRC on behalf of each of the executive directors. This was due to a technicality in the way the exercise of share 
options was applied following the demerger from GUS plc which resulted in certain approved options being treated as unapproved for tax purposes. The additional income tax liability for 
all employees affected by this was met by Home Retail Group. As the payment was made directly to HMRC the amount included in the table above was grossed up in the payment made 
to HMRC.

3.  This is an indicative value based on the average share price over the last three dealing days of the period under review, 269.33p.

Directors’ remuneration report continued
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Share options 
Home Retail Group share options 
The Company granted the following rolled over options over its shares following demerger. The options are governed by the rules of the GUS plc 
executive share option scheme. No new options have been granted during the period under review and no options have been exercised. 

   Number    Total number   
Original of options Options Options Options of options  Date from 
grant  at 4 March granted during exercised during lapsed during at 1 March Exercise which Expiry
date 2007 the period the period the period 2008 price exercisable1 date

Terry Duddy        

31/05/05 197,277 – – – 197,277 359.9p 31/05/08 30/05/15

02/06/06 193,201 – – – 193,201 388.2p 02/06/09 02/06/16

Richard Ashton        

31/05/05 80,576 – – – 80,576 359.9p 31/05/08 30/05/15

02/06/06 90,159 – – – 90,159 388.2p 02/06/09 02/06/16

Note: 

1.  There is a performance test based on adjusted EPS. This requires EPS compound annual growth to exceed compound annual retail price infl ation by 4% per annum over a continuous 
three-year period.

Home Retail Group SAYE scheme 
Terry Duddy and Richard Ashton have joined the Home Retail Group SAYE scheme launched in 2007. 

   Number    Total number   
Original of options Options Options Options of options  Date from 
grant  at 4 March granted during exercised during lapsed during at 1 March Exercise which Expiry
date 2007 the period the period the period 2008 price exercisable date

Terry Duddy        

03/07/07 –  4,320 – – 4,320 379.0p 01/09/12 01/03/13

Richard Ashton        

03/07/07 – 2,493 – – 2,493 379.0p 01/09/10 01/03/11

Terry Duddy and Richard Ashton were awarded 49 free shares at the time of the demerger under an HMRC approved Share Incentive Plan. They will 
become fully entitled to these shares after three years, subject to continued employment. 

Details of the market price of Home Retail Group shares from the 4 March 2007 to 1 March 2008 are shown in the table below:

At 1 March 2008 259.0p
Highest price during the period 497.5p 
Lowest price during the period  259.0p 

Directors’ remuneration report continued
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Long-term incentive plans
Home Retail Group performance share plan
A conditional award of shares was granted to executive directors in 2007 under the Home Retail Group performance share plan. These awards, along 
with unvested and rolled over awards granted under the GUS plc performance share plan are included in the table below. No shares were released 
during the period. 

     Total plan
  Number of Plan shares Plan shares shares Share
Original  shares at awarded released held at price on 
grant  4 March during during 1 March date of Vesting
date 20071 the period the period 2008 award date2

Terry Duddy      

31/05/05 197,277 – – 197,277 – 31/05/08

02/06/06 193,201 – – 193,201 –  02/06/09

16/10/06 57,483 – – 57,483 –  16/10/09

09/05/07 – 170,648 – 170,648 468.8p 09/05/10

Richard Ashton      

31/05/05 40,287 – – 40,287 –  31/05/08

02/06/06 90,159 – – 90,159 –  02/06/09

16/10/06 27,998 – – 27,998 –  16/10/09

09/05/07 – 87,457 – 87,457 468.8p 09/05/10

Notes:

1.  The shares awarded under the GUS plc performance share plan in 2005 and June 2006 were subject to compulsory rollover at the time of demerger and will vest in accordance with the 
plan’s rules. 

2.  All awards granted in 2007 are subject to the performance conditions outlined on page 71. The performance condition for the rolled over awards is based on the TSR of Home Retail 
Group against its comparator group from the date of demerger to the normal vesting date.

Co-investment plan and re-investment plan
Invested Home Retail Group shares held under the GUS plc co-investment plan and re-invested shares held on behalf of participants under the Home 
Retail Group re-investment plan are included in the tables below and in the table of directors’ interests on page 62.

GUS plc co-investment plan 
Awards made in 2006 and 2007 were made under the GUS plc co-investment plan in accordance with the plan rules. No awards vested during the 
period under review.

     Invested and   
Original   Invested Matching matching Total plan 
grant Plan shares at  shares granted shares granted shares released shares held at Share price on Vesting
date 4 March 2007  during period during period during period 1 March 2008 date of award  date1

Terry Duddy

12/06/062 90,123 – – – 90,123 – 12/06/09

27/06/07 – 97,151 329,325 – 426,476 451.8p 27/06/10

Richard Ashton

27/06/07 – 47,361 160,546 – 207,907 451.8p 27/06/10

Notes:

1.  The matching share option becomes exercisable after three years, subject to continued employment and retention of the related invested shares. The matching share options for the 2006 
award remain exercisable until 12 June 2011 and for the 2007 award remain exercisable until 27 June 2012.

2.  Matching share options granted in 2006 were subject to compulsory rollover at the time of the demerger. The rolled over awards are governed by the rules of the GUS plc plan.

Directors’ remuneration report continued
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Home Retail Group re-investment plan 
At the time of the demerger, executive directors were offered the opportunity to re-invest shares acquired in 2004 and 2005 under the terms of the 
GUS plc co-investment plan into a one-off re-investment plan. 

     Invested and
     matching shares Total
    Plan shares released during plan shares
    as at period to held at Vesting
    4 March 2007 1 March 2008 1 March 2008 date

Terry Duddy    1,598,850 – 1,598,850 16/10/09

    399,713 – 399,713 16/10/10

    399,712 – 399,712 16/10/11

Richard Ashton    511,228 – 511,228 16/10/09

    127,807 – 127,807 16/10/10

    127,807 – 127,807 16/10/11

This one-off plan granted a matching award of Home Retail Group shares if participants agreed to re-invest the invested shares and/or matching 
awards from the 2004 and 2005 operation of the GUS plc co-investment plan. The receipt of the matching award is subject to satisfaction of 
performance conditions, the retention of re-invested awards and continued employment. The matching award is calculated on the basis of two Home 
Retail Group shares for each Home Retail Group share re-invested by the participant. 
 The matching award is made in two equal portions. The fi rst 50% of the award is time-based and will vest on the third anniversary of the grant. The 
remaining 50% of the award will vest subject to satisfaction of performance conditions, in two equal tranches on the fourth and fi fth anniversaries 
of the grant.

Retirement benefi ts
Terry Duddy
Prior to 1 April 2006, Terry Duddy was a member of the pension scheme which will provide him on retirement at age 60 with a pension in line with 
pre-6 April 2006 HMRC limits, with pensionable salary limited to the pension earnings cap. Since April 2006, Terry Duddy has been a member of 
the Home Retail Group secured unfunded retirement benefi ts scheme and will receive on retirement at age 60 a pension of one-thirtieth of full 
pensionable salary for each year of service from 1 April 2006.

Richard Ashton 
Richard Ashton is a member of the pension scheme which will provide him on retirement at age 60 with a pension of up to two-thirds of the pension 
earnings cap subject to HMRC limits. Since April 2006, for benefi ts in excess of the pensions earnings cap, he has been a member of the Home Retail 
Group secured unfunded retirement benefi t scheme.

The table set out below provides the disclosure of directors’ pension entitlements from tax-exempt schemes and unfunded arrangements.

      Additional  
      pension 
 Accrued  Accrued   Changes in earned to Transfer value
 pension at  pension at Transfer Transfer transfer values 1 March 2008 of the increase
 1 March 2008 3 March 2007 value at value at (less director’s (net of infl ation (less director’s
 per annum per annum 1 March 2008 3 March 2007 contributions) per annum) contributions)
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Terry Duddy 65 35 977 418 560 29 439

Richard Ashton 34 22 301 150 142 11 89

Directors’ remuneration report continued
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Service contracts
Both Terry Duddy and Richard Ashton were appointed as executive 
directors on 5 July 2006. Neither contract provides for extended notice 
periods or compensation in the event of termination or a change 
of control.

Terry Duddy
Terry Duddy has a service contract dated 27 July 1999, under which the 
Group is required to provide 12 months’ notice and he is required to 
provide six months’ notice. Under the terms of the contract, the Group 
reserves the option to terminate Terry Duddy’s employment by paying 
him in lieu of notice. The contract ends when he reaches the normal 
retirement age of 60.

Richard Ashton
Richard Ashton has a service contract dated 1 March 2005, under 
which the Group is required to provide 12 months’ notice and he 
is required to provide six months’ notice. The contract ends when 
Richard Ashton reaches the normal retirement age of 60. 

Chairman and non-executive directors
The agreements for the non-executive directors can be terminated 
without compensation and with one month’s notice, other than the 
chairman, who has a notice period of three months. Non-executive 
directors are appointed for a fi xed term of three years and appointments 
are reviewed at the end of the term.

By order of the Board

Andy Hornby
Chairman – remuneration committee

Directors’ remuneration report continued
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The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with 
the report of the auditors set out on page 79, is made with a view to 
distinguishing for shareholders the respective responsibilities of the 
directors and of the auditors in relation to the annual report and fi nan-
cial statements.
 The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report, the 
directors’ remuneration report and the Group and the Company fi nancial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
 Company law requires the directors to prepare fi nancial statements 
for each fi nancial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the 
Group fi nancial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union, and the 
Company fi nancial statements and the directors’ remuneration report 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
The Group and Company fi nancial statements are required by law to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the 
Group and of the profi t or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing these fi nancial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 state that the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs as 
adopted by the European Union and with regard to the Company 
fi nancial statements, that applicable United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the fi nancial statements; and

 prepare the Group and Company fi nancial statements on the going 
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group 
will continue in business, in which case there should be supporting 
assumptions or qualifi cations as necessary.

The directors confi rm that, to the best of their knowledge, they have 
complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial 
statements. The directors also confi rm that, to the best of their know-
ledge, the review of the business on pages 12 to 59 includes a fair review 
of the development and performance of the business and the position of 
Home Retail Group plc and the undertakings included in the consolidation 
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and 
uncertainties that they face.
 The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records 
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the fi nancial position 
of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the 
Group fi nancial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 and 
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and the Company fi nancial statements 
and the directors’ remuneration report comply with the Companies 
Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
 The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of 
the corporate and fi nancial information relating to the Group which is 
included on the Company’s website.
 Information published on the internet is accessible in many countries 
with different legal requirements. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements 
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
 Neither the Company nor the directors accept any liability to any 
person in relation to the annual report and fi nancial statements except 
to the extent that such liability could arise under English law. Accordingly, 
any liability to a person who has demonstrated reliance on any untrue 
or misleading statement or omission shall be determined in accordance 
with section 90A of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.
 The names and functions of the directors of Home Retail Group plc are 
listed on page 60 of this document.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
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We have audited the Group fi nancial statements of Home Retail Group plc for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008 which comprise the consolidated income 
statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash fl ow statement and the 
related notes. These Group fi nancial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the Parent Company fi nancial statements of Home Retail Group plc for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008 and on the 
information in the directors’ remuneration report that is described as having been audited.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the Group fi nancial statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Group fi nancial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with 
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose 
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group fi nancial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group fi nancial statements have been 
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you whether in our opinion the 
information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the Group fi nancial statements. The information given in the directors’ report includes that 
specifi c information presented in the business review that is cross referred from the business review section of the directors’ report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specifi ed 
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement refl ects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the Combined Code (2006) 
specifi ed for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the 
Board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures 
or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the annual report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Group fi nancial statements. The other 
information comprises only the chairman’s statement, the business review, the Board of Directors, the directors’ report, the corporate governance statement 
and the unaudited part of the directors’ remuneration report. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent 
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Group fi nancial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes 
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Group fi nancial statements. It also includes an assessment of the 
signifi cant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Group fi nancial statements, and of whether the accounting policies 
are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with 
suffi cient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other 
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Group fi nancial statements.

OPINION
In our opinion:

the Group fi nancial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the Group’s affairs 
as at 1 March 2008 and of its profi t and cash fl ows for the period then ended;

 the Group fi nancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the Group fi nancial statements. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
30 April 2008

Independent auditors’ report to the members 
of Home Retail Group plc – Group
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              52 weeks ended 1 March 2008       Short period ended 3 March 2007

     Before  After Before  After
     exceptional Exceptional exceptional exceptional Exceptional exceptional
     items items items items items items
    Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue    5,6 5,984.8 – 5,984.8  5,606.7 –  5,606.7
Cost of sales        (3,881.0) – (3,881.0) (3,680.5) –  (3,680.5)

Gross profi t       2,103.8 – 2,103.8 1,926.2 –  1,926.2
Net operating expenses    8,10 (1,717.5) 0.8 (1,716.7) (1,598.3) (22.7)  (1,621.0)

Operating profi t    5 386.3 0.8 387.1 327.9  (22.7)  305.2
– Finance income      62.3 – 62.3 55.5  6.9  62.4
– Finance expense       (25.0) – (25.0)  (71.4)  –  (71.4)
Net fi nancing income/(costs)    10,11  37.3 – 37.3  (15.9)  6.9 (9.0)
Share of post-tax profi t of joint ventures and associates  18  1.6 – 1.6  0.7 –  0.7

Profi t before tax       425.2 0.8 426.0  312.7  (15.8) 296.9
Taxation    10,12  (137.1) 5.7 (131.4)  (104.2)  (5.3) (109.5)

Profi t for the period attributable to equity shareholders     288.1 6.5 294.6  208.5  (21.1)  187.4

Earnings per share            pence   pence

– Basic    14     34.0    21.6
– Diluted    14    33.6    21.4

          52 weeks Short period
         ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
Non-GAAP measures        Notes £m £m

Reconciliation of profi t before tax (‘PBT’) to benchmark PBT  
Profi t before tax          426.0  296.9
Effect of exceptional items        10  (0.8)  15.8
Effect of fi nancing fair value remeasurements       11  9.0  0.1
Financing impact on retirement benefi t balances       11  (13.0)  (12.1)
Effect of demerger incentive schemes        30  11.7  5.8

Benchmark PBT           432.9  306.5

Benchmark earnings per share           pence pence

– Basic        14  33.9  23.7
– Diluted        14  33.6 23.5

Consolidated income statement
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008

            52 weeks Short period
         ended ended
            1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
           Notes £m £m

Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity
Net change in fair value of cash fl ow hedges 
– Foreign currency forward exchange contracts        (17.7) (27.3)
Net change in fair value of cash fl ow hedges transferred to inventory
– Foreign currency forward exchange contracts        19.8 24.6
Actuarial gains/(losses) in respect of defi ned benefi t pension schemes     25  73.9 (18.3)
Fair value movements on available-for-sale fi nancial assets       0.1 –
Currency translation differences           13.5  0.9
Tax (charge)/credit in respect of items taken directly to equity         (22.8)  10.0

Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity for the period     29  66.8  (10.1)
Profi t for the period attributable to equity shareholders         294.6  187.4

Total recognised income for the period attributable to equity shareholders       361.4  177.3
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            1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
           Notes £m £m

ASSETS          
Non-current assets          
Goodwill        15  1,922.7  1,878.9
Other intangible assets        16  83.7 73.4
Property, plant and equipment        17  731.8  691.6
Investment in joint ventures and associates       18  7.7  9.2
Deferred tax assets        27  46.6  74.4
Trade and other receivables        20  4.8  18.0
Retirement benefi t assets        25  83.7  9.3
Other fi nancial assets        26  14.2  8.5

Total non-current assets           2,895.2 2,763.3

Current assets         
Inventories        19 1,004.8 906.4
Trade and other receivables        20 597.8 569.4
Current tax assets          16.9 3.0
Other fi nancial assets        26 4.3 –
Cash and cash equivalents        21 174.0 283.8

Total current assets          1,797.8  1,762.6

Total assets           4,693.0  4,525.9

LIABILITIES         
Non-current liabilities         
Trade and other payables        22  (41.3)  (34.0)
Provisions        24  (72.6)  (57.1)
Deferred tax liabilities        27 (67.4)  (44.8)

Total non-current liabilities           (181.3)  (135.9)

Current liabilities          
Trade and other payables        22 (1,089.5)  (1,025.1)
Loans and borrowings        23  –  (223.6)
Provisions        24  (26.1)  (25.2)
Other fi nancial liabilities        26  (2.8)  (2.2)
Current tax liabilities           (48.1)  (35.2)

Total current liabilities          (1,166.5)  (1,311.3)

Total liabilities           (1,347.8)  (1,447.2)

Net assets           3,345.2  3,078.7

EQUITY         
Share capital        28,29  87.7  87.7
Merger reserve        29  (348.4)  (348.4)
Other reserves        29  3.9  (11.4)
Retained earnings        29  3,602.0  3,350.8

Total equity           3,345.2  3,078.7

The fi nancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2008 and were signed on its behalf by: 

Terry Duddy, Chief Executive   Richard Ashton, Finance Director

Consolidated balance sheet
At 1 March 2008
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            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
           Notes £m £m

Cash fl ows from operating activities          
Cash generated from operations        34  564.2  620.9
Interest received           18.7  13.6
Interest paid           (3.6)  (51.4)
Tax paid           (95.1) (101.6)

Net cash infl ow from operating activities          484.2  481.5

Cash fl ows from investing activities         
Purchase of property, plant and equipment          (176.3)  (134.1)
Proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment         3.4  3.8
Purchase of intangible assets           (35.0)  (28.3)
Loan to joint venture           –  (8.1)
Disposal of subsidiary – net of cash disposed          –  (3.8)
Purchase of investments         (8.7) –
Disposal of investment         3.9 –
Acquisition of businesses        7   (41.4)  –

Net cash used in investing activities           (254.1)  (170.5)

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities         
Purchase of own shares        29 –  (6.1)
Proceeds from the exercise of share options       29 2.3 –
Repayment of amounts to GUS plc           –  (50.3)
Repayment of fi nance leases           (0.1)  (1.2)
Repayment of loans         (225.0) –
Home Retail Group share of GUS plc fi nal dividend          –  (62.0)
Dividends paid         13  (118.9)  (34.6)

Net cash used in fi nancing activities           (341.7)  (154.2)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents         (111.6)  156.8

Movement in cash and cash equivalents          
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period      21   283.8  130.0
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes           1.8  (3.0)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents         (111.6)  156.8

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period      21   174.0  283.8

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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            1 March 3 March
            2008 2007 
Non-GAAP measures          Notes £m £m

Financing net cash:    
Cash at bank and in hand        21 174.0 283.8
Loans and borrowings        23 – (223.6)

Total fi nancing net cash         174.0 60.2

Operating net (debt):    
Property leases         (3,057.1) (2,920.1)

Total operating net (debt)         (3,057.1) (2,920.1)

Total net (debt)         (2,883.1) (2,859.9)

Deduct:    
Operating leases that are off balance sheet        3,057.1 2,920.1

Total net cash refl ected in balance sheet         174.0 60.2

The Group uses the term net cash/(debt) which highlights the Group’s aggregate net indebtedness to banks and other fi nancial institutions together with 
debt-like liabilities, notably property leases. The capitalised value of these property leases is £3,057.1m (2007: £2,920.1m) based upon discounting the 
current rentals at the estimated current long-term cost of borrowing of 5.3% (2007: 5.4%).

Analysis of net cash/(debt)
At 1 March 2008
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Home Retail Group plc (‘the Company’), which is the ultimate parent company of Home Retail Group (‘the Group’), is a public limited company 
incorporated and domiciled in England under the Companies Act 1985 and listed on the London Stock Exchange. Home Retail Group is a home and general 
merchandise retailer. These consolidated fi nancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2008.

Statement of compliance 
The consolidated fi nancial statements of Home Retail Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) 
and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) interpretations as adopted by the European Union. They also comply with those 
parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRSs.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Previously, Home Retail Group (then part of GUS plc) prepared its fi nancial information for the fi nancial year for the 12 months to 31 March except for the 
results of Homebase which were included for the 12 months to 28 or 29 February each year, with adjustments to refl ect the balance sheet movements in 
cash to the end of March. This was done to facilitate comparability of the income statement by avoiding the distortions that would arise relating to changes 
in the timing of Easter. In order to align the year-end across the Group, the Board of Directors decided to amend the Group’s fi nancial year to a 52-week 
period ending on the Saturday closest to the end of February. Therefore, following the change of accounting reference date in the prior period, the audited 
accounts have been prepared for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008 with comparatives for the short period ended 3 March 2007. Unless otherwise stated, 
references to 2007 within the notes to the fi nancial statements are for the short period 1 April 2006 to 3 March 2007. 

The Group consolidated fi nancial statements are presented in sterling, rounded to the nearest hundred thousand. They are prepared on the historic cost 
basis modifi ed for the revaluation of certain fi nancial instruments. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated 
fi nancial statements are set out in note 3. Unless otherwise stated, these policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented.

Group reorganisation
Home Retail Group demerged from its parent company, GUS plc, with effect from 10 October 2006. Shares in Home Retail Group were admitted to the 
Offi cial List of the Financial Services Authority and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s main market for listed securities on 11 October 2006. All 
Home Retail Group companies which were owned by GUS plc prior to demerger were transferred under the new ultimate parent company, Home Retail 
Group plc, prior to 11 October 2006. The introduction of this new ultimate holding company constituted a group reconstruction and was accounted for 
using merger accounting principles. Therefore, although the Group reorganisation did not become effective until 10 October 2006, the comparative fi gures 
in the consolidated fi nancial statements of Home Retail Group are presented as if the current Group structure had always been in place.

Basis of consolidation
The Group fi nancial statements consist of the fi nancial statements of the ultimate Parent Company (Home Retail Group plc), entities controlled by the 
Company (its subsidiaries) and the Group’s share of its interests in joint ventures and associates. The accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with 
the policies adopted by the Group for the purposes of the Group’s consolidation.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose operating and fi nancing policies are controlled by Home Retail Group plc. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on 
which control was transferred to Home Retail Group. Subsidiaries cease to be consolidated from the date that Home Retail Group no longer has control. 
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Home Retail Group companies have been eliminated on consolidation.

Joint ventures and associates
Joint ventures are entities in which the Group holds an interest on a long-term basis and which are jointly controlled by the Group and one or more other 
interested parties under a contractual agreement. Associates are entities over which Home Retail Group has signifi cant infl uence but not control. The equity 
method is used to account for investments in joint ventures and associates and investments are initially recognised at cost.

Home Retail Group’s share of net assets of its joint ventures and associates are included on the Group balance sheet. Home Retail Group’s share of its joint 
ventures and associates post-acquisition profi ts or losses are recognised in its income statement. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted 
against the carrying value of the investment. The carrying amount of an investment in a joint venture or associate is tested for impairment by comparing its 
recoverable amount to its carrying amount whenever there is an indication that the investment may be impaired.

Business combinations
Under the requirements of IFRS 3, all business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of business acquisitions is the aggregate 
of fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, equity instruments issued by the acquirer and any costs directly 
attributable to the business combination. The cost of a business combination is allocated at the acquisition date by recognising the acquiree’s identifi able 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that satisfy the recognition criteria at their fair values at that date. The acquisition date is the date on which the 
acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree. Intangible assets are recognised if they meet the defi nition of an intangible asset contained in IAS 38 
and its fair value can be measured reliably. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifi able net assets acquired 
is recognised as goodwill.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED
Changes in accounting standards
A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008, but have had no material impact on the 
results or the fi nancial position of the Group.

IFRS 7 – ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’ and the complementary amendment to IAS 1 – ‘Presentation of fi nancial statements – Capital disclosures’, 
introduces new disclosures relating to fi nancial instruments and does not have any impact on the classifi cation and valuation of the Group or Company’s 
fi nancial instruments or the disclosures relating to trade and other payables.

IFRIC 8 – ‘Scope of IFRS 2’ and IFRIC 11 – ‘IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions’ have not had any impact on the recognition of share-based 
payments in the Group.

IFRIC 9 – ‘Reassessment of embedded derivatives’ and IFRIC 10 – ‘Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment’ have not had any impact on the Group.

At the balance sheet date a number of IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations were in issue but not yet effective. 

The Group has not early-adopted IFRS 8 – ‘Operating Segments’ which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. It is not 
anticipated that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the fi nancial statements of the Group, but this standard will be fully 
considered in due course.

The Group has not early-adopted the revision to IAS 23 – ‘Borrowing Costs’ which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. 
It is not anticipated that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the fi nancial statements of the Group, but this standard will be fully 
considered in due course.

The Group has not early-adopted IFRS 2 Amendment – ‘Share-Based Payments’ – amendment relating to vesting conditions and cancellations, which is 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, as the amendment has yet to be endorsed by the EU. Application of this amendment 
in the current period would not have had a material impact on the fi nancial statements of the Group, but the materiality of its impact in future years is 
uncertain, as it is dependent on the level of cancellations of options by participants in each period. The amendment to this standard will be fully considered 
in due course.

Amendments to IFRS 3 – ‘Business Combinations’ are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009. It is not anticipated that the adoption of this 
standard will have a material impact on the fi nancial statements of the Group, but this standard will be fully considered in due course.

A revision to IAS 1 – ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. It is not anticipated that the 
adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the fi nancial statements of the Group, but this standard will be fully considered in due course.

IFRIC 12 – ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 but will not have any impact on the Group.

IFRIC 13 – ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’ and IFRIC 14 – ‘IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defi ned Benefi t Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their 
Interaction’ are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008 and 1 January 2008 respectively. It is not anticipated that the adoption of these 
interpretations will have a material impact on the fi nancial statements of the Group, however, these will be fully considered in due course.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The preparation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The resulting accounting estimates, which are based on management’s best judgement at 
the date of the fi nancial statements, will, by defi nition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods where appropriate. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year are 
discussed below:

Taxes
The Group is subject to taxes in a number of jurisdictions. Signifi cant judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes as there are many 
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities 
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the fi nal tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially 
recorded, such differences will impact the results for the year and the respective income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such 
determination is made.

Pension benefi ts
The present value of the defi ned benefi t obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. 
The assumptions used in determining the defi ned benefi t obligations and net pension costs include the expected long-term rate of return on the relevant plan 
assets and the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions may impact the amounts disclosed in the Group’s balance sheet and income statement.
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The expected return on plan assets is calculated by reference to the plan investments at the year-end and is a weighted average of the expected returns on 
each main asset type (based on market yields available on these asset types at the year-end).

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate used to determine the present value of estimated 
future cash outfl ows expected to be required to settle the defi ned benefi t obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers 
the market yields of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefi ts will be paid, and that have terms to maturity 
consistent with the estimated average term of the related pension liability. Other key assumptions for defi ned benefi t obligations and pension costs are 
based in part on market conditions at the relevant year-ends and additional information is disclosed in note 25.

Goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) at the level of each business segment. The recoverable amount of each of the business segments 
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those regarding discount rates, growth rates 
as well as expected changes to costs and selling prices in the period. Management have estimated the discount rate taking account of the specifi c risks 
inherent within the Group’s retail businesses. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future change in 
the markets. These calculations use cash fl ow projections based on fi nancial plans approved by management looking forward up to fi ve years. Cash fl ows 
are extrapolated using estimated growth rates beyond the plan period. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations, which management believes 
are appropriate for both retail businesses, are:

a real growth rate of 2.25% (2007: 2.25%) has been used to extrapolate cash fl ows beyond the plan period; and

a post-tax discount rate of 7% (2007: 7%) applied to the cash fl ow projections which equates to a pre-tax rate of approximately 10% (2007: 10%). 

Impairment of assets
Assets are subject to impairment reviews whenever changes in events or circumstances indicate that an impairment may have occurred. Assets are written 
down to the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Value-in-use is calculated by discounting the expected cash fl ows from the asset at an 
appropriate discount rate for the risks associated with that asset. This includes estimates of both the expected cash fl ows and an appropriate discount rate 
which use management’s assumptions and estimates of the future performance of the asset. Differences between expectations and the actual cash fl ows 
will result in differences in the level of impairment required.

Provisions
Provisions have been estimated for onerous leases, self insurance and other liabilities. These provisions represent the best estimate of the liability at the 
balance sheet date, the actual liability being dependent on future events such as trading conditions at a particular store or the incidence of insurance claims 
against the Group. Expectations will be revised each period until the actual liability arises, with any difference accounted for in the period in which the 
revision is made.

Inventory provisions
Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value which requires the estimation of the eventual sales price of goods to customers in the 
future. Any difference between the expected and the actual sales price achieved will be accounted for in the period in which the sale is made. 

3. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale of goods and services to external customers, net of value added tax, rebates, discounts and returns. 
Revenue is recognised as follows:

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably. Revenue on goods to be delivered is recognised when the customer accepts delivery. The Group operates a variety of sales promotion 
schemes that give rise to goods being sold at a discount to the standard retail price. Revenue is adjusted to show sales net of all related discounts. 
Commissions receivable on the sale of services for which the Group acts as agent are included within revenue. A provision for estimated returns is made 
representing the profi t on goods sold during the year which will be returned and refunded after the year-end.

Interest income
Interest income on customer store card accounts and loans is recognised as revenue on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated fi nancial information is presented in sterling, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. Items included in the 
fi nancial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity 
operates (the functional currency).
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3. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Translation differences on 
monetary items are taken to the income statement with the exception of differences on transactions that are subject to effective cash fl ow hedges. 
Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss and are included in either equity or the income statement 
as appropriate.

Group companies
The results and fi nancial position of overseas Home Retail Group entities are translated into sterling as follows:

assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the period; and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity. 

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to equity. Tax charges and credits 
attributable to those exchange differences are taken directly to equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the 
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets 
and liabilities of the foreign entity and are translated at the closing rate.

Goodwill
Goodwill is the excess of the fair value of the consideration payable for an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of identifi able net assets of 
a subsidiary, associate or joint venture acquired at the date of acquisition. Fair values are attributed to the identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities that existed at the date of acquisition, refl ecting their condition at that date. Adjustments are made where necessary to bring the accounting 
policies of acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment. Goodwill is stated at cost less any provision for impairment. Goodwill is not amortised and is tested annually for impairment. 
An impairment charge is recognised where the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its recoverable amount, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs 
to sell and its value-in-use. Value-in-use calculations are performed using cash fl ow projections discounted at a rate taking account of the specifi c risks 
inherent within the Group’s retail businesses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity 
sold, allocated where necessary on the basis of relative fair value.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition of a business are capitalised separately from goodwill, if those assets are separable and their fair value 
can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately from the acquisition of a business are capitalised at cost. Certain costs incurred in the 
developmental phase of an internal project are capitalised as intangible assets provided that a number of criteria are satisfi ed. These include the technical 
feasibility of completing the asset so that it is available for use or sale, the availability of adequate resources to complete the development and how the 
asset will generate probable future economic benefi t.

The cost of other intangible assets with fi nite useful economic lives is amortised over that period. The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for 
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If impaired, they are written down to the 
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use.

Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specifi c software. Computer software 
licences are held at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over three to fi ve years. Costs that are directly associated with the production of 
identifi able and unique software products controlled by the Group, and that will generate economic benefi ts beyond one year, are recognised as intangible 
assets. Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over three to fi ve years. Costs associated with 
developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are held at cost being the purchase price and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into use less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment in value.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis as follows:

freehold properties are depreciated over 50 years;

leasehold premises are depreciated over the period of the lease;

plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated over two to 10 years according to the estimated life of the asset;

equipment on hire or lease is depreciated over the period of the lease; and

land is not depreciated. 

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Receivables
Trade
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. 
The amount of the provision is recognised in the balance sheet, with the cost of unrecoverable trade receivables recognised in the income statement 
immediately.

Financial services
The gross margin from the sale of a retail product on extended credit terms is recognised at the time of the sale of the retail product. The fi nance charges 
relating to the sale of fi nancial services are included in the income statement as and when instalments are received. Income under instalment agreements 
is credited to the income statement using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its 
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash fl ow discounted at the original effective interest rate, and continues to recognise the unwinding of 
the discount as interest income.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost bases in use within the Group are general retail goods valued on a standard 
cost or weighted average basis which approximates to actual cost. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less applicable variable selling expenses. Costs of inventory include the transfer from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash fl ow hedges relating 
to their purchase.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less and bank overdrafts.

Borrowings and borrowing costs
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. Borrowings 
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value and other borrowing 
costs is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. However, 
if the deferred taxation arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profi t or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profi t will 
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:

the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;

it is more likely than not that an outfl ow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

the amount has been reliably estimated. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outfl ow will be required 
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outfl ow with respect 
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash fl ows at a pre-tax rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, 
the risks specifi c to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense. 
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement is certain.

Provisions are made for onerous lease contracts for stores that have closed or where a decision to close has been announced, and for those stores where 
the projected future trading revenue is insuffi cient to cover the lower of exit cost or value-in-use.

Provisions are also made for legal claims, restructuring costs and estimated cost of claims incurred by the Group’s captive insurance company but not 
settled at the balance sheet date.

Operating leases
Leases in which a signifi cant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classifi ed as operating leases. Payments made under 
operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Incentives from lessors are recognised as a systematic 
reduction of the charge over the life of the lease.

Employee benefi ts
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defi ned benefi t pension plans is the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation at the balance 
sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defi ned benefi t 
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected-unit credit method. The present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outfl ows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency 
in which the benefi ts will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the consolidated statement of 
recognised income and expense. Past service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the 
employees remaining in service for a specifi ed period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis 
over the vesting period.

Catalogue costs
Costs incurred during the production of the Group’s catalogues are deferred on the balance sheet net of any associated advertising revenue and marketing 
support until the catalogue is launched, at which point the net deferred cost is charged to the income statement.

Dividends
Dividends recommended by the Board of Directors and unpaid at the year end are not recognised in the fi nancial statements until they have been approved 
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Interim dividends are recognised in the fi nancial statements when they are paid. Final dividends are 
recognised in the fi nancial statements when they are approved by the shareholders.

Insurance
Certain of the Group’s insurances are handled by the Group’s captive insurance company, Global Guernsey Limited, which accounts for all insurance business 
on an annual basis and the net consolidated result is dealt with as part of the operating costs in these accounts. Insurance premiums in respect of insurance 
placed with third parties and reinsurance premiums in respect of risks not retained by the Group’s captive insurance company are charged to the income 
statement in the period to which they relate.

Financial instruments
The Group classifi es its fi nancial instruments in the following categories: fi nancial assets and liabilities at fair value, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classifi cation depends on the purpose for which the fi nancial instruments were acquired. Management determines the classifi cation of its fi nancial 
instruments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this position at every reporting date.
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Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the income statement
Financial assets and liabilities are those designated at fair value through the income statement. Derivatives are generally designated as hedges. Items in this 
category are classifi ed as current assets or current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance 
sheet date.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the 
Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for those 
with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are classifi ed as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade 
and other receivables in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classifi ed in any of the other categories. They are 
included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Accounting for derivative fi nancial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are recognised at fair value on the date a contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising 
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group 
designates certain derivatives as cash fl ow hedges.

The Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items at the hedge inception, as well as its risk management objective and 
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether 
the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash fl ows of hedged items. Movements on the hedging 
reserve in equity are shown in the Group statement of recognised income and expense.

Fair value hedges
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with any 
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest 
rate swaps hedging fi xed rate borrowings is recognised in the income statement within ‘fi nance costs’. Changes in the fair value of the hedged fi xed rate 
borrowings attributable to interest rate risk are recognised in the income statement within ‘fi nance costs’.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest 
method is used is amortised to the income statement over the period to maturity.

Cash fl ow hedges
The cash fl ow hedges are intended to hedge the foreign currency exposures of the future purchases of inventory. The effective portion of changes in the fair 
value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash fl ow hedges are recognised in equity. Any gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion would be 
recognised immediately in the income statement. The hedged cash fl ow is expected to occur up to one year into the future and will be transferred to the 
consolidated income statement via inventory carrying value as applicable.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of fi nancial instruments traded in organised active fi nancial markets is based on quoted market prices at the close of business on the balance 
sheet date. The quoted market price used for fi nancial assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for fi nancial 
liabilities is the current offer price. The fair value of fi nancial instruments for which there is no quoted market price is determined by a variety of methods 
incorporating assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar 
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash fl ows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining 
fi nancial instruments.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date. The nominal value less 
estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate to their fair values. The fair value of fi nancial liabilities is estimated 
by discounting the future contractual cash fl ows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar fi nancial instruments.

Share-based payments
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans. The fair value of the shares granted is recognised as an expense after 
taking into account the best estimate of the number of awards expected to vest. The Group revisits the vesting estimate at each balance sheet date. 
Non-market performance conditions are included in the vesting estimate. Expenses are incurred over the vesting period. Fair value is measured at the date 
of grant using whichever of the Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo model and closing market price is most appropriate to the award. Market-based performance 
conditions are included in the fair value measurement on grant date and are not revisited for actual performance.
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3. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Non-GAAP fi nancial information
Exceptional items
Items which are both material and non-recurring are presented as exceptional items within their relevant income statement line. The separate reporting of 
exceptional items helps provide a better indication of underlying performance of the Group. Examples of items which may be recorded as exceptional items 
are impairment charges, restructuring costs and the profi ts/losses on the disposal of businesses.

Benchmark profi t before tax (‘PBT’)
The Group uses the term benchmark PBT as a measure which is not formally recognised under IFRS. Benchmark PBT is defi ned as profi t before amortisation 
of acquisition intangibles, store impairment charges, exceptional items, fi nancing fair value remeasurements, fi nancing impact on retirement benefi t balances, 
one-off demerger incentive costs and taxation. This measure is considered useful in that it provides investors with an alternative means to evaluate the 
underlying performance of the Group’s operations.

Net debt
The Group uses the term net debt which is considered useful in that it provides the Group’s aggregate net indebtedness to banks and other fi nancial 
institutions together with debt-like liabilities, notably property leases.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors
There are a number of fi nancial risks and uncertainties which could impact the performance of the Group: market risk (foreign exchange and interest rate 
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group operates a structured risk management process which identifi es, evaluates and prioritises risks and uncertainties.

The Group’s treasury function seeks to reduce exposures to foreign exchange, interest rate and other fi nancial risks, and to ensure suffi cient liquidity is 
available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets safely and profi tably. Policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by the Board 
of Directors as well as subject to audit review.

Market risk – foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar 
and the euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, entities in the Group use forward 
contracts, transacted with external banks. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are 
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

Group Treasury is responsible for managing the net position in each foreign currency by using external forward currency contracts. The key objective of the 
Group’s foreign exchange transaction exposure management is to minimise potential volatility in profi ts which could arise as a result of exchange rate 
fl uctuations whilst maintaining an appropriate competitive stance.

To achieve the above objectives, the Group will initially seek to hedge up to 90% of any foreign exchange transaction risks expected to arise as a result of 
uncertain, but probable, foreign currency cash fl ows up to one year forward. This subsequently increases to 100% as cash fl ows become certain. Probable 
cash fl ows for this purpose will be considered for hedging once included within rolling 12 month forecasts.

For segment reporting purposes, each subsidiary designates contracts with Group Treasury as fair value hedges or cash fl ow hedges, as appropriate. External 
foreign exchange contracts are designated at Group level as hedges of foreign exchange risk on specifi c assets, liabilities or future transactions on a gross basis.

The cash fl ow hedges are intended to hedge the foreign currency exposure of future purchases of inventory. Weekly reports are made to management to 
demonstrate that this objective is being reached. The hedged cash fl ows are expected to occur up to one year into the future and will be transferred to the 
consolidated income statement or inventory carrying value as applicable. The Group has foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to foreign 
currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is not hedged.

If the UK pound had weakened/strengthened by 5 cents (approximately 2.5%) against the US dollar as at 1 March 2008, with all other variables held 
constant, post-tax profi t would have been unchanged (2007: unchanged). Equity would have been £5.3m (2007: £5.0m) higher/lower, arising mainly from 
the revaluation of US dollar forward currency contracts.

If the UK pound had weakened/strengthened by 5 cents (approximately 3.8%) against the euro as at 1 March 2008, with all other variables held constant, 
post-tax profi t would have been £2.6m (2007: £0.8m) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of sterling-
denominated cash balances in subsidiary companies with euro functional currency. Equity would have been £0.3m higher/lower (2007: £3.0m), arising 
mainly from foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of euro-denominated net assets held by subsidiary companies with euro functional currency.
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Market risk – cash fl ow and fair value interest rate risk
Whilst the Group’s Financial Services business has gross instalment receivable balances on fi xed interest rates and fl oating rates, the Group’s income and 
operating cash fl ows are still considered to be substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group maintains a portfolio of cash and borrowings which can result in either a net cash position or a net debt position. The Group currently holds a net 
cash position with no borrowings.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from any future long-term borrowings that it may incur. Borrowings issued at fi xed rates expose the Group to fair value 
interest rate risk. The principal objective of the Group’s interest rate risk management is to manage the trade-off between obtaining the most benefi cial 
effective rates of interest whilst minimising the impact of interest rate volatility on profi ts before tax. The aim will normally be to manage interest rate risks 
by achieving a ratio of between 30% and 70% of net debt fi xed rate.

If the Group were to incur long-term borrowings it would manage its cash fl ow interest rate risk by using fi xed-to-fl oating interest rate swaps. Such interest 
rate swaps would have the economic effect of converting borrowings from fi xed rates to fl oating rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group would 
agree with other parties to exchange, at specifi ed intervals (mainly quarterly), the difference between fi xed contract rates and fl oating-rate interest 
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts.

At 1 March 2008 the Group had no borrowings. At 3 March 2007 if interest rates on pound-denominated borrowings had been 10 basis points higher/lower 
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profi t for the period would have been £0.2m lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest 
expense on fl oating rate borrowings; other components of equity would not be affected by such a change in interest rates because gains and losses are not 
recognised directly in equity, but released directly to the income statement.

Credit risk
The Group has no signifi cant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of fi nancial services products are made to customers 
with an appropriate credit history. Sales to retail customers are made in cash, via major credit cards or via in-house operated fi nancial products.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk with regard to treasury transactions is managed by dealing only with banks and major fi nancial institutions with credit 
ratings of at least AA- (Standard & Poor’s) or Aa1 (Moody’s) and within a limit of £100m set for each organisation. Foreign exchange counterparty limits are 
set at £20m for each organisation. Dealing activity is closely controlled and counterparty positions are monitored daily.

Liquidity risk
Home Retail Group manages its cash and committed bank borrowing facilities to maintain liquidity and funding fl exibility. Liquidity is achieved through 
arranging funding ahead of requirements and maintaining suffi cient undrawn committed facilities to meet short-term needs. At 1 March 2008, the Group 
had undrawn committed borrowing facilities available of £700m which expire in 2012. This facility attracts fi xed charges and includes a covenant that 
borrowing cannot exceed 1.5 times earnings before interest, tax, dividends, amortisation and rent. These facilities are in place to enable the Group to fi nance 
its working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes.

Group policy is that all other cash is invested either in AAA overnight funds or fi xed term deposits with banks rated AA- or higher. Unlimited amounts with a 
maturity of up to one year may be invested with sign off from the fi nance director but the Board may approve an investment with an unlimited duration.

The table below analyses the Group’s fi nancial liabilities and derivative fi nancial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fl ows. Balances due within 
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not signifi cant.

      Less than
      3 months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months Total
At 1 March 2008      £m £m £m £m £m

Unsecured bank loan      –  – – – –
Other borrowings      –  – – – –
Fair value hedge      –  – – – –
Trade and other payables      (596.6)  – – – (596.6)

      Less than
      3 months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months Total
At 3 March 2007      £m £m £m £m £m

Unsecured bank loan      – (222.6) – – (222.6)
Other borrowings      – (0.9) – – (0.9)
Fair value hedge      –  (0.5) – – (0.5)
Trade and other payables      (530.5) – – – (530.5)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
When a forward foreign exchange contract matures, this requires an outfl ow of the currency being sold and an infl ow of the currency being bought. The 
table below analyses the Group’s outfl ow and infl ow from derivative fi nancial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fl ows. Balances due 
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not signifi cant.

      Less than
      3 months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months Total
At 1 March 2008      £m £m £m £m £m

Forward foreign exchange contracts – cash fl ow hedges
– outfl ow      (256.6)  (200.9) (86.1) – (543.6)
– infl ow      256.7  201.1 83.9 – 541.7

      Less than
      3 months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months Total
At 3 March 2007      £m £m £m £m £m

Forward foreign exchange contracts – cash fl ow hedges         
– outfl ow      (294.0) (143.4) (118.8) (22.8) (579.0)
– infl ow      291.0  142.9 120.3 22.9 577.1

Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders 
and benefi ts for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group fi nances its 
operations through a combination of retained profi ts, bank borrowings and property leases. The Group has signifi cant liabilities through its obligations to 
pay rents under property leases. The Group, in common with the credit rating agencies, treats its lease liabilities as debt when evaluating fi nancial risk and 
investment returns. The Group’s net debt varies signifi cantly throughout the year due to trading seasonality.

Foreign currency
The principal exchange rates used were as follows:
       Average           Closing

       52 weeks Short period 52 weeks Short period
       ended ended ended ended
       1 March 3 March 1 March 3 March
       2008 2007 2008 2007

US dollar       2.00  1.90  1.99  1.94
Euro       1.43 1.48 1.31 1.48
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Primary reporting format – business segments
The Group’s primary reporting format is by business segment. This is in line with the current management structure, which refl ects the different risks 
associated with the different businesses. The Group is organised into three main business segments: Argos, Homebase and Financial Services together with 
Central Activities. Revenue earned from sales is disclosed by origin and is not materially different from revenue by destination. 

52 weeks ended 1 March 2008

            Financial Central  
       Argos Homebase Services Activities Total 
Income statement     Notes £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue     6   4,320.9 1,568.5 95.4 – 5,984.8

Profi t             
Operating profi t/(loss) before exceptional items       376.2 45.1 5.5 (40.5) 386.3
Exceptional items     10  – (19.4) – 20.2 0.8

Segment result        376.2 25.7 5.5 (20.3) 387.1

– Finance income     11     62.3
– Finance expense     11     (25.0)
Net fi nancing income     11     37.3
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates   18     1.6

Profi t before tax             426.0
Taxation     12     (131.4)

Profi t for the period            294.6

The result for Financial Services is after deducting funding costs of £19.6m (note 11).

As at 1 March 2008

           Financial Central  
       Argos Homebase Services Activities Total 
Balance sheet     Notes £m £m £m £m £m 

Segment assets        1,280.1 686.7 459.1 273.2 2,699.1
Investment in associates and joint ventures    18  – – – 7.7 7.7
Taxation       – – – 63.5 63.5
Goodwill     15  1,152.3 770.4 – – 1,922.7

Total assets        2,432.4 1,457.1 459.1 344.4 4,693.0

Segment liabilities        (743.8) (432.1) (56.1) (0.3) (1,232.3)
Taxation        – – – (115.5) (115.5)

Total liabilities        (743.8) (432.1) (56.1) (115.8) (1,347.8)

Net assets        1,688.6 1,025.0 403.0 228.6 3,345.2

Less goodwill        (1,152.3) (770.4) – – (1,922.7)

Net operating assets        536.3 254.6 403.0 228.6 1,422.5
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

52 weeks ended 1 March 2008

           Financial Central  
       Argos Homebase Services Activities Total 
Other segment item     Notes £m £m £m £m £m 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    17  (71.3) (55.6) – – (126.9)
Impairment of fi xed assets     17 – (10.3) – – (10.3)
Amortisation of intangible assets     16  (21.1) (3.0) (0.6) – (24.7)
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment   17  (80.9) (95.4) – – (176.3)
Capital expenditure on intangible assets    16   (29.8) (4.5) (0.7) – (35.0)

Short period ended 3 March 2007

            Financial Central  
       Argos Homebase Services Activities Total 
Income statement     Notes £m £m £m £m £m 

Revenue     6  3,912.8  1,606.3  87.6  –  5,606.7

Profi t 
Operating profi t/(loss) before exceptional items       300.9  51.2  4.5  (28.7)  327.9
Exceptional items     10 –  (4.1) –  (18.6)  (22.7)

Segment result        300.9  47.1  4.5  (47.3)  305.2

– Finance income     11          55.5
– Finance expense     11          (71.4)
– Exceptional fi nance income     10     6.9
Net fi nancing costs     11           (9.0)
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates   18           0.7

Profi t before tax                 296.9
Taxation     12           (109.5)

Profi t for the period          187.4

The results for Financial Services are after deducting funding costs of £16.4m (note 11).
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As at 3 March 2007

           Financial Central  
       Argos Homebase Services Activities Total 
Balance sheet     Notes £m £m £m £m £m 

Segment assets        1,222.8  605.0  439.7  292.9  2,560.4
Investment in associates and joint ventures    18  –  –  –  9.2  9.2
Taxation        – –  –  77.4  77.4
Goodwill     15 1,152.3  726.6  –  –  1,878.9

Total assets        2,375.1  1,331.6  439.7  379.5  4,525.9

Segment liabilities        (708.8)  (383.7) (49.3)  (1.8)  (1,143.6)
Borrowings       23 –  –  –  (223.6)  (223.6)
Taxation        –  –  – (80.0)  (80.0)

Total liabilities        (708.8)  (383.7) (49.3)  (305.4) (1,447.2)

Net assets        1,666.3  947.9 390.4 74.1  3,078.7

Less goodwill        (1,152.3)  (726.6)  –  –  (1,878.9)

Net operating assets        514.0 221.3  390.4 74.1 1,199.8

Short period ended 3 March 2007

            Financial Central  
       Argos Homebase Services Activities Total 
Other segment items     Notes £m £m £m £m £m 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    17  (70.2) (59.8)  –  –  (130.0)
Impairment of fi xed assets     17  –  (4.1)  –  –  (4.1)
Amortisation of intangible assets     16  (14.1)  (1.8)  (0.5)  –  (16.4)
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment   17  (54.8)  (79.3)  – –  (134.1)
Capital expenditure on intangible assets    16  (27.6)  –  (0.7)  –  (28.3)

Geographical segments
Home Retail Group trades predominantly in the UK and the Republic of Ireland and consequently the majority of revenues, capital expenditure and segment 
assets arise there.
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6. ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY CATEGORY

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
             £m £m

Sale of goods         5,889.4 5,519.1
Provision of services by Financial Services        95.4 87.6

Total          5,984.8  5,606.7

7. ACQUISITIONS
On 11 October 2007, the Group announced the agreement to acquire a number of leasehold properties, together with an assembled workforce, from 
Focus DIY for a cash consideration of £39.6m. As at 1 March 2008, 27 stores had been assigned to the Group. Acquisition costs of £1.8m were also incurred. 
At acquisition, the business had a book value of assets of £nil. The fair value of net liabilities acquired was £2.4m comprising property, plant and equipment 
of £1.5m, current assets of £1.6m, current liabilities of £0.6m and provisions of £4.9m. In addition, the intangible assets were determined to have negligible 
value, consequently goodwill of £43.8m was generated on the transaction. This goodwill represents the synergies, assembled workforce and future growth 
potential of the business acquired.

Details of revenues generated from these stores have not been disclosed as only certain of the stores were re-branded and trading prior to the period end, 
and consequently the revenue generated is not material in the context of these fi nancial statements. No pro forma information for the 52 weeks ended 
1 March 2008 has been included as the acquired stores have been amalgamated within the existing store portfolio, rendering any disclosures impractical.

On 15 April 2008, the Group received notifi cation that this transaction had received clearance from the Offi ce of Fair Trading, subject to undertakings by 
the Group that one store will now not be traded and is likely to be offered for sale externally. This has not had a material effect on the accounting for 
the transaction.

There were no acquisitions during the short period to 3 March 2007.

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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8. NET OPERATING EXPENSES

       52 weeks   Short period
     Before Exceptional ended Before Exceptional ended
     exceptional items 1 March exceptional items 3 March
     items (note 10) 2008 items (note 10) 2007
Expenses by function     £m £m £m £m £m £m

Net operating expenses comprise:                
Selling costs     (1,405.8) – (1,405.8)  (1,321.8)  –  (1,321.8)
Administrative costs     (311.7) 0.8 (310.9)  (276.5)  (22.7) (299.2)

Total net operating expenses     (1,717.5) 0.8 (1,716.7) (1,598.3) (22.7) (1,621.0)

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended

Expenses by nature         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
Profi t before tax is stated after (charging)/crediting          Notes £m £m

Operating lease rental expense          
– Plant and equipment           (9.8)  (9.4)
– Property           (335.0)  (310.6)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales         (3,758.0)  (3,564.0)
Write down of inventories           (123.0) (116.5)
Exceptional items        10 0.8  (15.8)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment          (0.4)  (0.9)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment       17 (126.9)  (130.0)
Amortisation of intangible assets        16 (24.7)  (16.4)
Employee benefi t costs        9  (768.1)  (717.2)

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
Auditors’ remuneration             £m £m

Audit services: 
Fees payable for the audit of the Company and the consolidated fi nancial statements       (0.8)  (0.8)
Other services: 
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services  
– the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation         (0.1)  (0.1)
– services relating to taxation           (0.2)  (0.2)
– all other services           (0.1)  (0.2)

Total fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP         (1.2)  (1.3)

The above disclosure is presented in accordance with SI 2005/2417, where audit fees in respect of the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to 
legislation are included within other services.

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS AND EMPLOYEE NUMBERS
Employee costs for the Group were as follows:          
             52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
           Notes £m £m

Wages and salaries           (670.6)  (631.9)
Social security costs           (42.9)  (39.8)
Post-employment benefi ts         25 (33.0)  (29.2)
Share-based payments         30 (21.6)  (16.3)

           (768.1)  (717.2)

The average numbers of employees were as follows:
       52 weeks  Short period 
      ended 1 March 2008        ended 3 March 2007

        Number of Full time Number of Full time
        employees equivalent employees equivalent

Argos       33,205 17,931  33,501 17,861
Homebase       19,531 11,501  18,701 11,210
Financial Services       416 370  394  360
Central Activities       45 44 37  37

       53,197 29,846 52,633 29,468

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
Key management compensation             £m £m

Short-term employee benefi ts           (5.2)  (4.7)
Post-employment benefi ts           (1.5)  (1.4)
Share-based payments           (6.3)  (5.7)

           (13.0)  (11.8)

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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10. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
             £m £m

Accrual release relating to incentive schemes (a)        20.2 –
Costs relating to the post-acquisition integration of the Focus DIY stores (b)      (9.1) –
Store impairment charges (c)         (10.3) (4.1)
Costs relating to the demerger of Home Retail Group and Experian (d)        –  (11.3)
Waiver of loan due from Experian (e)           –  (7.3)

Exceptional items in operating profi t          0.8  (22.7)
Exceptional fi nance income (f)           –  6.9

Exceptional items in profi t before tax        0.8 (15.8)

Tax on exceptional items in profi t before tax        (1.0) (5.3)
Exceptional corporation tax credit (g)         12.6 –
Exceptional deferred tax charge (h)           (5.9) –

Exceptional tax         5.7 (5.3)

Exceptional profi t/(loss) for the period         6.5  (21.1)

(a) Represents the release of an accrual in respect of previous GUS-related long-term incentive schemes which were settled in June 2007.

(b) Represents costs relating to the post-acquisition integration of certain of the Focus DIY stores acquired in the period.

(c)  IFRS requires individual stores to be designated as cash-generating units for the purposes of testing for impairment. This resulted in a net impairment charge in respect of the Homebase 
store portfolio of £10.3m (2007: £4.1m).

(d) Demerger-related expenditure including costs in relation to early vesting of share incentive schemes, banking set up fees and other professional fees.

(e) Represents a loan due from Experian which was waived as part of the demerger process.

(f) Fair value gain made on transfer of interest rate swap novated from GUS plc on demerger.

(g)  Represents the recognition of a corporation tax credit arising from a reassessment of previous estimates provided for in the Group’s tax computations, following the agreement of prior 
year tax computations.

(h)  Represents an additional deferred tax charge arising from the re-estimation of qualifying assets in respect of accelerated tax depreciation, following the agreement of prior year 
tax computations.

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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11. NET FINANCING INCOME/(COSTS)

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
             £m £m

Finance income:          
Bank deposits and other interest           18.8  13.8
Expected return on retirement benefi t assets          43.5 37.8
Interest receivable from GUS group companies          –  3.9

Total fi nance income           62.3  55.5

Finance expense:         
Interest cost of perpetual securities           (3.3)  (11.1)
Unwinding of discounts            (1.8)  (1.9)
Financing fair value remeasurements: 
– net losses on fi nancial instruments           (0.9)  (0.1)
– net exchange losses           (8.1)  –
Interest expense on retirement benefi t liabilities          (30.5)  (25.7)
Interest expense on OFT fi ne           – (1.5)
Interest payable to GUS group companies          –  (47.5)

Total fi nance expense           (44.6) (87.8)
Less: fi nance expense charged to Financial Services cost of sales         19.6  16.4

Total net fi nance expense           (25.0)  (71.4)

Net fi nancing income/(costs) before exceptional items         37.3  (15.9)
Exceptional fi nance income           –  6.9

Net fi nancing income/(costs)           37.3  (9.0)

12. TAXATION

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
Analysis of charge in period             £m £m

Current tax:          
UK corporation tax           (119.4)  (94.0)
Double tax relief           1.7  3.5
Adjustments in respect of prior years           17.8  (0.9)

Total current UK tax charge           (99.9)  (91.4)
Overseas tax           (3.9)  (4.4)

Total current tax charge           (103.8)  (95.8)
Deferred tax:         
Origination and reversal of temporary differences          (17.4)  (16.5)
Adjustments in respect of prior years         (11.2) 2.8
Rate change impact           1.0  –

Total tax expense in income statement          (131.4) (109.5)

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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Factors affecting the tax charge
The effective tax rate for the year of 30.8% (2007: 36.9%), is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30.0% (2007: 30.0%). 
The differences are explained below: 
            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
             £m £m

Profi t before tax           426.0  296.9

Profi t before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30%       (127.8)  (89.1)
Effects of:         
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes          (14.2) (25.6)
Differences in effective tax rates on overseas earnings       3.0 3.3
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years          6.6  1.9
Rate change impact           1.0  –

Total tax expense in income statement          (131.4) (109.5)

Factors that may affect future tax charges
In the foreseeable future, Home Retail Group’s tax charge will continue to be infl uenced by the profi le of profi ts earned in the different tax jurisdictions 
within the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland.
            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
Exceptional tax (see note 10)             £m £m

Exceptional profi t/(loss) before tax           0.8 (15.8)

Exceptional profi t/(loss) before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30%      (0.2) 4.7
Effects of:       
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes          (0.8) (2.2)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years          – (7.8)
Net exceptional tax credit in respect of prior years          6.7  –

Exceptional tax credit/(charge)          5.7 (5.3)

13. DIVIDENDS

            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
             £m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders            
Final dividend of 9.0p per share for the short period ended 3 March 2007      78.1 –
Interim dividend of 4.7p per share (2007: 4.0p)         40.8  34.6

Ordinary dividends on equity shares         118.9  34.6

A fi nal dividend in respect of the period ended 1 March 2008 of 10.0p per share, amounting to a total fi nal dividend of £86.8m, has been recommended by 
the Board of Directors, and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. This would make a total dividend for the period of 
14.7p per share, amounting to £127.6m. The recommended dividend has not been included as a liability at 1 March 2008 in accordance with IAS 10 ‘Events 
after the balance sheet date’. It will be paid on 23 July 2008 to shareholders who are on the register of members at close of business on 23 May 2008. The 
Home Retail Group Employee Share Ownership Trust (‘ESOT’) has waived its entitlement to dividends in the amount of £1.3m (2007: £0.7m). 

Notes to the financial statements continued
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14. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (‘EPS’)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profi t attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares in issue during the period, excluding ordinary shares held in Home Retail Group’s ESOT. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potential dilutive ordinary shares. Basic and diluted EPS for 2007 have 
been calculated on the basis of the number of shares in issue at the date of demerger for the pre-demerger period together with the weighted average 
number of shares post-demerger, excluding ordinary shares held in Home Retail Group’s ESOT.
            52 weeks Short period
            ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
Earnings             £m £m 

Profi t after tax for the fi nancial period          294.6  187.4
Effect of exceptional items           (0.8)  15.8
Effect of fi nancing fair value remeasurements          9.0  0.1
Financing impact on retirement benefi t balances          (13.0)  (12.1)
Demerger incentive schemes           11.7  5.8
Attributable taxation           (7.1)  9.2

Benchmark profi t after tax for the fi nancial period         294.4  206.2

         millions millions

Weighted average number of shares     
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS         867.7  869.6
Dilutive effect of share incentive awards          9.6  7.6

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted EPS         877.3  877.2

EPS           pence  pence

Basic EPS           34.0  21.6
Diluted EPS           33.6  21.4

Basic benchmark EPS           33.9  23.7
Diluted benchmark EPS           33.6  23.5

15. GOODWILL

         Argos Homebase Total
        £m £m £m 

At 1 April 2006 and 3 March 2007        1,152.3  726.6  1,878.9
Additions        – 43.8 43.8

At 1 March 2008        1,152.3 770.4 1,922.7

Details of goodwill value-in-use calculations on cash-generating units can be found in note 2 ‘Basis of preparation’ in the section entitled ‘Critical accounting 
estimates and assumptions’.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

               Total
          £m 

Cost          
At 4 March 2007              152.0
Additions              35.0
Disposals              (0.3)

At 1 March 2008              186.7

Amortisation         
At 4 March 2007              (78.6)
Charge for the year              (24.7)
Disposals              0.3

At 1 March 2008              (103.0)

Net book value at 1 March 2008          83.7

Assets in the course of construction included above at 1 March 2008           19.4
           
               Total
          £m 

Cost          
At 1 April 2006              128.7
Additions              28.3
Disposals              (5.0)

At 3 March 2007              152.0

Amortisation          
At 1 April 2006              (67.2)
Charge for the year              (16.4)
Disposals              5.0

At 3 March 2007              (78.6)

Net book value at 3 March 2007          73.4

Assets in the course of construction included above at 3 March 2007           14.7

Intangible assets comprise computer software for internal use. 

Notes to the financial statements continued
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

       Leasehold properties

      Freehold Long Short Plant &
      properties leasehold leasehold equipment Total
      £m £m £m £m £m

Cost    
At 4 March 2007      91.6  5.1  335.7  1,055.0  1,487.4
Exchange differences      – 0.2 1.4 4.4 6.0
Additions      10.7 – 42.4 123.2 176.3
Acquired through business combination (note 7)     – – 1.0 0.5 1.5
Disposals      – – (1.7) (25.1) (26.8)
Transfers between categories      – (3.6) 3.6 – –

At 1 March 2008      102.3 1.7 382.4 1,158.0 1,644.4

Depreciation and impairment losses                  
At 4 March 2007      (9.1) (0.7)  (180.8) (605.2)  (795.8)
Exchange differences      – (0.1) (0.3) (2.2) (2.6)
Charge for the year      (1.3) – (18.2) (107.4) (126.9)
Impairment losses      – – (2.5) (7.8) (10.3)
Disposals      – – 1.5 21.5 23.0
Transfers between categories      – 0.4 (0.4) – –

At 1 March 2008      (10.4) (0.4) (200.7) (701.1) (912.6)

Net book value at 1 March 2008       91.9  1.3 181.7 456.9 731.8

Assets in the course of construction included above at 1 March 2008   4.0 – 7.0 71.0 82.0

       Leasehold properties

      Freehold Long Short Plant &
      properties leasehold leasehold equipment Total
      £m £m £m £m £m

Cost                  
At 1 April 2006      81.6  5.1 323.2  976.8  1,386.7
Exchange differences      –  –  (0.1)  (0.7)  (0.8)
Additions      10.0  – 17.9  106.2  134.1
Disposals      –  – (5.3)  (27.3)  (32.6)

At 3 March 2007      91.6  5.1 335.7  1,055.0  1,487.4

Depreciation and impairment losses                  
At 1 April 2006      (8.0)  –  (166.0) (515.9) (689.9)
Exchange differences      –  –  –  0.3  0.3
Charge for the year      (1.1)  (0.7)  (17.9)  (110.3)  (130.0)
Impairment losses      –  –  (1.0)  (3.1)  (4.1)
Disposals      –  –  4.1 23.8  27.9

At 3 March 2007      (9.1)  (0.7)  (180.8)  (605.2)  (795.8)

Net book value at 3 March 2007      82.5  4.4  154.9  449.8  691.6

Assets in the course of construction included above at 3 March 2007   9.4 – 10.6 39.0 59.0

Notes to the financial statements continued
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18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

         2008 2007
         £m £m

Opening           9.2  0.4
Reclassifi cation to fi nancial assets         (8.1) –
Exchange differences           0.9 –
Share of profi t after tax           2.8 0.7
Additions         6.8 –
Loan to joint venture           – 8.1
Disposals           (3.9) –

Closing         7.7 9.2

The Group’s interest in joint ventures consists of a 50% holding in Home Retail Group Personal Finance Limited, a company incorporated in England, and its 
interest in associates consists of a 33% shareholding in Ogalas Limited (which trades as ‘home store + more’), a company incorporated in the Republic of 
Ireland, which was acquired during the period for £6.8m. In addition, on 14 November 2007 the Group disposed of its 33% holding of AAGUS Financial 
Services Group NV, a company incorporated in The Netherlands, which was previously reported as an associate.

The Group’s share of the revenue of its joint venture for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008 is £0.8m (2007: £nil) and its share of the loss after tax is £1.2m 
(2007: £nil). At 1 March 2008, the Group’s share of the net liabilities of its joint venture amounted to £4.4m (2007: £nil), consisting of assets of £16.3m 
(2007: £8.1m) and liabilities of £20.7m (2007: £8.1m). No liability has been recognised in the Group’s balance sheet in respect of the joint venture, but the 
Group’s share of the accumulated losses has been taken against the carrying value of a loan made by the Group to the joint venture, which is now reported 
within other fi nancial assets in note 26.

The Group’s share of the revenue of its associates for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008 is £4.4m (2007: £3.3m) and its share of profi t after tax is £2.8m 
(2007: £0.7m). At 1 March 2008, the Group’s share of the net assets of its associates amounted to £7.7m (2007: £1.1m), consisting of assets of £8.2m 
(2007: £28.5m), which includes goodwill of £4.2m (2007: £nil), and liabilities of £0.5m (2007: £27.4m).

19. INVENTORIES

         2008 2007
         £m £m

Goods for resale         1,004.8 906.4

Notes to the financial statements continued
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

       Current Non-current Current Non-current 
       2008 2008 2007 2007
       £m £m £m £m

Trade receivables:              
– Instalment receivables       488.9 1.7  459.4  12.5
– Other trade receivables       75.3 – 73.8  –

        564.2 1.7 533.2 12.5
Less: provision for impairment of receivables      (60.8) (0.6)  (57.4) (1.4)

        503.4 1.1 475.8 11.1
VAT recoverable       – –  0.2 –
Prepayments and accrued income       94.4 3.7  93.4 6.9

       597.8 4.8  569.4  18.0

The carrying values of current trade and other receivables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. Fair values of long-term receivables have been 
discounted where the time value of money is material. All receivables due after more than one year are due within fi ve years from the balance sheet date.  
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as Home Retail Group has a broad customer base. The maximum exposure to credit 
risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

As of 1 March 2008, trade receivables of £76.4m (2007: £75.5m) were impaired. The amount of the provision was £61.4m as of 1 March 2008 (2007: £58.8m). 
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to store card holder balances on customer accounts on which indications of possible default have 
been identifi ed.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:
           £m

At 1 April 2006          51.4
Charge for the period          39.0
Utilised          (31.6)

At 3 March 2007          58.8
Charge for the period          36.6
Utilised          (34.0)

At 1 March 2008          61.4

As of 1 March 2008, trade receivables of £24.2m (2007: £28.4m) were past due but not impaired. These relate to corporate customer receivable balances. 
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:
         2008 2007
         £m £m

Less than 3 months         22.2 27.1
3 to 6 months         1.5 1.0
6 to 9 months         0.3 0.2
9 to 12 months         0.2 0.1

         24.2 28.4

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

         2008 2007
         £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand         174.0 283.8

The effective interest rate during the period ended 1 March 2008 for cash and cash equivalents was 5.5% (2007: 4.8%). Under the terms of a re-insurance 
agreement, bank balances totalling £3.4m (2007: £3.5m) are the subject of custodial agreements and may not be withdrawn without the consent of the 
re-insured. Home Retail Group has provided letters of credit totalling £12.5m (2007: £22.6m) to AIG Europe (UK) Limited as part of their re-insurance 
agreement. These letters are secured by cash deposits.

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

       Current Non-current Current Non-current 
       2008 2008 2007 2007
       £m £m £m £m

Trade payables       (501.3) –  (466.5)  –
Social security costs and other taxes       (48.1) – (48.4)  –
Accruals and deferred income       (444.8) (41.3)  (446.2) (34.0)
Other payables       (95.3) –  (64.0) –

       (1,089.5) (41.3)  (1,025.1) (34.0)

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and the fair values are not considered to differ materially from the recognised book values. Long-term 
payables have been discounted where the time value of money is material.

23. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

       Current Non-current Current Non-current 
       2008 2008 2007 2007
       £m £m £m £m

4.0% Perpetual securities       – –  (74.4)  –
4.9% Perpetual securities       – –  (148.2)  –
Other       – –  (0.9)  –

         – –  (223.5)  –
Obligations under fi nance leases       – –  (0.1)  –

       – –  (223.6)  –

The effective interest rate of the perpetual securities was the nominal rate indicated above, which was fi xed for the term of the debt. The securities were 
repaid in June 2007. All loans were denominated in sterling. The carrying values of loans and borrowings are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.  
All of the borrowings of the Group shown above were unsecured. Lease liabilities were effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the 
lessor in the event of default.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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24. PROVISIONS

       Onerous Insurance     
       leases provisions Other  Total 
       £m £m £m £m

At 4 March 2007        (40.8)  (29.3) (12.2)  (82.3)
Charged to the income statement       (10.2) (9.9) (5.8) (25.9)
Acquired through business combination (note 7)      (2.5) – (2.4) (4.9)
Utilised during the period       4.3 7.8 4.6 16.7
Discount unwind       (2.2)  – (0.1) (2.3)

At 1 March 2008       (51.4) (31.4) (15.9) (98.7)

Analysed as:
         2008 2007
         £m £m

Current               (26.1) (25.2)
Non-current               (72.6) (57.1)

         (98.7)  (82.3)

The onerous lease provision covers potential liabilities for onerous lease contracts for stores that have either closed, or where projected future trading 
revenue is insuffi cient to cover the lower of exit cost or value-in-use. The provision is based on the present value of expected future cash fl ows relating to 
rents, rates and other property costs to the end of the lease terms net of expected sublet income. The majority of this provision is expected to be utilised 
over the period to 2011.

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated costs of claims incurred by Home Retail Group’s captive insurance company but not settled at the 
balance sheet date, including the costs of claims that have arisen but have not yet been reported to Home Retail Group. The estimated cost of claims 
includes expenses to be incurred in settling claims. The majority of this provision is expected to be utilised over the period to 2011.

Other provisions include legal claims and other sundry provisions. The majority of this provision is expected to be utilised within one year.

25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Home Retail Group has both defi ned benefi t and defi ned contribution plans. A defi ned benefi t plan is a pension plan that defi nes an amount of pension 
benefi t that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A defi ned 
contribution plan is a pension plan under which Home Retail Group pays contributions into an independently administered fund. The cost of providing these 
benefi ts, recognised in the income statement, comprises the amount of contributions payable to the schemes in respect of the period.

Pension arrangements for UK employees are operated principally through a defi ned benefi t scheme (the Home Retail Group Pension Scheme) and a defi ned 
contribution scheme (the Home Retail Group Stakeholder Pension Scheme). In other countries, benefi ts are determined in accordance with local practice 
and regulations and funding is provided accordingly.

Defi ned Benefi t Schemes
The Home Retail Group Pension Scheme
The scheme has rules which specify the benefi ts to be paid and are fi nanced accordingly with assets being held in independently administered funds. A full 
actuarial valuation of this scheme is carried out every three years with interim reviews in the intervening years. The latest full actuarial valuation of the 
scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2006 by independent, qualifi ed actuaries, Watson Wyatt LLP, using the projected unit method. Under the projected 
unit method of valuation the current service cost will increase as members approach retirement due to the ageing active membership of the scheme.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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The movements during the year in the net asset recognised in the balance sheet were as follows:
         2008 2007
         £m £m

Opening         9.3 25.5
Total charge recognised in the consolidated income statement        (13.8) (11.2)
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense    73.9 (18.3)
Contributions paid         14.3 13.3

Closing         83.7 9.3

The estimated amount of contributions expected to be paid into the Home Retail Group Pension Scheme by the Group during the next fi nancial year is £14m.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are determined as follows: 
          2008 2007
         £m £m

Fair value of scheme assets         646.5 637.3
Present value of funded scheme liabilities        (552.1) (617.7)

Surplus in the funded scheme         94.4 19.6
Present value of unfunded pension arrangements        (10.7) (10.3)

Retirement benefi t asset recognised in the balance sheet       83.7 9.3

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement were as follows: 
          2008 2007
         £m £m

Current service cost         (26.8) (23.3)
Discount unwind on scheme liabilities         (30.5) (25.7)
Expected return on scheme assets         43.5 37.8

Total charge to consolidated income statement        (13.8) (11.2)

The charge is recognised in the following line items in the consolidated income statement: 
          2008 2007
         £m £m

Administrative costs         (26.8) (23.3)
Finance expense (note 11)         (30.5) (25.7)
Finance income (note 11)         43.5 37.8

Total charge to consolidated income statement        (13.8) (11.2)

Notes to the financial statements continued
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25. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED
IAS 19 valuations
The valuations used for IAS 19 have been based on the most recent actuarial funding valuations and have been updated by Watson Wyatt LLP to take 
account of the requirements of IAS 19 in order to assess the liabilities of the schemes at 1 March 2008 and 3 March 2007. The principal actuarial 
assumptions used to calculate the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligations were as follows:
          2008 2007
         % %

Rate of infl ation         3.5 3.1
Rate of increases for salaries         4.8 4.4
Rate of increase for pensions in payment        3.4 3.0
Rate of increase for deferred pensions         3.5 3.1
Discount rate         6.1 4.9

The amount charged to the income statement in respect of unfunded pension arrangements was £2.2m (2007: £0.8m).

The principal fi nancial assumption is the discount rate. If this assumption is increased/decreased by 0.1%, the defi ned benefi t obligation would decrease/
increase by approximately £14.4m and the current service cost would decrease/increase by £0.8m. The discount rate is based on market yields on high-
quality corporate bonds of equivalent currency and term to the defi ned benefi t obligation.

The IAS 19 valuation assumes that mortality will be in line with ‘PA92 Series’ tables with ‘medium cohort’ projections for males and females. An allowance is 
also made for anticipated future improvements in life expectancy assuming that the probability of death occurring at each age will decrease by approximately 
0.25% each year, equivalent to increasing life expectancy by approximately one month each year.

Overall, the average expectation of life on retirement in normal health is assumed to be:

– 21.4 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 65 (2007: 21.3)
– 24.3 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 65 (2007: 24.2)
– 22.3 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 50 (2007: 22.2)
– 25.1 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 50 (2007: 25.0) 

The assets of the Home Retail Group Pension Scheme and the expected rates of return are summarised as follows:
       2008         2007

        Expected   Expected
       Percentage long-term  Percentage long-term
     Fair of scheme rate of Fair of scheme rate of
     value assets return value assets return
     £m % % pa £m % % pa

Market value of scheme assets:
Equities     438.0 68 8.1  448.6 70  7.9
Fixed interest securities     202.7 31 5.0 182.0 29 4.4
Other     5.8 1 5.3  6.7  1 4.9

     646.5 100 7.1  637.3  100  6.9

The overall expected rate of return on scheme assets is the weighted average of the best estimate of the individual asset categories and their inherent 
expected rates of return.
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Changes in the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation are as follows: 
          2008 2007
         £m  £m

Opening defi ned benefi t obligation         (628.0) (579.1)
Current service cost         (26.8) (23.3)
Interest cost         (30.5) (25.7)
Contributions paid by employees         (6.9) (6.6)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on liabilities recognised in statement of recognised income and expense    118.7 (0.3)
Benefi ts paid         10.7 7.0

Closing defi ned benefi t obligation         (562.8) (628.0)

Changes in the market value of the scheme assets are as follows:
          2008 2007
         £m  £m

Opening market value of scheme assets         637.3 604.6
Expected return         43.5 37.8
Actuarial loss on assets recognised in statement of recognised income and expense     (44.8) (18.0)
Contributions paid by Home Retail Group        14.3 13.3
Contributions paid by employees         6.9 6.6
Benefi ts paid         (10.7) (7.0)

Closing market value of scheme assets        646.5 637.3

Cumulative actuarial gain/(loss) included in statement of recognised income and expense    34.0 (39.9)

The actual return on scheme assets was a loss of £1.3m (2007: £19.8m gain).

History of experience gains and losses: 
        2008 2007 2006 2005
       £m  £m £m £m

Present value of defi ned benefi t obligation      (562.8) (628.0) (579.1) (465.5)
Fair value of scheme assets       646.5 637.3 604.6 392.5

Net surplus/(defi cit) on the scheme       83.7 9.3 25.5 (73.0)
Experience (loss)/gain on scheme liabilities      (4.3) 20.8 0.2 3.6
Percentage of scheme liabilities       (0.8%) 3.3% 0.0% 0.8%
Experience (loss)/gain on scheme assets       (44.8) (18.0) 70.9 8.1
Percentage of scheme assets       (6.9%) (2.8%) 11.7% 2.1%

Defi ned contribution schemes
The pension cost represents contributions payable by the Group to defi ned contribution schemes and amounted to £6.2m (2007: £5.9m). Contributions 
totalling £0.3m (2007: £nil) were payable to the schemes at 1 March 2008 and are included within creditors.



114 Home Retail Group Annual Report 2008

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

        Current Non-current Current Non-current
       2008 2008  2007 2007
       £m £m £m £m

Other fi nancial assets 
Cash fl ow hedge – foreign exchange contracts      4.3 –  – –
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets       – 14.2  – 8.5

Total other fi nancial assets       4.3 14.2 – 8.5

Other fi nancial liabilities 
Cash fl ow hedge – foreign exchange contracts      (2.8) –  (1.7)  –
Fair value hedge – interest rate swap       – –   (0.5)  –

Total other fi nancial liabilities       (2.8) –  (2.2) –

The cash fl ow hedges are intended to hedge the foreign currency exposures of future purchases of inventory. The hedged cash fl ows are expected to occur 
up to one year into the future and will be transferred to the consolidated income statement or inventory carrying value as applicable.

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 1 March 2008 and 3 March 2007 
will be released to the income statement within one year from the balance sheet date. The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign 
exchange contracts at 1 March 2008 were £543.6m (2007: £579.0m).

Interest rate swaps
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts as at 1 March 2008 were £nil (2007: £225.0m). At 3 March 2007, the main 
fl oating rates were based on LIBOR. Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity on interest rate swap contracts are continuously 
released to the income statement until the repayment of the bank borrowings. Home Retail Group’s activities expose it to a variety of fi nancial risks and 
Home Retail Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of fi nancial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse 
effects on Home Retail Group’s performance.

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets 
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are measured at fair value or, where fair value cannot be reliably measured, at cost less impairment.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of fi nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of 
methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar 
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash fl ows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining 
fi nancial instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash fl ows. The fair value of forward 
foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
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27. DEFERRED TAX

          2008 2007
         £m  £m

The movements on the net deferred tax account are as follows:    
Opening         29.6 41.6
Income statement charge (note 12)         (28.6) (13.7)
Rate change impact (note 12)         1.0 –
Other movements         – (0.3)
Tax on pensions and share schemes (charged)/credited to shareholders’ equity     (22.8) 2.0

Closing         (20.8) 29.6

The deferred tax amounts recognised are as follows:  
Deferred tax assets:  
– Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months       46.6 74.4
Deferred tax liabilities:   
– Deferred tax liability to be settled after more than 12 months       (67.4) (44.8)

Net deferred tax (liability)/asset         (20.8) 29.6

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax 
jurisdiction, is as follows:

          Other
        Asset temporary
        provisions diferences Total
Deferred tax assets        £m £m £m

At 1 April 2006        39.8 69.0 108.8
Income statement credit/(charge)        2.6 (39.0) (36.4)
Tax credited to equity         0.8 1.2 2.0

At 3 March 2007        43.2 31.2 74.4

At 4 March 2007        43.2 31.2 74.4
Income statement charge        (5.6) (1.1) (6.7)
Rate change impact        (2.4) (0.9) (3.3)
Tax charged to equity         (1.1) (16.7) (17.8)

At 1 March 2008        34.1 12.5 46.6
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27. DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED
         Accelerated 
       Property tax 
       valuations depreciation Other Total
Deferred tax liabilities       £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2006       (27.7) (20.0) (19.5) (67.2)
Income statement credit/(charge)       2.7 (0.5) 20.2 22.4

At 3 March 2007       (25.0) (20.5) 0.7 (44.8)

At 4 March 2007       (25.0) (20.5) 0.7 (44.8)
Income statement credit/(charge)       1.7 (11.8) (11.8) (21.9)
Rate change impact       1.5 2.2 0.6 4.3
Tax charged to equity       – – (5.0) (5.0)

At 1 March 2008       (21.8)  (30.1) (15.5) (67.4)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards and other temporary differences to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefi t 
through the future taxable profi ts is probable.

Home Retail Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £1.4m (2007: £1.5m) in respect of losses that can be carried forward against future taxable 
income. In addition, Home Retail Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £28.0m (2007: £30.0m) in respect of capital losses that can be carried 
forward against future taxable gains. These losses are available indefi nitely.

28. SHARE CAPITAL

      2008   2007 
      Number of 2008  Number of 2007
      shares £m  shares £m

Authorised: 
Ordinary share capital of 10p each     2,000,500,000 200.1  2,000,500,000 200.1

      2008   2007   
      Number of   Number of 
      shares 2008  shares 2007
      m £m  m £m

Allotted, called-up and fully paid:
At beginning of the period       877.4  87.7   877.4  2,895.6
Reduction in nominal value of shares from 330p to 10p    – –  – (2,807.9)

At end of the period      877.4 87.7  877.4 87.7



Home Retail Group Annual Report 2008 117 

THE GROUP REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MORE INFORMATION

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008

29. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY

       Share Merger Other Retained
      capital reserve reserves earnings Total
      £m  £m  £m £m £m

At 4 March 2007      87.7  (348.4)  (11.4)  3,350.8  3,078.7
Profi t for the fi nancial period      – – – 294.6 294.6
Net income recognised in equity for the fi nancial period    – – 15.2 51.6 66.8
Movement in share-based compensation reserve (note 30)    – – – 21.6 21.6
Net movement in own shares      – – 0.1 2.3 2.4
Equity dividends paid during the period (note 13)     – – – (118.9) (118.9)

Total equity at 1 March 2008      87.7 (348.4) 3.9 3,602.0 3,345.2

       Share Merger Other Retained
      capital reserve reserves earnings Total
      £m  £m  £m £m £m

At 1 April 2006      2,895.6  (348.4)  (4.3) 407.0 2,949.9
Profi t for the fi nancial period      – – –  187.4 187.4
Share reduction      (2,807.9) – –  2,807.9 –
Net cost recognised in equity for the fi nancial period    – –  (1.0)  (9.1)  (10.1)
Movement in share-based compensation reserve (note 30)    –  –  –  16.3 16.3
Net movement in own shares      – –  (6.1)  – (6.1)
Equity dividends paid during the period (note 13)     –  –  –  (34.6)  (34.6)
Other movements      –  –  –  (24.1)  (24.1)

Total equity at 3 March 2007      87.7  (348.4) (11.4) 3,350.8 3,078.7

Merger reserve
The merger reserve arose on the demerger of the Group from GUS plc during 2006 as outlined in note 2 ‘Group reorganisation’.

Other reserves
Other reserves principally consist of shares held in trust, the hedging reserve and the translation reserve.

Net movement in own shares represents the purchase, and subsequent utilisation or sale, of shares for the purpose of satisfying obligations arising from 
Home Retail Group plc share-based compensation schemes. Shares in Home Retail Group plc are held in the following Trusts which have been established 
since demerger:

Home Retail Group Employee Share Ownership Trust (‘ESOT’)
The ESOT provides for the issue of shares to Group employees under share option and share grant schemes (with the exception of the Share Incentive Plan). 
At 1 March 2008, the ESOT held 9,206,387 shares with a market value of £23.8m. The shares in the Trust are held in the balance sheet of the Group at nil 
value. The shares were acquired as part of the demerger from GUS plc at no cost. Dividends on these shares are waived.

Home Retail Group Share Incentive Scheme Trust
The Home Retail Group Share Incentive Scheme Trust provides for the issue of shares to Group employees under the Share Incentive Plan. At 1 March 2008, 
the Trust held 1,425,505 shares with a market value of £3.7m. These shares are held in the balance sheet of the Group at a cost of £6.0m. No additional 
shares were purchased in the period.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS
The Group operates a number of share-based payment schemes. These can be analysed into three categories, being those rolled over from old GUS plc 
schemes as a result of the demerger from GUS on 11 October 2006, incentive schemes specifi cally related to the demerger (‘Demerger Incentive Schemes’) 
and new Home Retail Group plc schemes subsequent to the demerger.

Prior to the demerger, a number of Home Retail Group plc employees participated in old GUS plc share-based payment schemes. As part of the demerger, 
some of these schemes had early vesting with vesting occurring prior to completion of the demerger, while others were modifi ed by rolling them over to 
become Home Retail Group plc share-based payment schemes. Specifi cally, all executive share option schemes in operation following the demerger from 
GUS plc were rolled over from a GUS plc share option arrangement to a Home Retail Group plc arrangement. Furthermore, certain share grant schemes 
(namely co-investment and performance share plan) which originally operated as GUS plc share grant schemes, have been rolled over as Home Retail Group 
plc share grant schemes. Under IFRS 2, these changes have been treated as modifi cations to the schemes and hence revalued as at the demerger date.

Summary of the total cost of share-based compensation in respect of ordinary shares in the Company
           Short
         52 weeks  period
         ended ended
         1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
         £m £m

Share option awards         (5.3) (5.0)
Share grant awards         (16.3) (11.3)

Total expense recognised (all equity settled)        (21.6) (16.3)

The total share-based payments charge of £21.6m (2007: £16.3m) includes £10.4m (2007: £5.1m) relating to demerger incentive schemes which, together 
with national insurance costs of £1.3m (2007: £0.7m) total £11.7m (2007: £5.8m), and are excluded from benchmark profi t before tax. In 2007, the total 
share-based payments charge also included an increase in fair value of £0.2m relating to the rolled over share option schemes and £2.4m relating to the early 
vesting of certain schemes. The accelerated charge due to early vesting was classifi ed as an exceptional item in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Options in respect of the ordinary shares of the Company
Summary of arrangements
During the year ended 1 March 2008, Home Retail Group plc had two share option arrangements for its employees. Details of these share option 
arrangements are as follows:
 The 1998 approved and non-approved Savings related share
 executive share option schemes option schemes 
Arrangements (rolled over GUS plc schemes) (new Home Retail Group plc schemes) 

Nature of arrangement Grant of options (modifi ed scheme)  ‘Sharesave’ scheme

Vesting conditions 
– Service period 3 years 3 or 5 years
– Performance/other EPS growth performance condition1 Saving obligation over the vesting period

Expected outcome of meeting  100% n/a
performance criteria (at grant date)

Maximum term 10 years 3.5 or 5.5 years

Method of settlement Share distribution Share distribution

Expected departures (at grant date) 5% 3 years – 15%
  5 years – 25% 

Option exercise price calculation  Market price over the three dealing days  20% discount to market price over the three dealing
preceding grant days preceding invitation to participants

Notes:

1.  The performance condition for the executive share option scheme requires EPS compound annual growth to exceed compound annual retail price infl ation by 4% per annum over a 
continuous three-year period. This is not a market-based performance condition as defi ned by IFRS 2.
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Information relating to option valuation techniques
The Company uses the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model to determine an appropriate value of the option grants. Where a scheme has been modifi ed, a 
revaluation is performed at the date of modifi cation. Any increase in fair value is charged to the income statement over the remaining life of the scheme. 
The estimated fair values and inputs into the option pricing model are as follows:
         The Home Retail
         Group Sharesave
Options granted in the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008         Scheme 

         Home Retail
Weighted average:         Group plc shares
Fair value (£)          1.35
Share price on grant date (£)          4.70
Exercise price (£)          3.79
Expected volatility          24.3%
Expected dividend yield          3.1%
Risk free interest rate          5.43%
Expected option life to exercise          3.8 years

         The 1998 Approved and
         Non-Approved Executive Share
Options granted in the short period ended 3 March 2007        Option Schemes 

        Home Retail GUS plc
Weighted average:        Group plc shares shares
Fair value (£)         0.97 2.06
Share price on grant date (£)         4.17 9.35
Exercise price (£)         3.88 9.26
Expected volatility         26.6% 29.4%
Expected dividend yield         3.0% 3.5%
Risk free interest rate         4.8% 4.7%
Expected option life to exercise         4 years 4 years

Expected volatility for Home Retail Group plc shares – calculated as an average over the expected life. As limited historical volatility exists for Home Retail 
Group, an average of volatilities has been calculated from comparator companies.

Expected volatility for GUS plc shares – calculated as an average over the expected life with an assumption made for volatility in each year of the expected 
life. Volatility in the fi rst year is assumed to be the same as implied volatility on grant date. Volatility for year 4 and beyond is assumed to remain at the long 
run (10 year observed) historic volatility. Linear interpolation is assumed for years 2 and 3.

Reconciliation of movement in the number of share options 
          Weighted
           average
        Number of  exercise price
        options  £

Outstanding at 4 March 2007        9,958,258   3.70
New grants        9,777,675  3.79
Forfeitures        (1,801,009)  3.77
Exercised options        (679,050)  3.45
Expired options        (95,818)  3.36

Outstanding at 1 March 2008        17,160,056  3.76

Exercisable at 1 March 2008         462,044  3.39

The weighted average share price for share options exercised during the year was £4.44.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED
          Weighted
           average
        Number of  exercise price
        options  £

Outstanding at 1 April 2006 (GUS plc shares)       12,160,041  6.87
New grants        1,829,272   9.26
Forfeitures        (1,044,528)   6.60
Exercised options        (4,744,024)   5.71
Expired options        (206,099)   6.21
Transferred from GUS plc on demerger        555,300   6.96

Outstanding at demerger date (GUS plc shares)       8,549,962   7.77

Rollover adjustment to Home Retail Group plc shares      14,439,212   3.44
Forfeitures        (1,209,606)   2.93
Exercised options        (3,271,348)   2.84

Outstanding at 3 March 2007 (Home Retail Group plc shares)      9,958,258   3.70

Exercisable at 3 March 2007 (Home Retail Group plc shares)      445,921  3.19

The weighted average share price for share options exercised following demerger was £4.17.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year
Share options at the end of the year had the following exercise prices and remaining contractual lives:
        2008  2007

Number of options        17,160,056  9,958,258
Weighted average share price        £3.76  £3.70
Weighted average remaining lives:    
– Expected years        2.5  2.6
– Contractual years        5.8  8.5
Range of exercise prices       £2.74 - £3.88 £2.13 - £3.88



Home Retail Group Annual Report 2008 121 

THE GROUP REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MORE INFORMATION

Notes to the financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008

Share awards in respect of ordinary shares of the Company
Summary of arrangements 

Rolled over from old GUS plc schemes 

Arrangements Performance share plan Co-investment plan – matching shares 

Nature of arrangement Grant of shares Grant of shares1

      
Vesting conditions    
– Service period 3 years 4 years   
– Performance Distribution percentage determined Benchmark operating profi t
   by ranking total shareholder return of the Group assessed against

relative to a comparator group specifi c targets 

Expected outcome of meeting 60%2 100% 
performance criteria (at grant date)

Maximum term 3 years 6 years

Method of settlement Share distribution Share distribution

Expected departures (at grant date) 5% 7%

Demerger incentive schemes
    Long-term
    incentive Share   
   Performance Re-investment plan – plan – incentive
Arrangements share plan matching shares matching shares plan

Nature of arrangement Grant of shares Grant of shares1 Grant of shares1 Grant of shares
   
Vesting conditions             
– Service period 3 years   A 3-part scheme  3 years3 3 years

running over 3, 4
and 5 years

– Performance n/a  a) Time vesting n/a n/a
b)  Total shareholder

   return
   c)  Return on
   invested capital

Expected outcome of meeting n/a a) 100% n/a n/a
performance criteria (at grant date)    b) 51%2 

c) 100%

Maximum term 3 years 4, 5 and 6 years 5 years 5 years

Method of settlement Share distribution Share distribution Share distribution Share distribution

Expected departures (at grant date) 10% 0% 10% 30%
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS CONTINUED
New Home Retail Group plc schemes 
   
   Performance Co-investment plan – matching Co-investment plan – matching
Arrangements share plan shares (period ended 3 March 2007) shares (period ended 1 March 2008)

Nature of arrangement Grant of shares Grant of shares1 Grant of shares1

Vesting conditions       
– Service period 3 years 4 years3 4 years3  
– Performance Distribution percentage  Benchmark operating  a) Benchmark operating
  determined by ranking total profi t of the Group assessed profi t of the Group 
  shareholder return relative to  against specifi c targets assessed against specifi c 
  a comparator group  targets in year 1
    b) EPS growth in years 2-4
    c) Return on invested 
    capital in years 2-4

Expected outcome of meeting 51%2 100% 50%
performance criteria (at grant date)   

Maximum term 3 years 6 years 6 years 

Method of settlement Share distribution Share distribution Share distribution

Expected departures (at grant date) 10% 0% 0%

Notes:

1.  The matching shares are a nil consideration option and have been classifi ed as an award of shares because the nature of the award is the same.

2.  The performance share plan and re-investment plan - The total shareholder return performance condition is considered a ‘market-based’ performance condition under IFRS 2. 
These schemes have been valued using a Monte Carlo simulation with historic volatilities and correlations measured over the three-year period preceding valuation.

3.  The grant date for the co-investment plan and the long-term incentive plan is the start of the fi nancial year in which performance is assessed. This may be up to one year before the 
quantity of shares awarded is determined. The underlying value of the award is known at grant date, subject to the outcome of the performance condition. The value of awarded shares 
refl ects the performance outcome at the date of issue to participants.

Information relating to share grant valuation techniques
The value of the awards is determined as the observed market closing rate on the date awarded grants are issued to participants. For the co-investment plan, 
this occurs after the fi rst year of performance is assessed. The performance share plan’s and the re-investment plan’s market-based performance condition is 
included in the fair value measurement on grant date and is not revised for actual performance.

Under the share awards, the participants have an entitlement to dividend distributions from issue date until point of vesting. The observed market rate on 
the day of valuation is considered inclusive of future dividend distributions.

There were 3,962,197 ordinary share awards (2007: 8,879,440) granted during the period with a weighted average fair value of £3.14 (2007: £3.57).
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31. OPERATING LEASES

          2008 2007
         £m £m

Future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:    
Less than one year         (358.9) (334.1)
Between one and fi ve years         (1,359.7) (1,263.5)
More than fi ve years         (2,611.5) (2,608.0)

Total operating leases         (4,330.1) (4,205.6)

Home Retail Group leases various retail stores, offi ces and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, 
escalation clauses, contingent rentals and renewal rights.

32. COMMITMENTS

          2008 2007
         £m £m

Capital expenditure for which contracts have been placed:    
Property, plant and equipment         (59.8) (58.2)
Intangible assets         (0.1) (0.6)

Total commitments         (59.9) (58.8)

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are a number of contingent liabilities that arise in the normal course of business which, if realised, are not expected to result in a material liability to 
the Group.
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

          2008 2007
Cash generated from operations         £m £m

Profi t before tax         426.0 296.9
Adjustments for:   
Share of post-tax profi ts of joint ventures and associates       (1.6) (0.7)
Net fi nancing (income)/costs         (37.3) 9.0

Operating profi t         387.1 305.2

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment        0.4 0.9
Loss on sale of subsidiary         – 1.1
Depreciation and amortisation         151.6 146.4
Impairment losses         10.3 4.1
Finance expense charged to Financial Services cost of sales       19.6 16.4

Increase in inventories         (98.4) (23.4)
Increase in receivables         (21.2) (42.7)
Increase in payables         71.5 193.3

Movement in working capital         (48.1) 127.2

Increase/(decrease) in provisions         9.2 (6.3)
Movement in retirement benefi ts         12.5 10.0
Share-based payment expense         21.6 15.9

Cash generated from operations         564.2 620.9

          2008 2007
Reconciliation of net increase in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt    £m £m

Net cash/(debt) at beginning of the period        60.2 (178.0)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes         1.8 (3.0)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents       (111.6) 156.8
Decrease in debt (note 23)         223.6 84.4

Net cash at the end of the period         174.0 60.2

Major non-cash transactions
Home Retail Group did not enter into any new fi nance lease arrangements during the period (2007: £nil).
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35. RELATED PARTIES
The ultimate parent company of the Group is Home Retail Group plc. The principal subsidiary and associate undertakings at 1 March 2008 are shown 
in note 37. Transactions between Home Retail Group plc and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. 
Transactions carried out with related parties in the normal course of business are summarised below:

Joint venture
During 2007, the Group lent £8.1m to a joint venture, Home Retail Group Personal Finance Limited. This loan is outstanding as at 1 March 2008.

Key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in note 9. During the year, there were no material transactions or balances between the Group 
and its key management personnel or members of their close families.

Home Retail Group pension plans
Transactions between the Group and the Home Retail Group pension plans are disclosed in note 25.

GUS plc group companies
GUS plc and other GUS related companies were related parties until the demerger which came into effect on 10 October 2006. Since this date, certain 
services have been provided in accordance with the demerger agreement. Transactions prior to this date are set out below. The following purchases have 
arisen in the normal course of business from transactions between the Group and GUS plc and related companies.

          2008 2007
         £m £m

Purchases from related parties 
GUS plc and related companies   
– purchase of services         – (5.6)
– charge in respect of corporate head offi ce costs borne by GUS plc      – (7.0)

Total         – (12.6)

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There are no material post balance sheet events.

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

         Country of Percentage of
      Description  incorporation ordinary shares held

Home Retail Group (UK) Limited1    Group holding company England 100
Argos Limited   General merchandise retailing England 100
Argos Distributors (Ireland) Limited   General merchandise retailing Republic of Ireland 100
Homebase Limited   Home enhancement retailing England 100
Homebase House and Garden Centre Limited  Home enhancement retailing Republic of Ireland 100
Hampden Group Limited   Home enhancement retailing Northern Ireland 100
Home Retail Group Card Services Limited  Financial services England 100
ARG Personal Loans Limited   Financial services England 100
Argos Business Solutions Limited   Financial services England 100
Home Retail Group Insurance Services Limited  Financial services England 100
Home Retail Group (Hong Kong) Limited  Product sourcing for the  Hong Kong  100
   Home Retail Group companies 

Notes:

1.  Held directly by the Parent Company.

Details of interests in joint ventures and associated undertakings are given within note 18.
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We have audited the Parent Company fi nancial statements of Home Retail Group plc for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008 which comprise the Company 
balance sheet and the related notes. These Parent Company fi nancial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have 
also audited the information in the directors’ remuneration report that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the Group fi nancial statements of Home Retail Group plc for the 52 week period ended 1 March 2008.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the directors’ remuneration report and the Parent Company fi nancial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the 
statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Parent Company fi nancial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited in accordance with 
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared 
for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in 
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may 
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Parent Company fi nancial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Parent Company fi nancial 
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We 
also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the Parent Company fi nancial statements. The 
information given in the directors’ report includes that specifi c information presented in the business review that is cross referred from the business review 
section of the directors’ report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specifi ed by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the annual report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Parent Company fi nancial statements. 
The other information comprises only the chairman’s statement, the business review, the Board of Directors, the directors’ report, the corporate governance 
statement and the unaudited part of the directors’ remuneration report. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent 
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Parent Company fi nancial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes 
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Parent Company fi nancial statements and the part of the directors’ 
remuneration report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the signifi cant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of 
the Parent Company fi nancial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with 
suffi cient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Parent Company fi nancial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be 
audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall 
adequacy of the presentation of information in the Parent Company fi nancial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited.

OPINION
In our opinion:

the Parent Company fi nancial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the 
state of the Company’s affairs as at 1 March 2008;
the Parent Company fi nancial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance 
with the Companies Act 1985; and
the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the Parent Company fi nancial statements. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
30 April 2008
 

Independent auditors’ report to the members 
of Home Retail Group plc – Parent
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            1 March 3 March
         2008 2007
           Notes £m £m

Fixed assets 
Investments in subsidiary        5 2,895.6  2,895.6

Current assets      
Debtors – amounts falling due within one year       6 163.8  179.4

Current liabilities      
Creditors – amounts falling due within one year       7 (297.9)  (209.7)

Net current liabilities          (134.1)  (30.3)

Total assets less current liabilities          2,761.5  2,865.3

Net assets          2,761.5  2,865.3

Capital and reserves 

Called up share capital        8 87.7 87.7
Profi t and loss account        9 2,673.8 2,777.6

Equity shareholders’ funds          2,761.5 2,865.3

The fi nancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2008 and were signed on its behalf by: 

Terry Duddy, Chief Executive   Richard Ashton, Finance Director

Parent Company balance sheet
At 1 March 2008
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated and registered in England and Wales on 30 June 2006 under the Companies Act as a public limited company by shares with 
the name Hackplimco (no. 116) plc and with registered number 5863533. The Company changed its name to ARG Holdings (UK) plc pursuant to a special 
resolution passed on 13 July 2006 and then changed its name to Home Retail Group plc pursuant to a special resolution on 11 September 2006. 
The registered offi ce of the Company is Avebury, 489-499 Avebury Boulevard, Milton Keynes MK9 2NW.

2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting
These separate fi nancial statements of Home Retail Group (‘the Company’) are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985 (the Act), and were 
approved by the Board on 30 April 2008. They have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention modifi ed for the 
revaluation of certain fi nancial instruments, and in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(UK GAAP).

The Company is the ultimate parent entity of Home Retail Group (‘the Group’). The Company’s fi nancial statements are included in Home Retail Group plc’s 
consolidated fi nancial statements for the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008. As permitted by section 230 of the Act, the Company has not presented its own 
profi t and loss account. The Company has also taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a cash fl ow statement under the terms of FRS 1 (Revised 
1996) ‘Cash Flow Statements’. The Company is also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing transactions with other 
members of the Home Retail Group.

The Company has applied the provisions for merger relief under section 131 of the Act. As a consequence no share premium was recorded in respect of 
the shares issued. The investment in Home Retail Group (UK) Limited has also been recorded at the nominal value of shares issued under the provision 
of section 133 of the Act (provision supplementing section 131 of the Act).

Changes in accounting standards
The Company has adopted FRS 29, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’. The adoption of this standard represents a change in accounting policy and the 
comparative fi gures have been restated accordingly.  There is no prior period adjustment to reserves resulting from adopting this standard, as its provisions 
relate to disclosure only.  The Company has also adopted FRS 28 ‘Corresponding Amounts’. There has been no material effect of adopting this standard.

Financial instruments
The Company classifi es its fi nancial instruments in the following categories: fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss and loans and receivables. 
The classifi cation depends on the purpose for which the fi nancial instruments were acquired. Management determines the classifi cation of its fi nancial 
instruments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this position at every reporting date. The Company may use interest rate swaps to manage its interest 
rate exposure against borrowings from subsidiary undertakings.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss are so designated by management on initial recognition. Derivatives are so designated 
unless they are designated as hedges. Items in this category are classifi ed as current assets or current liabilities if they are expected to be realised within 
12 months of the balance sheet date.

Investments
Investments are included in the balance sheet at their cost of acquisition. Where appropriate, a provision is made for any impairment in their value.

Deferred tax
Deferred taxation has been recognised as a liability or asset if transactions have occurred at the balance sheet date that give rise to an obligation to pay 
more tax in the future, or a right to pay less tax in the future.  An asset is not recognised to the extent that the transfer of economic benefi ts in the future 
is uncertain. Deferred taxation assets and liabilities have not been discounted.

Dividend distribution
Final dividends recommended by the Board of Directors and unpaid at the year-end are not recognised in the fi nancial statements, until they have been 
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Interim dividends are recognised when paid. 

Share-based payments
The Company operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans for the benefi t of employees of its subsidiary companies. The fair value 
of the shares granted is recognised as an expense after taking into account the best estimate of the number of awards expected to vest. The Company 
revisits the vesting estimate at each balance sheet date. Non-market performance conditions are included in the vesting estimate. Expenses are incurred 
over the vesting period and are recharged in full to the employing subsidiary companies. Fair value is measured at the date of grant using whichever of the 
Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo model and closing market price is most appropriate to the award.  Market-based performance conditions are included in the fair 
value measurement on grant date and are not revisited for actual performance.

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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3. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT DISCLOSURES
The Company’s loss on ordinary activities was £6.6m (2007: £1.7m profi t). Details of the remuneration of directors are given in the auditable part of the 
directors’ remuneration report and were paid by another Group company. There were no non-audit services.

No directors received any remuneration from the Company during either period. The Company has no employees. Further information on directors’ 
remuneration which forms part of the audited Group fi nancial statements can be found in the directors’ remuneration report.

4. DIVIDENDS

            52 weeks Short period
         ended ended
            1 March 3 March
             2008 2007
         £m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders 
Final dividend of 9.0p per share for the short period ended 3 March 2007      78.1 –
Interim dividend of 4.7p per share (2007: 4.0p)         40.8  34.6

Ordinary dividends on equity shares         118.9  34.6

A fi nal dividend in respect of the period ended 1 March 2008 of 10.0p per share, amounting to a total fi nal dividend of £86.8m, has been recommended by 
the Board of Directors, and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. This would make a total dividend for the period of 
14.7p per share, amounting to £127.6m. The recommended dividend has not been included as a liability at 1 March 2008 in accordance with FRS 21 ‘Events 
after the balance sheet date’. It will be paid on 23 July 2008 to shareholders who are on the register of members at close of business on 23 May 2008.  
The Home Retail Group Employee Share Ownership Trust (‘ESOT’) has waived its entitlement to dividends in the amount of £1.3m (2007: £0.7m). 

5. INVESTMENTS IN GROUP SUBSIDIARIES

             2008 2007
         £m £m

Cost:  
At beginning of the period         2,895.6 –
Acquisition of Home Retail Group (UK) Limited        – 2,895.6

At end of the period         2,895.6 2,895.6

In 2007, as part of a scheme of arrangement under section 425 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company issued shares to the public shareholders of 
Experian Group Limited in return for the receipt of the shares in Home Retail Group (UK) Limited. Home Retail Group (UK) Limited is a 100% owned 
subsidiary incorporated within the UK and is a Group holding company.

6. DEBTORS

             2008 2007
         £m £m

Amounts owed by Group companies         161.6 179.4
Taxation         2.2 –

         163.8 179.4

The amounts owed by Group companies are unsecured, repayable on demand, and have interest rates linked to LIBOR.

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008

7. CREDITORS – AMOUNTS FALLING DUE IN ONE YEAR

             2008 2007
         £m £m

Amounts owed to Group companies         (297.9) (208.5)
Taxation         – (0.7)
Other fi nancial liabilities         – (0.5)

         (297.9) (209.7)

The amounts owed to Group companies includes an unsecured loan of £191.5m (2007: £208.5m) taken out on 10 October 2006 with Stanhope Finance 
Limited, a Group company. Interest is fi xed and charged at 4.91%. The amounts owed to Group companies are repayable on demand. The other fi nancial 
liability represented the market value of an interest rate swap novated from GUS plc at nil consideration.

8. CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

      2008   2007 
      Number of 2008  Number of 2007
      shares £m  shares £m

Authorised: 
Ordinary share capital of 10p each     2,000,500,000 200.1  2,000,500,000 200.1

      2008   2007   
      Number of   Number of 
      shares 2008  shares 2007
      m £m  m £m

Allotted, called-up and fully paid:
At beginning of the period       877.4  87.7   877.4  2,895.6
Reduction in nominal value of shares from 330p to 10p    – –  – (2,807.9)

At end of the period      877.4 87.7  877.4 87.7
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9. RESERVES

          Treasury  Profi t 
         and ESOP  and loss  
          shares  account  Total
          £m  £m  £m 

At 4 March 2007        (6.1)  2,783.7 2,777.6
Loss for the fi nancial period         – (6.6) (6.6)
Net movement in own shares         0.1 – 0.1
Equity dividends paid during the period         – (118.9) (118.9)
Movement in share-based compensation reserve       – 21.6 21.6

At 1 March 2008         (6.0) 2,679.8 2,673.8

          Treasury  Profi t 
         and ESOP  and loss  
          shares  account  Total
          £m  £m  £m 

Profi t for the fi nancial period         –  1.7  1.7
Reduction in nominal value of shares         –  2,807.8  2,807.8
Net movement in own shares         (6.1) –  (6.1)
Equity dividends paid during the period         –  (34.6)  (34.6)
Movement in share-based compensation reserve        – 8.8  8.8

At 3 March 2007         (6.1)  2,783.7  2,777.6

Net movement in own shares represents the purchase, and subsequent utilisation or sale, of shares for the purpose of satisfying obligations arising from 
Home Retail Group plc share-based compensation schemes. Shares in Home Retail Group plc are held in the following Trusts which have been established 
since demerger:

Home Retail Group Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT)
The ESOT provides for the issue of shares to Group employees under share option and share grant schemes (with the exception of the Share Incentive Plan).  
At 1 March 2008, the ESOT held 9,206,387 shares with a market value of £23.8m. The shares in the Trust are held in the balance sheet of the Company at nil 
value. The shares were acquired as part of the demerger from GUS plc at no cost. Dividends on these shares are waived.

Home Retail Group Share Incentive Scheme Trust
The Home Retail Group Share Incentive Scheme Trust provides for the issue of shares to Group employees under the Share Incentive Plan.  At 1 March 2008, 
the Trust held 1,425,505 shares with a market value of £3.7m. These shares are held in the balance sheet of the Company at a cost of £6.0m. No additional 
shares were purchased in the period.

10. COMMITMENTS
On 12 July 2006, Argos Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a fi ve-year multi-currency revolving loan facility, which was subsequently 
extended by a further year, of £700m with a syndicated group of banks. On 27 October 2006 the Company acceded to this facility as a borrower and 
a guarantor. As at the balance sheet date there were no drawings made under this facility.

The Company acts as guarantor of the loans between Stanhope Finance Limited and Homebase Group Limited (£150m) and Home Retail Group Card 
Services Limited (£100m). These companies are all members of the Home Retail Group.

There are no capital or operating lease commitments. 

Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued
For the 52 weeks ended 1 March 2008
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Group three-year summary

        52-week  52-week 52-week
        period to pro forma to pro forma to
        1 March 3 March 4 March
        2008 2007 2006
Income statement        £m £m £m

Argos        4,320.9 4,164.0 3,858.8
Homebase        1,568.5 1,594.2 1,559.0
Financial Services        95.4 93.2 92.5

Sales        5,984.8 5,851.4 5,510.3
 
Argos        376.2 325.0 297.0
Homebase        45.1 53.4 51.4
Financial Services        5.5 5.0 6.1
Central Activities        (28.8) (24.0) (22.7)

Benchmark operating profi t        398.0 359.4 331.8

Benchmark PBT        432.9 376.7 337.1

Statistics

Argos 

Like-for-like change in sales        0.7% 2.4% (1.4%)
New space contribution to sales change        3.1% 5.5% 7.5%

Total sales change        3.8% 7.9% 6.1%

Number of stores at period end        707 680 655
Of which Argos Extra stocked-in        278 238 189

Homebase

Like-for-like change in sales        (4.1%) (1.4%) (3.1%)
New space contribution to sales change        2.5% 3.6% 3.1%

Total sales change        (1.6%) 2.2% 0.0%

Number of stores at period end        331 310 297
Of which contain a mezzanine fl oor        181 165 144

Financial Services

Store card gross receivables £m        482 448 378
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        1 March 3 March 31 March
        2008 2007 2006
Balance sheet        £m £m £m

Invested capital        3,139.5 3,011.8 3,107.2
Retirement benefi t assets        83.7 9.3 25.5
Net tax liabilities        (52.0) (2.6) (4.8)
Net cash/(pro forma net debt)        174.0 60.2 (200.0)

Pro forma net assets        3,345.2 3,078.7 2,927.9
Net GUS group balances        – – 22.0

Reported net assets        3,345.2 3,078.7 2,949.9

        52-week  52-week 52-week
        period to pro forma to pro forma to
        1 March 3 March 4 March
        2008 2007 2006
Benchmark pre-tax return on invested capital       £m £m £m

Benchmark operating profi t        398.0 359.4 331.8
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures and associates      1.6 0.7 (4.2)

Benchmark pre-tax return        399.6 360.1 327.6

Benchmark pre-tax return on invested capital       12.7% 12.0% 10.5%

        52-week  52-week 52-week
        period to pro forma to pro forma to
        1 March 3 March 4 March
Earnings and dividends        2008 2007 2006

Basic benchmark EPS        33.9p 29.3p 25.6p
Dividends per share (Interim paid and fi nal proposed)      14.7p 13.0p n/a

Dividend cover        2.31x 2.25x n/a

The change in both the year-end and the Group’s capital structure on demerger in 2006 resulted in statutory reported results that are non-comparable. 
To assist with analysis and comparison, certain pro forma information has therefore been provided in respect of the comparative periods to eliminate the 
distortions of these two impacts on the performance of Home Retail Group. 

Group three-year summary continued
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Who are the Group’s shareholders?
The Group had 36,464 ordinary shareholders at 1 March 2008, comprising a mix of corporations and individuals. Their holdings can 
be analysed as follows:
     Percentage of  
    Number of total number Number of Percentage of
    shareholders of shareholders ordinary shares ordinary shares

Over 1,000,000    136 0.37 696,771,717 79.41
100,001 – 1,000,000    322 0.89 111,734,757 12.73
10,001 – 100,000    902 2.47 26,637,289 3.04
5,001 – 10,000    1,200 3.29 8,114,533 0.92
2,001 – 5,000    4,667 12.80 14,107,735 1.61
1 – 2,000    29,237 80.18 20,078,970 2.29

    36,464 100.00 877,445,001 100.00

     Percentage of  
    Number of total number Number of Percentage of
    shareholders of shareholders ordinary shares ordinary shares

Corporate    5,576 15.29 831,031,585 94.71
Individuals*    30,888 84.71 46,413,416 5.29

    36,464 100.00 877,445,001 100.00

*  Employee shareholdings under the Group’s share schemes are held in trust and are not therefore 
refl ected in the number of individual shareholders.

I have an enquiry or want to update my details. Who should I contact?
For all enquiries and shareholder administration, please contact Capita Registrars:
Postal address: Capita Registrars, Northern House, Woodsome Park, Huddersfi eld HD8 0GA.
email: homeretailgroup@capitaregistrars.com
Telephone: 0871 664 0437* (from abroad +44 208 639 3377). 
Text phone: 0871 664 0532* (from abroad +44 208 639 2062).
Fax number: 0871 664 0438 (from abroad +44 1484 600914). 
*Calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras.

Can I choose to receive information by email?
Shareholders can register to receive reports and notifi cations by email, browse shareholder information and submit voting 
instructions at www.homeretailgroup-shares.com. This service is provided by Capita Registrars.

Does the Group have an investor relations website?
Investor relations information, such as webcasts of results presentations to analysts and investors and accompanying slides, 
is available at www.homeretailgroup.com. 

Can I reinvest my dividends?
Shareholders can use their cash dividends to purchase further shares in the Group through the dividend reinvestment plan. 
Completed mandate forms for this year’s fi nal dividend must be received by Capita Registrars by 2 July 2008. To fi nd out more 
or obtain a mandate form, please contact Capita Registrars.

Shareholder information
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Shareholder information continued

Where can I fi nd the Group’s share price?
www.homeretailgroup.com 

Does the Group provide a share dealing facility?
Investors can buy or sell Group shares through Capita Share Dealing Services. Go to www.capitadeal.com or call 0871 664 0454 
(calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras) between 8.30 am and 4.30 pm weekdays.

When are the next major events for shareholders?
Final dividend ex-dividend 21 May 2008
Final dividend record 23 May 2008
Interim management statement 12 June 2008
Annual General Meeting 2 July 2008
Payment of fi nal dividend 23 July 2008

When and where is this year’s AGM?
The 2008 AGM will be held from 11.30 am on Wednesday 2 July 2008 at the Jurys Inn Milton Keynes, Midsummer Boulevard, 
Milton Keynes MK9 2HP.  

Where is the registered offi ce?
The registered offi ce address is Home Retail Group plc, Avebury, 489-499 Avebury Boulevard, Milton Keynes MK9 2NW. 
The Company is registered in London No. 5863533. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MORE INFORMATION
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